
 

  www.wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, April 13, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ........................................... Board Member Tim Nabors 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Nancy Edwardson, Winnebago County Animal Services, Pro 

Rev. Earl Dotson, Sr., Redevelopment of West Side Rockford and its benefits for the 
commonwealth, Pro  
 

6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of March 9, 2023 minutes  
B. Layover of March 23, 2023 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….……………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Policy 



www.wincoil.gov | Page 2  

3. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for a Buyer Position to be Laid Over 
4. Resolution Authorizing a Salary Adjustment for the Winnebago County Supervisor of 

Assessments 
5. Resolution to Approve Payment of Stipends to the Regional Superintendent and 

Assistant Regional Superintendent of Schools (Boone and Winnebago Counties) 
6. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for Procurement of Karpel Solutions Case 

Management System for the State’s Attorney’s and Public Defender’s Offices to be Laid 
Over 

7. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 
Expenditures to be Laid Over 

8. Resolution Approving an Agreement between the County of Winnebago and 
Winnebago Homes Association for Emergency Rental Assistance Program 2 Funds 

9. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of Contracts to Temporarily Extend the Current 
Cable Television Franchise Agreements 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report               
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the Economic Development 

Agreement by and Between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and Hamilton 
Sundstrand Corporation, Part of Collins Aerospace 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Approve the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Vision Service Plan 

(VSP) for Voluntary Vision Insurance 
3. Resolution for Replacement of State’s Attorney and Public Defender Case 

Management System 
  

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
 



www.wincoil.gov | Page 3  

13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 27, 2023 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By:  David J. Rickert 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: 4-6-2023

Resolution Title:   Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Policy 

County Code:      N\A 

Board Meeting Date: 4-13-2023

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? Not Applicable    Appropriation Amount: Not Applicable 
If not, explain funding source: Not Applicable  
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Not Applicable    Budget Impact: Not Applicable 

Background 
Information: 

The County's budget process is governed by Illinois Compiled 
Statutes (55 ILCS 5/6) and Winnebago County Board Policies. In 
addressing concerns for maintaining financial strength while 
protecting the interest of the taxpayer, the County Board is 
implementing the following directives for the development of the 
fiscal year 2024 budget 

Recommendation: Administration supports this resolution 

Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review:   Not Applicable 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.us/


  County Board Meeting: April 13, 2023 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2023 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET POLICY 

WHEREAS, the County Board wishes to adopt a budgetary process for use in the 2024 fiscal 
year; and  

WHEREAS, the County Administration has created a process based on sound financial principals 
for use in the 2024 fiscal year.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that it adopts the budgetary process presented by the County Administration for the 2024 fiscal 
year, a copy of which policy is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Board Chairman and all County 
department heads. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY      JEAN CROSBY 

  JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Exhibit A 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

Fiscal Year 2024 

Budget Policy 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  2 | 14 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Accounting Basis .................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Budgetary Priorities .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Fund Reserves and Balanced Budgets .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Budget Submittal and Presentation Process ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Revenue Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Expense Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Planning and Budgets ................................................................................................. 7 

Budget Amendment Process (After Adoption By The Board): ............................................................................................. 8 

Financial Policies ...................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Fiscal Year ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Accounting/ Auditing ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Grants ................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Risk Management ............................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Scope of Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Objectives ........................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Responsibility ..................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Prudence ............................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Accounting ......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Financial Institutions .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Investment Vehicles ........................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Collateral ............................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Security Controls ................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Adoption ............................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Calendar .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

 

 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  3 | 14 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Winnebago County Government operates on policies designed to protect the County's assets and taxpayers' 

interests, provide guidance to employees, and serve the public efficiently. It is the intent that the policy 

statements be used to avoid conflicting goals or activities, which may have a negative impact on the overall 

financial position of the County. The County's system of internal accounting controls is designed to provide 

reasonable assurance that the financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements and maintaining 

accountability for assets and obligations. 

The County's budget process is governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (55 ILCS 5/6) and Winnebago County 

Board Policies (Sec. 2-38 Winnebago County Code of Ordinances). All operating funds (those funds that are 

presented in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report) are appropriated in the "Official Budget". 

Appropriations will be considered the maximum authorization to incur obligations and not a mandate to spend. 

In addressing concerns for maintaining financial strength while protecting the interest of the taxpayer, the 

County Board is implementing the following directives for the development of the fiscal year 2024 budget. 

ACCOUNTING BASIS 

Governmental Funds 

The County prepares financial statements based on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all 

governmental funds in which the revenues are recorded when both measurable and available. The County 

considers revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for 

property taxes, 180 days of the end of the current fiscal policy for certain health department and County 

reimbursable grants and 90 days of the end of the current period for all other amounts. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-

term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund 

liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. 

Proprietary Funds 

The County has two proprietary funds. Expenditures for these funds are budgeted on a full accrual basis of 

accounting.  As such, expenses are recognized when incurred and revenues are recognized when they are 

obligated to the County. 

Under both methods of accounting, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) prescribe that purchases 

are required to be accounted for in the fiscal year in which the item is received or the service performed. Items 

ordered or services performed late in the fiscal year and not received or completed by the end of the fiscal year 

will be applied to the budget of the following year. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  4 | 14 

 

BUDGETARY PRIORITIES 

 

Direction is hereby given to the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer to create the fiscal year 

2024 budget with the following priorities: 

 

1. Debt service payments required 

 

2. Contractual payments based on lease agreements, software agreements and other contractual agreements 

 

3. Mandated services at affordable funding levels 

 

4. All operating necessities (Utilities, IMRF, Health Insurance, Liability Insurance) 

 

5. General operating costs to provide services 

 

6. Non-Union employee compensation 

 

7. Capital needs of the organization 

 

8. Meeting the 25% unrestricted reserve requirement of the General Fund and PSST Fund (See Fund Reserves 

and Balanced Budgets Section) 

 

9. Outside agency funding to include non-obligated Host Fee Grants and local matching grants 

 

FUND RESERVES AND BALANCED BUDGETS 

The intent of the Finance Committee is the budget must balance expenditures against available revenues and 

fund balance by fund. Special revenue fund expenditure budgets cannot exceed available fund balance of the 

fund. Special revenue funds with a negative fund balance will not be allowed to submit an expenditure budget 

until the negative fund balance has been eliminated. 

The County has developed a fund reserve policy in which it shall be the intent of the County Board to maintain 

an unrestricted (total of unassigned) fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures 

in the General Fund and the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund. Surpluses in excess of the necessary reserve required 

by this policy shall be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund. In addition, it is the intent of the County Board 

to maintain an unrestricted fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures in the River 

Bluff Nursing Home fund. 

 

BUDGET SUBMITTAL AND PRESENTATION PROCESS 

Elected Officials and Department Heads shall be provided budget worksheets with existing levels of funding. 

Based on revenue estimates for the current and next fiscal year, funding levels may be reduced from the current 

year’s appropriations. Elected Officials and Department Heads are encouraged to analyze all services and 

programs for the cost of the programs, citizen demand, and mandates by Federal, State or County law.  



 

P a g e  5 | 14 

 

Exceptions may be considered by the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer on a case-by-case 

basis. 

When an Elected Official/Department Head has completed the required budget forms, a meeting can be 

scheduled (if necessary) with the County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer to review and ensure budget 

policy compliance. Concerns and/or issues should be addressed by the Department Head/Elected Official at this 

time. Any resulting changes to submitted budgets will be communicated to the Finance Office for system entry 

and review. Upon review by County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer, the budget will be scheduled for 

presentation to the Finance Committee per the attached budget calendar. Meetings will be scheduled with the 

Finance Committee (if necessary) for individual departments/Elected Officials to address the Finance 

Committee regarding their individual budget requests. 

Prior to the date the County Board places the budget on layover for public review, the Elected 

Official/Department Head will be required to review the budget as entered in the financial system and sign off 

that all entered information is correct. 

Once the Finance Committee has reviewed departmental budgets, and the recommended supplemental 

requests have been approved, the budget is moved to the whole board to be placed on public display for a 

minimum of fifteen (15) days prior to final approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer and the County Administrator during the normal course of the budget preparation 

process may make budget revisions prior to the final board approval of the budget. It should be noted that 

proposed budget revisions made after the first reading but before final passage shall be documented and 

presented to the County Board for approval as part of the final budget approval. 

 

New for FY2024, Elected Official/Department Heads will be required to submit a five-year plan for capital 

improvements. Guidelines for these budgets are on page 7. 

REVENUE ESTIMATIONS 

The County will project annual revenues on a conservative analytical basis to protect it from short-run 

fluctuations in any one revenue source. In instances where the County is providing non-mandated services and 

the revenue stream(s) is/are not covering the costs of said services, direction will be requested by County 

Administration from the reporting Liaison Committee (and if necessary, the full County Board) on whether said 

service should be allowed to continue and supplemented with County funds. 

Property Tax Assumptions: Winnebago County is mandated to follow the Illinois Property Tax Extension 

Limitation Law (PTELL) by the State of Illinois. PTELL allows governing bodies the ability to cover the costs of 

inflationary increases incurred in their day-to-day operations by increasing their previous year's extension by 

the CPI or 5%, whichever is smallest. For fiscal year 2024 the CPI is 5.0%. During the budget process, County 

Administration will present the increases available if the County Board chooses to capture new growth and/or 

to utilize the CPI increase authorized under PTELL in the calculation of property tax revenues when developing 

the fiscal year 2024 budget. The Finance Committee will inform the Chief Financial Officer of the amount of the 

levy to include in the budget document. 

User Fees and Charges: All user fees and charges should be reviewed by County Administration, Elected Officials 

and Appointed Department Heads on an annual basis to ensure the fee collected is covering the cost of service 

provided (subject to State Statutes). 



 

P a g e  6 | 14 

 

The County charges user fees for items and services which benefit a specific user more than the general public. 

State statutes or an indirect cost study determines user fees. Fee studies based on costs are conducted as 

needed to determine the level of fees needed to equal the total cost of providing the service. 

Other FY2024 Revenue Assumptions: 

• Nonrecurring (one-time) revenue sources will be used for operations unless directed for a specific use 

by the County Board. 

• Cannabis Sales and Excise Taxes support the General Fund. 

• All gaming-related revenue, including off-track betting, casino, and video gaming revenues, support the 

Capital Projects Fund. 

• Sale of assets support the Capital Projects Fund. 

• New funding sources with a restricted purpose will be reviewed by the County Board to ensure 

appropriate usage at the department level. Additionally, these funding sources will be identified by a 

designated project number to meet reporting requirements by the funding agency. 

EXPENSE ESTIMATIONS 

Salary and Wage Estimates: Each department will be provided a budget document outlining the employees of 

the department with their rate of pay as of the date of the preparation of the document. It is the responsibility 

of the department to review the list including the position titles and employment status (FT, PT or seasonal). 

The department shall budget for any contractual obligations as outlined in respective bargaining contracts for 

the upcoming year. The department should include any vacant positions that are not included on the list if the 

intent is to fill that position in the upcoming year. 

The Finance Committee will provide the County Administrator the non-union employee wage increase rate to 

include in the budget document. The Finance Committee will make a recommendation no later than the 1st 

Finance Committee meeting in June. Non-bargaining employees are eligible to receive the one-percent longevity 

pay in accordance with County policy and this should be included in the development of the salary and wage 

budgets. 

Employees transferring from one County department to another will be allowed to retain their accrued vacation 

upon transfer. The new department will assume the liability should the employee terminate their employment 

while employed by said department. 

Grant Budgets: Each department should submit a separate budget document for ongoing grant awards by the 

project (award) number. Grant revenue estimates should equal grant expenditure estimates for 

reimbursement-based grants. Grant award performance periods may not align with the County’s fiscal year. In 

such cases, the department should estimate to the best of their ability the expenses that will be incurred for the 

grant program during the County’s fiscal year. Grant budgets should include all applicable expenses as defined 

in the grant award and approved grant budget. 

New grant awards will be budgeted at the time the County Board accepts the award. See further details in the 

Grant Policy and Grant Procedures documents. 

 

 



 

P a g e  7 | 14 

 

Other FY2024 Expense Assumptions:  

• In the event of loss of Federal or State funding and/or reimbursement for specific services, it is 

understood that Department/Elected Official will be expected to either reduce funded services or 

identify other reductions/revenue increases to offset the losses. Exceptions will be addressed on a case-

by-case basis. 

• Contractual obligations should be included in the budget request and, if applicable, noted as a 

supplemental request. 

• Equipment needs and repairs that do not meet the criteria of a capital request as defined below should 

be included in the departmental operating budgets. 

• All appropriations that have not been expended or appropriated to ongoing capital improvement 

projects shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND BUDGETS 

The CIP budgets are necessary to provide adequate consideration of the County’s short-term and long-term 

needs and strategic goals and evaluate the options and timing availability of funds to address those needs. As 

noted in the Revenue Estimate section of this document, the CIP Fund will be funded through Gaming revenue, 

sale of assets and excess funds in the General and PSST funds. CIP includes major construction, expansion, 

purchase or major repair of buildings and other physical structures.  CIP may also include fleet and equipment 

replacement needs. Per the County asset policy, capital projects should have a component value greater than 

$12,000 and should have a useful life greater than three to five years.  CIP does not include highway 

department projects or equipment funded by grant or other funding sources.   

Each Department Head/Elected Official will submit a list of capital needs for the next five years on the document 

provided for capital requests. Requested projects should be prioritized by the departments. The requesting 

department should note the need for funding of the project. In addition to the cost of completing the project, 

the department should identify any costs to operate and maintain the asset over its useful life. These additional 

expenses would need to be included in the department’s operating budget.  

Only projects included in the first year of the plan will be considered for approval and funding Projects presented 

for future years are shown for planning purposes only. Funding for a capital plan will be reviewed in conjunction 

with the annual budget. Submittal of capital needs does not guarantee funding.  

Approved CIP projects will be appropriated in the Capital Projects Improvement Fund. County Administration 

has developed a team consisting of the County Administrator, Chief Financial Officer and representatives from 

Finance, Purchasing, Facilities, IT and the Sheriff. This team will meet regularly to review and discuss the 

progress of approved projects.  

Capital project appropriations, unlike operating budget appropriations, are typically one-time in nature and the 

project may take multiple years to complete. Budgetary control for these projects will be at the fund and project 

level which differs from operating budgets. Due to the fact that capital projects may cross fiscal years, the 

County Administrator/Chief Financial Officer will have the authority to rollover available project balances to the 

next fiscal year during the budget preparation process. Each previously approved project will be reviewed with 

department heads prior to the calculation of the rollover amount. Factors Administration will consider when 



 

P a g e  8 | 14 

 

calculating the rollover amount would include the timing of any remaining payments and estimated completion 

percentage. The current year estimated actuals plus any amounts included in the rollover budget will not exceed 

the amount of the original approved project budget. Administration will not rollover any capital project funds 

which have not had activity for two fiscal years. A listing of project budgets that are to be rolled over will be 

reviewed by the aforementioned Administration team and included in the final budget package as presented to 

the County Board. 

CIP appropriations funding projects belonging to the two Enterprise Funds will be budgeted in those respective 

funds in order to properly track assets according to GAAP and financial reporting. Approval of CIP projects 

related to these funds will require a budget amendment including a plan to transfer funds from the CIP fund to 

the Enterprise fund and expenditures for the project in the Enterprise fund. Actual transfers will only be 

recorded by Finance as related projects are completed. 

BUDGET AMENDMENT PROCESS (AFTER ADOPTION BY THE BOARD): 

All requests for budget amendments must start with a completed Budget Amendment Form (available upon 

request from Finance) submitted to the Chief Financial Officer, who upon review, will work with the requesting 

department head in preparing an ordinance (if required) in the County Board approved format for committee 

and board presentation. 

• The County Board must approve all transfers of budgets between departments or funds by a 2/3rd majority 

vote (14) of the County Board. (Transfers may not be made from certain special purpose funds to other 

funds). 

 

• Additional (emergency) appropriations must also be approved by a 2/3rd majority vote (14) of the County 

Board. 

 

• Budgetary control over expenditures exists at the object-class-level (character code). Line item transfers 

between object-class-level (character code) or object codes may be requested by the department and 

approved by the Chief Financial Officer, provided the total amount appropriated by the County Board for 

the respective department (org code) is not exceeded. 

 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 

The following pages include financial policies that have been approved by the County Board. These policies 

should be considered in addition to the Budget Development Guidelines in completion of budgets. 

FISCAL YEAR 

The County's fiscal year is October 1st through September 30th. (Set by County Board per 55 ILCS 5/6-1-001). 

ACCOUNTING/ AUDITING 

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants (55 ILCS 5/6-31003). An 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report shall be prepared according to the criteria set by the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA). The County follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as 

set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 



 

P a g e  9 | 14 

 

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING POLICIES  

The accounting policies of the County of Winnebago, Illinois will conform to generally accepted accounting 

principles as applicable to governmental units. The accepted standard setting body for establishing 

governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB). It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a self-balancing set of accounts on an on going basis to 

be closed quarterly. The general ledger will be closed by the Finance department no later than 45 days after 

month end. The books shall remain open 90 days after the fiscal year end. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a program of internal controls to safeguard all assets and ensure 

effective and efficient use of all assets. It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to establish a formal 

set of "best practice" internal controls. In addition, the County Auditor shall ensure that all departments comply 

with those controls.  

It shall also be the intent for the independent auditor to review the system of internal controls and report any 

weaknesses detected to the Board as part of the annual audit. 

It shall be the intent of the County to utilize fund accounting principles and generally accepted accounting 

practices in the recording of all financial transactions. The general ledger shall be maintained on a cash basis, 

with the intent to move to an accrual basis on a quarterly basis. The Finance Committee will be provided with 

budget versus actual revenue and expenditure reports on a quarterly basis. 

It shall be the intent of the County to prepare annually an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to be 

presented to the Board no later than 180 days after year-end. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

should be audited by an independent CPA firm experienced in governmental auditing. It shall be the further 

intent of the County to present its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to the Government Finance Officers 

Association to receive the Certificate of Excellence award in financial reporting. If at any time the County will 

not receive an unqualified opinion from the CPA firm, the CPA firm and the Finance Director will notify the Board 

prior to the issuance of the report. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a capital asset ledger of all permanent assets acquired. The 

Finance department will maintain these asset records on an on-going basis to ensure proper controls and report 

annually regarding these records to the Board. No asset will be considered fixed unless its value or component 

value exceeds $12,000 dollars or in the case of infrastructure assets purchased or acquired with an original cost 

of $50,000 or more. 

Depreciation will be charged on all capital assets. This policy is consistent with the requirements of GASB 

Statement No. 34. Depreciation will be recorded on a straight-line basis over the normal useful life of the asset. 

It shall be the intent of the County to manage all accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are created by 

operations in certain departments and offices. In general, they arise at the renewal of a permit or license from 

departments such as Health, River Bluff Nursing Home or Transportation. The department or office that is 

responsible for the billing is responsible for collections and managing receivables. Consistent with good financial 

management, each department and office will age their receivables. Departments and Offices shall continue 

collection efforts. 

The Finance department remits vendor payments on a regular schedule twice a month. Vendor payments are 

released by the County Clerk’s office per the defined schedule. Emergency requests for payment are considered 



 

P a g e  10 | 14 

 

on a case-by-case basis. All remittances will be mailed unless there is a business purpose requiring a department 

to obtain the check at which time a release form will need to be signed. 

It is the intent of the County to comply with the modified accrual basis of accounting, in which revenues are 

recorded when they are both measurable and available. The County considers revenue to be available if they 

are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for property taxes, 180 days of the end of the 

current fiscal period for certain health department and County reimbursable grants, and 90 days of the end of 

the current fiscal period for all other amounts. 

GRANTS 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all grant-funded programs or projects are managed according to the 

terms set forth in the grant agreement, Winnebago County Grant Administration Policies and Procedures and 

other applicable County policies and procedures. To inform the County Board of the value of a new grant 

program, the Board must have full knowledge of the total cost and/or impact of the program and its funding 

sources. It is a requirement that departments administrating grants are familiar with the grant administration 

policies and procedures; in addition to individual grant requirements.  

A grant is an amount of money that a government or other institution gives to an individual or to an organization 

for a particular purpose.   

The following should be considered when applying for, accepting, and/or managing grant awards: 

The County Board’s definition of a conflicting special condition is:  

• A new grant is a grant awarded for a purpose that has not been previously supported by grant 

funding. 

 

• Grant Award Agreement Federal/State/Local compliance requirements. 

• If Indirect Costs are allowable, all new grant application budgets should include the County’s 10% de 

minimis indirect cost rate. If not included, the explanation shall be included in the Grant Summary 

Worksheet. 

 

• Departments who apply for grants that require a local match must find the local match within their 

budgets. 

 

• Departments who apply for new grants must understand the special conditions associated with their 

funding and inform the County Board of the conditions in the Resolution, prior to approval. Upon Board 

acceptance and approval, the County Board Administration Staff will log each special condition into the 

Special Conditions System of Register.  

o The County Board’s definition of a conflicting special condition is any special condition of 

funding (outside of standard state/federal conditions) that may prohibit another department’s 

ability to apply for funding.  

 



 

P a g e  11 | 14 

 

• Upon notification of a grant award (new or renewal), departments will submit to the respective 

Committee: 

o Executive Summary and Resolution,  

o Original Grant Award Agreement, 

o Winnebago County Grant Summary Worksheet, 

o And any relevant attachments to the respective Committee.   

 

Upon Committee approval, departments will submit a budget amendment to the Chief Financial Officer to 

amend the respective budget. A 2/3rd vote of all members constituting the County Board is required to amend 

department budgets to reflect grant revenues and expenses (55 ILCS 5/6-1003).  

• Grants will be controlled at the operating budget level based on the County's fiscal year. 
 

• The grant budget will be periodically reviewed by the designated Grant Managers to ensure that the 
revenues and expenditures are consistent with the grant award’s allowable costs.  

• Designated Grant Managers will inform Finance Director of identified sub-award/sub-recipients. 
 

• Grants will be reviewed quarterly, as needed, by the Grant Compliance Officer or Finance Director with 
the Department Head, Elected Official, or designated Grant Managers. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County has an established program for unemployment, liability and workers compensation. To forecast 

expenditures, the County considers claims, retention levels, fixed costs, and fund reserves. 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

The County Treasurer is responsible for the investing of all Winnebago County funds (55 ILCS 5/3-11006). It is 

always prudent for any public unit to have an Investment Policy in place for the purpose of safeguarding funds, 

equitably distributing the investments, and maximizing income of the governmental unit. The following policy 

is adopted for the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office.  

SCOPE OF INVESTMENT POLICY  

This Investment Policy applies to the investment activities of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago 

County Treasurer. This Investment Policy will also apply to any new funds or temporary funds placed under the 

jurisdiction of the Winnebago County Treasurer. The Illinois Compiled Statutes will take precedence except 

where this policy is more restrictive, wherein this policy will take precedence. 

OBJECTIVES 

The purpose of this Investment Policy of the Winnebago County Treasurer is to establish cash management and 

investment guidelines for the stewardship of public funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago County 

Treasurer. The specific objectives of this investment policy will be as follows: 

1. Safety of Principal. 

2. Diversity of investment to avoid unreasonable risks. 



 

P a g e  12 | 14 

 

3. The portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating costs, which may be reasonably 

anticipated. 

4. The highest interest rate available will always be the objective of this policy, combined with safety of 

principal. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require full collateralization of any deposits. 

5. In maintaining its investment portfolio, the Winnebago County Treasurer shall avoid any transaction that 

might impair public confidence in the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office. 

6. The Winnebago County Treasurer will give consideration to the financial institutions positive community 

involvement when consideration is given to the  financial institution to be used as a depository. 

7. All funds will be invested for a period of one day or longer, depending on the requirement for the 

disbursement of funds. 

8. All funds shall be deposited within two working days at prevailing rates or better, in accordance with Illinois 

Compiled Statutes. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

All investment of funds under the control of the Winnebago County Treasurer is the direct responsibility of the 

Winnebago County Treasurer. The Winnebago County Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions and 

shall establish a system of controls of the activities of all subordinates who are directly involved in the assistance 

of such investment activities.  

PRUDENCE 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the" prudent person," and shall be applied 

in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written 

procedures and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for any individual securities 

credit risk or market price changes, provided that deviations from expectation are reported in a timely fashion, 

and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

ACCOUNTING  

All investment transactions shall be recorded by the Winnebago County Treasurer or the Winnebago County 

Treasurer's staff. A report will be generated, at least monthly, listing all active investments, including 

information regarding securities in portfolio by class or type, book value, interest earned and market value as 

of report date. This report will be made available to the Winnebago County Board and Winnebago County 

Treasurer. 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will have the sole responsibility to select which financial institutions will be 

depositories for Winnebago County Treasurer funds. The Winnebago County Treasurer will take into 

consideration security, size, location, condition, service, fees and the community relations involvement of the 

financial institution when choosing a financial institution. 

At no time will the Winnebago County Treasurer investments exceed 65% of the financial institution's capital 

and surplus.  

All financial institutions having any type of financial relationships: deposit investments, loans, etc., are required 

to provide a complete and current "Call Report," required by their appropriate regulatory authority each 

calendar quarter within 30 days of the "Call" request date. 



 

P a g e  13 | 14 

 

INVESTMENT VEHICLES  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will use investments approved for governmental units as set forth in the most 

current issue of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. 

COLLATERAL  

In order to protect the funds of Winnebago County, it will be a standard practice of the Winnebago County 

Treasurer to require that all deposits in financial institutions be collateralized. Collateral shall be held under the 

name of Winnebago County. During the term of the deposit, at least 102% collateralization will be required 

whenever deposits exceed the insured limits of FDIC. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require a signed 

Pledge Agreement between Winnebago County, the Financial Institution, and the Holding Company to be on 

file at all times. 

102% of collateralization of the deposit will be required. Only the following collateral will be accepted: 

• U.S. Government direct securities 

• Obligations of Federal Instrumentalities 

• Obligations of the State of Illinois 

• Obligations of the County of Winnebago 

• Obligations of municipalities located within the County of Winnebago, subject to acceptance by the 

Winnebago County Treasurer 

• Acceptable Collateral as identified in the Illinois Compiled Statutes for use by the Treasurer of the State of 

Illinois 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of 

prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 

for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the possible income to be derived.  

The above standard is established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be applied in the 

context of managing the Winnebago County Treasurer's portfolio, pursuant to the Public Funds Investment Act 

at 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 235/2.5 and other provisions included in that Act, along with all other Statutes 

and Constitutional provisions regarding conflicts of interest and ethical considerations. 

SECURITY CONTROLS 

Only the Winnebago County Treasurer is authorized to establish financial accounts for the office of Winnebago 

County Treasurer. At all times either the Winnebago County Treasurer, singly or signatories as designated by 

the Winnebago County Treasurer, should be authorized to sign on financial accounts of the office of the 

Winnebago County Treasurer.  

ADOPTION   

This investment policy or similar policy has been in effect since January 1, 2022. Last revision March 12, 2022. 

 

 

 



 

P a g e  14 | 14 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET CALENDAR 

Budget Task Date 

Chief Financial Officer and Finance Department to review budget process, refine 
budget requirements, determine budget calendar and prepare preliminary budget 
guidelines 

Feb 1st 
to 

March 10th 

Finance Committee to review Budget Calendar  March 16th 

Finance Committee to approve 2024 Budget Policy & Guidelines April 6th 

County Board to approve 2024 Budget Policy & Guidelines April 13th 

Budget preparation materials are distributed to departments May 3rd 

Initial forecast of Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024 with tax levy options  
to be presented to the Finance Committee   

June 15th 

Departments to submit all budget documents to the Chief Financial Officer June 16th 

Departments to submit Budget & Outcome Goals to the Chief Financial Officer 
 

June 21st 
 

Chief Financial Officer and Administrator to review all preliminary budgets with 
Departments 

June 22nd – 30th 

Recommended budgets are provided to Department Heads/Elected Officials July 7th 

Finance Committee will review department budget presentations (if necessary) 
 

July 20th 
 

Budget to be reviewed by Chairman, Administrator and Chief Financial Officer July 25th 

County Administrator to present recommended budget to the Committee of the 
Whole 

Aug 10th 

Finance Committee to make recommended budget changes (if necessary) Aug 17th 

Truth in Taxation Hearing (we will schedule a date if needed)  

Department Heads and Elected Officials sign off sheet on budgets and capital 
requests due in the Finance Department 

Aug 23rd 

Finance Committee to vote on County Budget Ordinance Aug 31st 

County Board to place balanced Proposed Budget on public display Sept 7th 

County Board to adopt the appropriation and tax levy ordinance/budget Sept 28th 

 



Exhibit B 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

Fiscal Year 2024 

Budget Policy 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Deleted: 3



 

P a g e  2 | 14 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Accounting Basis .................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Budgetary Priorities .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Fund Reserves and Balanced Budgets .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Budget Submittal and Presentation Process ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Revenue Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Expense Estimations ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Planning and Budgets ................................................................................................. 7 

Budget Amendment Process (After Adoption By The Board): ............................................................................................. 8 

Financial Policies ...................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Fiscal Year ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Accounting/ Auditing ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Grants ................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Risk Management ............................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Scope of Investment Policy ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Objectives ........................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Responsibility ..................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Prudence ............................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Accounting ......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Financial Institutions .......................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Investment Vehicles ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Collateral ............................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Security Controls ................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Adoption ............................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Calendar .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: Introduction 3¶
Financial Strength 3¶
Budget Submittal 3¶
Supplemental Requests 3¶
Federal and State Funded Programs 3¶
User Fees and Charges 3¶
Revenue Estimations 4¶
Consumer Price Index 4¶
Fund Reserves 4¶
Alternative Service Delivery & Outsourcing 4¶
Wage Adjustments 4¶
Priorities 5¶
Accounting/ Auditing 5¶
Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies 5¶
Appropriation 6¶
Balanced Budget by Fund 6¶
Budget Presentation 6¶
Capital Budget - Long Term 7¶
Fiscal Year 7¶
Grants 7¶
Investment Policy 8¶
Scope of Investment Policy 8¶
Objectives 8¶
Responsibility 9¶
Prudence 9¶
Accounting 9¶
Financial Institutions 9¶
Investment Vehicles 9¶
Collateral 10¶
Security Controls 10¶
Adoption 10¶
Risk Management 10¶
FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET CALENDAR 11¶
Budget Amendment process (after adoption by the 
Board): 12¶



 

P a g e  3 | 14 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Winnebago County Government operates on policies designed to protect the County's assets and taxpayers' 

interests, provide guidance to employees, and serve the public efficiently. It is the intent that the policy 

statements be used to avoid conflicting goals or activities, which may have a negative impact on the overall 

financial position of the County. The County's system of internal accounting controls is designed to provide 

reasonable assurance that the financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements and maintaining 

accountability for assets and obligations. 

The County's budget process is governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (55 ILCS 5/6) and Winnebago County 

Board Policies (Sec. 2-38 Winnebago County Code of Ordinances). All operating funds (those funds that are 

presented in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report) are appropriated in the "Official Budget". 

Appropriations will be considered the maximum authorization to incur obligations and not a mandate to spend. 

In addressing concerns for maintaining financial strength while protecting the interest of the taxpayer, the 

County Board is implementing the following directives for the development of the fiscal year 2024 budget. 

ACCOUNTING BASIS 

Governmental Funds 

The County prepares financial statements based on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all 

governmental funds in which the revenues are recorded when both measurable and available. The County 

considers revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for 

property taxes, 180 days of the end of the current fiscal policy for certain health department and County 

reimbursable grants and 90 days of the end of the current period for all other amounts. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-

term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund 

liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. 

Proprietary Funds 

The County has two proprietary funds. Expenditures for these funds are budgeted on a full accrual basis of 

accounting.  As such, expenses are recognized when incurred and revenues are recognized when they are 

obligated to the County. 

Under both methods of accounting, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) prescribe that purchases 

are required to be accounted for in the fiscal year in which the item is received or the service performed. Items 

ordered or services performed late in the fiscal year and not received or completed by the end of the fiscal year 

will be applied to the budget of the following year. 

 

 

 

 

 

Moved (insertion) [1]

Deleted: 3

Deleted: :

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto



 

P a g e  4 | 14 

 

BUDGETARY PRIORITIES 

 

Direction is hereby given to the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer to create the fiscal year 

2024 budget with the following priorities: 

 

1. Debt service payments required 

 

2. Contractual payments based on lease agreements, software agreements and other contractual agreements 

 

3. Mandated services at affordable funding levels 

 

4. All operating necessities (Utilities, IMRF, Health Insurance, Liability Insurance) 

 

5. General operating costs to provide services 

 

6. Non-Union employee compensation 

 

7. Capital needs of the organization 

 

8. Meeting the 25% unrestricted reserve requirement of the General Fund and PSST Fund (See Fund Reserves 

and Balanced Budgets Section) 

 

9. Outside agency funding to include non-obligated Host Fee Grants and local matching grants 

 

FUND RESERVES AND BALANCED BUDGETS 

The intent of the Finance Committee is the budget must balance expenditures against available revenues and 

fund balance by fund. Special revenue fund expenditure budgets cannot exceed available fund balance of the 

fund. Special revenue funds with a negative fund balance will not be allowed to submit an expenditure budget 

until the negative fund balance has been eliminated. 

The County has developed a fund reserve policy in which it shall be the intent of the County Board to maintain 

an unrestricted (total of unassigned) fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures 

in the General Fund and the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund. Surpluses in excess of the necessary reserve required 

by this policy shall be transferred to the Capital Projects Fund. In addition, it is the intent of the County Board 

to maintain an unrestricted fund balance equal to three months of budgeted operating expenditures in the River 

Bluff Nursing Home fund. 

 

BUDGET SUBMITTAL AND PRESENTATION PROCESS 

Elected Officials and Department Heads shall be provided budget worksheets with existing levels of funding. 

Based on revenue estimates for the current and next fiscal year, funding levels may be reduced from the current 

year’s appropriations. Elected Officials and Department Heads are encouraged to analyze all services and 

programs for the cost of the programs, citizen demand, and mandates by Federal, State or County law.  

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Moved (insertion) [2]

Deleted: 3

Deleted: The pages that follow provide further definitions 
and guidelines for the development of the fiscal year 2023 
budget, and should be considered as directives from the 
County Board.¶

Moved (insertion) [3]

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Deleted: I

Deleted: .

Deleted: Given the impact of the COVID-19 in fiscal year 
2021 and 2022 fund balances have dropped below the 90 
day (3 month) reserve level in the Public Safety Sales Tax 
Fund. It should be the objective of the 2023 Budget Policy to 
increase the fund balance back to the 90 day reserve level.¶
¶
FINANCIAL STRENGTH¶
The County has been significantly impacted financially by 
the COVID-19 crisis. Revenues have been impacted by 
business closings, unemployment and other factors. The 
balances in the General Fund are above the 90 day reserve 
amount in fiscal year 2022.¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: d



 

P a g e  5 | 14 

 

Exceptions may be considered by the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer on a case-by-case 

basis. 

When an Elected Official/Department Head has completed the required budget forms, a meeting can be 

scheduled (if necessary) with the County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer to review and ensure budget 

policy compliance. Concerns and/or issues should be addressed by the Department Head/Elected Official at this 

time. Any resulting changes to submitted budgets will be communicated to the Finance Office for system entry 

and review. Upon review by County Administrator and Chief Financial Officer, the budget will be scheduled for 

presentation to the Finance Committee per the attached budget calendar. Meetings will be scheduled with the 

Finance Committee (if necessary) for individual departments/Elected Officials to address the Finance 

Committee regarding their individual budget requests. 

Prior to the date the County Board places the budget on layover for public review, the Elected 

Official/Department Head will be required to review the budget as entered in the financial system and sign off 

that all entered information is correct. 

Once the Finance Committee has reviewed departmental budgets, and the recommended supplemental 

requests have been approved, the budget is moved to the whole board to be placed on public display for a 

minimum of fifteen (15) days prior to final approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer and the County Administrator during the normal course of the budget preparation 

process may make budget revisions prior to the final board approval of the budget. It should be noted that 

proposed budget revisions made after the first reading but before final passage shall be documented and 

presented to the County Board for approval as part of the final budget approval. 

 

New for FY2024, Elected Official/Department Heads will be required to submit a five-year plan for capital 

improvements. Guidelines for these budgets are on page 7. 

REVENUE ESTIMATIONS 

The County will project annual revenues on a conservative analytical basis to protect it from short-run 

fluctuations in any one revenue source. In instances where the County is providing non-mandated services and 

the revenue stream(s) is/are not covering the costs of said services, direction will be requested by County 

Administration from the reporting Liaison Committee (and if necessary, the full County Board) on whether said 

service should be allowed to continue and supplemented with County funds. 

Property Tax Assumptions: Winnebago County is mandated to follow the Illinois Property Tax Extension 

Limitation Law (PTELL) by the State of Illinois. PTELL allows governing bodies the ability to cover the costs of 

inflationary increases incurred in their day-to-day operations by increasing their previous year's extension by 

the CPI or 5%, whichever is smallest. For fiscal year 2024 the CPI is 5.0%. During the budget process, County 

Administration will present the increases available if the County Board chooses to capture new growth and/or 

to utilize the CPI increase authorized under PTELL in the calculation of property tax revenues when developing 

the fiscal year 2024 budget. The Finance Committee will inform the Chief Financial Officer of the amount of the 

levy to include in the budget document. 

User Fees and Charges: All user fees and charges should be reviewed by County Administration, Elected Officials 

and Appointed Department Heads on an annual basis to ensure the fee collected is covering the cost of service 

provided (subject to State Statutes). 

Moved (insertion) [4]

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted: Elected Officials and Department Heads must 
provide position descriptions and corresponding wages to 
support the salary line items included in the budget 
worksheet. There is no guarantee staffing will remain at 
current levels.

Formatted: Highlight

Moved (insertion) [5]

Deleted: will

Deleted:  

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Space After:  6 pt, Don't add space

between paragraphs of the same style

Moved (insertion) [6]

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Moved (insertion) [7]

Deleted: Consumer Price Index¶

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: No underline, Font color: Auto

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 3

Moved (insertion) [8]

Deleted: User Fees and Charges¶

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: No underline, Font color: Auto



 

P a g e  6 | 14 

 

The County charges user fees for items and services which benefit a specific user more than the general public. 

State statutes or an indirect cost study determines user fees. Fee studies based on costs are conducted as 

needed to determine the level of fees needed to equal the total cost of providing the service. 

Other FY2024 Revenue Assumptions: 

• Nonrecurring (one-time) revenue sources will be used for operations unless directed for a specific use 

by the County Board. 

• Cannabis Sales and Excise Taxes support the General Fund. 

• All gaming-related revenue, including off-track betting, casino, and video gaming revenues, support the 

Capital Projects Fund. 

• Sale of assets support the Capital Projects Fund. 

• New funding sources with a restricted purpose will be reviewed by the County Board to ensure 

appropriate usage at the department level. Additionally, these funding sources will be identified by a 

designated project number to meet reporting requirements by the funding agency. 

EXPENSE ESTIMATIONS 

Salary and Wage Estimates: Each department will be provided a budget document outlining the employees of 

the department with their rate of pay as of the date of the preparation of the document. It is the responsibility 

of the department to review the list including the position titles and employment status (FT, PT or seasonal). 

The department shall budget for any contractual obligations as outlined in respective bargaining contracts for 

the upcoming year. The department should include any vacant positions that are not included on the list if the 

intent is to fill that position in the upcoming year. 

The Finance Committee will provide the County Administrator the non-union employee wage increase rate to 

include in the budget document. The Finance Committee will make a recommendation no later than the 1st 

Finance Committee meeting in June. Non-bargaining employees are eligible to receive the one-percent longevity 

pay in accordance with County policy and this should be included in the development of the salary and wage 

budgets. 

Employees transferring from one County department to another will be allowed to retain their accrued vacation 

upon transfer. The new department will assume the liability should the employee terminate their employment 

while employed by said department. 

Grant Budgets: Each department should submit a separate budget document for ongoing grant awards by the 

project (award) number. Grant revenue estimates should equal grant expenditure estimates for 

reimbursement-based grants. Grant award performance periods may not align with the County’s fiscal year. In 

such cases, the department should estimate to the best of their ability the expenses that will be incurred for the 

grant program during the County’s fiscal year. Grant budgets should include all applicable expenses as defined 

in the grant award and approved grant budget. 

New grant awards will be budgeted at the time the County Board accepts the award. See further details in the 

Grant Policy and Grant Procedures documents. 

 

 

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: No underline

Moved (insertion) [9]

Deleted: WAGE ADJUSTMENTS¶

Formatted: No underline



 

P a g e  7 | 14 

 

Other FY2024 Expense Assumptions:  

• In the event of loss of Federal or State funding and/or reimbursement for specific services, it is 

understood that Department/Elected Official will be expected to either reduce funded services or 

identify other reductions/revenue increases to offset the losses. Exceptions will be addressed on a case-

by-case basis. 

• Contractual obligations should be included in the budget request and, if applicable, noted as a 

supplemental request. 

• Equipment needs and repairs that do not meet the criteria of a capital request as defined below should 

be included in the departmental operating budgets. 

• All appropriations that have not been expended or appropriated to ongoing capital improvement 

projects shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND BUDGETS 

The CIP budgets are necessary to provide adequate consideration of the County’s short-term and long-term 

needs and strategic goals and evaluate the options and timing availability of funds to address those needs. As 

noted in the Revenue Estimate section of this document, the CIP Fund will be funded through Gaming revenue, 

sale of assets and excess funds in the General and PSST funds. CIP includes major construction, expansion, 

purchase or major repair of buildings and other physical structures.  CIP may also include fleet and equipment 

replacement needs. Per the County asset policy, capital projects should have a component value greater than 

$12,000 and should have a useful life greater than three to five years.  CIP does not include highway 

department projects or equipment funded by grant or other funding sources.   

Each Department Head/Elected Official will submit a list of capital needs for the next five years on the document 

provided for capital requests. Requested projects should be prioritized by the departments. The requesting 

department should note the need for funding of the project. In addition to the cost of completing the project, 

the department should identify any costs to operate and maintain the asset over its useful life. These additional 

expenses would need to be included in the department’s operating budget.  

Only projects included in the first year of the plan will be considered for approval and funding Projects presented 

for future years are shown for planning purposes only. Funding for a capital plan will be reviewed in conjunction 

with the annual budget. Submittal of capital needs does not guarantee funding.  

Approved CIP projects will be appropriated in the Capital Projects Improvement Fund. County Administration 

has developed a team consisting of the County Administrator, Chief Financial Officer and representatives from 

Finance, Purchasing, Facilities, IT and the Sheriff. This team will meet regularly to review and discuss the 

progress of approved projects.  

Capital project appropriations, unlike operating budget appropriations, are typically one-time in nature and the 

project may take multiple years to complete. Budgetary control for these projects will be at the fund and project 

level which differs from operating budgets. Due to the fact that capital projects may cross fiscal years, the 

County Administrator/Chief Financial Officer will have the authority to rollover available project balances to the 

next fiscal year during the budget preparation process. Each previously approved project will be reviewed with 

department heads prior to the calculation of the rollover amount. Factors Administration will consider when 

Moved (insertion) [10]

Deleted: Federal and State Funded Programs¶

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 +

Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: <#>¶
Supplemental Requests¶
Due to anticipated revenue shortfalls in the 2023 budget 
year no additional funding will be provided during the 
budget preparation process.  Exceptions may be 
considered by the County Administrator on a case by case 
basis. Departments with c

Moved up [4]: <#>Exceptions may be considered by the 
County Administrator on a case by case basis. 

Deleted: <#>agreements 

Deleted: <#>may be required to make budget 
adjustments in order to meet contractual obligations.

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Moved (insertion) [11]

Deleted: CAPITAL BUDGET - LONG TERM¶

Deleted: three

Deleted:  

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto



 

P a g e  8 | 14 

 

calculating the rollover amount would include the timing of any remaining payments and estimated completion 

percentage. The current year estimated actuals plus any amounts included in the rollover budget will not exceed 

the amount of the original approved project budget. Administration will not rollover any capital project funds 

which have not had activity for two fiscal years. A listing of project budgets that are to be rolled over will be 

reviewed by the aforementioned Administration team and included in the final budget package as presented to 

the County Board. 

CIP appropriations funding projects belonging to the two Enterprise Funds will be budgeted in those respective 

funds in order to properly track assets according to GAAP and financial reporting. Approval of CIP projects 

related to these funds will require a budget amendment including a plan to transfer funds from the CIP fund to 

the Enterprise fund and expenditures for the project in the Enterprise fund. Actual transfers will only be 

recorded by Finance as related projects are completed. 

BUDGET AMENDMENT PROCESS (AFTER ADOPTION BY THE BOARD): 

All requests for budget amendments must start with a completed Budget Amendment Form (available upon 

request from Finance) submitted to the Chief Financial Officer, who upon review, will work with the requesting 

department head in preparing an ordinance (if required) in the County Board approved format for committee 

and board presentation. 

• The County Board must approve all transfers of budgets between departments or funds by a 2/3rd majority 

vote (14) of the County Board. (Transfers may not be made from certain special purpose funds to other 

funds). 

 

• Additional (emergency) appropriations must also be approved by a 2/3rd majority vote (14) of the County 

Board. 

 

• Budgetary control over expenditures exists at the object-class-level (character code). Line item transfers 

between object-class-level (character code) or object codes may be requested by the department and 

approved by the Chief Financial Officer, provided the total amount appropriated by the County Board for 

the respective department (org code) is not exceeded. 

 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 

The following pages include financial policies that have been approved by the County Board. These policies 

should be considered in addition to the Budget Development Guidelines in completion of budgets. 

FISCAL YEAR 

The County's fiscal year is October 1st through September 30th. (Set by County Board per 55 ILCS 5/6-1-001). 

ACCOUNTING/ AUDITING 

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants (55 ILCS 5/6-31003). An 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report shall be prepared according to the criteria set by the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA). The County follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as 

set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Formatted ...

Formatted: Space Before:  5 pt, After:  10 pt, Line

spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Font:

Moved (insertion) [12]

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: P…OCESS (AA…TER AA…OPTION BB… TT ...

Deleted: accessed on the Finance Department page of the 
County website

Deleted: , which is the budgetary level of control over 
expenditures, 

Deleted: <#>The Chief Financial Officer and the County 
Administrator during the normal course of the budget 
preparation process may make budget revisions prior to 
the final board approval of the budget. It should be noted 
that budget revisions made after the first reading but ...

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Moved (insertion) [13]

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Red

Moved up [10]: FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDED 

Formatted ...

Moved up [8]: USER FEES AND CHARGES¶

Formatted ...

Moved up [6]: REVENUE ESTIMATIONS¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: Nonrecurring (one-time) revenue sources will ...

Moved up [7]: CONSUMER PRICE INDEX¶

Formatted ...

Moved up [3]: FUND RESERVES¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: ALTERNATIVE SERVICE DELIVERY & ...

Moved up [9]: WAGE ADJUSTMENTS¶

Formatted ...

Moved up [2]: PRIORITIES¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: Comprehensive 



 

P a g e  9 | 14 

 

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING POLICIES  

The accounting policies of the County of Winnebago, Illinois will conform to generally accepted accounting 

principles as applicable to governmental units. The accepted standard setting body for establishing 

governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB). It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a self-balancing set of accounts on an on going basis to 

be closed quarterly. The general ledger will be closed by the Finance department no later than 45 days after 

month end. The books shall remain open 90 days after the fiscal year end. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a program of internal controls to safeguard all assets and ensure 

effective and efficient use of all assets. It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to establish a formal 

set of "best practice" internal controls. In addition, the County Auditor shall ensure that all departments comply 

with those controls.  

It shall also be the intent for the independent auditor to review the system of internal controls and report any 

weaknesses detected to the Board as part of the annual audit. 

It shall be the intent of the County to utilize fund accounting principles and generally accepted accounting 

practices in the recording of all financial transactions. The general ledger shall be maintained on a cash basis, 

with the intent to move to an accrual basis on a quarterly basis. The Finance Committee will be provided with 

budget versus actual revenue and expenditure reports on a quarterly basis. 

It shall be the intent of the County to prepare annually an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to be 

presented to the Board no later than 180 days after year-end. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

should be audited by an independent CPA firm experienced in governmental auditing. It shall be the further 

intent of the County to present its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to the Government Finance Officers 

Association to receive the Certificate of Excellence award in financial reporting. If at any time the County will 

not receive an unqualified opinion from the CPA firm, the CPA firm and the Finance Director will notify the Board 

prior to the issuance of the report. 

It shall be the intent of the County to maintain a capital asset ledger of all permanent assets acquired. The 

Finance department will maintain these asset records on an on-going basis to ensure proper controls and report 

annually regarding these records to the Board. No asset will be considered fixed unless its value or component 

value exceeds $12,000 dollars or in the case of infrastructure assets purchased or acquired with an original cost 

of $50,000 or more. 

Depreciation will be charged on all capital assets. This policy is consistent with the requirements of GASB 

Statement No. 34. Depreciation will be recorded on a straight-line basis over the normal useful life of the asset. 

It shall be the intent of the County to manage all accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are created by 

operations in certain departments and offices. In general, they arise at the renewal of a permit or license from 

departments such as Health, River Bluff Nursing Home or Transportation. The department or office that is 

responsible for the billing is responsible for collections and managing receivables. Consistent with good financial 

management, each department and office will age their receivables. Departments and Offices shall continue 

collection efforts. 

The Finance department remits vendor payments on a regular schedule twice a month. Vendor payments are 

released by the County Clerk’s office per the defined schedule. Emergency requests for payment are considered 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: Comprehensive 

Deleted: Comprehensive 

Deleted: Comprehensive 



 

P a g e  10 | 14 

 

on a case-by-case basis. All remittances will be mailed unless there is a business purpose requiring a department 

to obtain the check at which time a release form will need to be signed. 

It is the intent of the County to comply with the modified accrual basis of accounting, in which revenues are 

recorded when they are both measurable and available. The County considers revenue to be available if they 

are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for property taxes, 180 days of the end of the 

current fiscal period for certain health department and County reimbursable grants, and 90 days of the end of 

the current fiscal period for all other amounts. 

GRANTS 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all grant-funded programs or projects are managed according to the 

terms set forth in the grant agreement, Winnebago County Grant Administration Policies and Procedures and 

other applicable County policies and procedures. To inform the County Board of the value of a new grant 

program, the Board must have full knowledge of the total cost and/or impact of the program and its funding 

sources. It is a requirement that departments administrating grants are familiar with the grant administration 

policies and procedures; in addition to individual grant requirements.  

A grant is an amount of money that a government or other institution gives to an individual or to an organization 

for a particular purpose.   

The following should be considered when applying for, accepting, and/or managing grant awards: 

The County Board’s definition of a conflicting special condition is:  

• A new grant is a grant awarded for a purpose that has not been previously supported by grant 

funding. 

 

• Grant Award Agreement Federal/State/Local compliance requirements. 

• If Indirect Costs are allowable, all new grant application budgets should include the County’s 10% de 

minimis indirect cost rate. If not included, the explanation shall be included in the Grant Summary 

Worksheet. 

 

• Departments who apply for grants that require a local match must find the local match within their 

budgets. 

 

• Departments who apply for new grants must understand the special conditions associated with their 

funding and inform the County Board of the conditions in the Resolution, prior to approval. Upon Board 

acceptance and approval, the County Board Administration Staff will log each special condition into the 

Special Conditions System of Register.  

o The County Board’s definition of a conflicting special condition is any special condition of 

funding (outside of standard state/federal conditions) that may prohibit another department’s 

ability to apply for funding.  

 

Deleted: APPROPRIATION¶

Moved up [1]: All operating funds are appropriated in 
the "Official Budget". Appropriations will be considered 
the maximum authorization to incur obligations and not a 
mandate to spend.¶

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Deleted: BALANCED BUDGET BY FUND¶

The intent of the Finance Committee is the budget must 
balance expenditures against available revenues and fund 
balance by fund.¶

BUDGET PRESENTATION¶

Moved up [5]: When an Elected Official/Department 
Head has completed the required budget forms, a meeting 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Moved up [11]: CAPITAL BUDGET - LONG TERM¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Moved up [13]: FISCAL YEAR¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto

Deleted: The importance of preparing and implementing a ...

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Strikethrough

Moved (insertion) [14]

Deleted: Award 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Moved (insertion) [15]

Deleted:  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶ ...

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶



 

P a g e  11 | 14 

 

• Upon notification of a grant award (new or renewal), departments will submit to the respective 

Committee: 

o Executive Summary and Resolution,  

o Original Grant Award Agreement, 

o Winnebago County Grant Summary Worksheet, 

o And any relevant attachments to the respective Committee.   

 

Upon Committee approval, departments will submit a budget amendment to the Chief Financial Officer to 

amend the respective budget. A 2/3rd vote of all members constituting the County Board is required to amend 

department budgets to reflect grant revenues and expenses (55 ILCS 5/6-1003).  

• Grants will be controlled at the operating budget level based on the County's fiscal year. 

• The grant budget will be periodically reviewed by the designated Grant Managers to ensure that the 
revenues and expenditures are consistent with the grant award’s allowable costs.  

• Designated Grant Managers will inform Finance Director of identified sub-award/sub-recipients. 
 

• Grants will be reviewed quarterly, as needed, by the Grant Compliance Officer or Finance Director with 
the Department Head, Elected Official, or designated Grant Managers. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County has an established program for unemployment, liability and workers compensation. To forecast 

expenditures, the County considers claims, retention levels, fixed costs, and fund reserves. 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

The County Treasurer is responsible for the investing of all Winnebago County funds (55 ILCS 5/3-11006). It is 

always prudent for any public unit to have an Investment Policy in place for the purpose of safeguarding funds, 

equitably distributing the investments, and maximizing income of the governmental unit. The following policy 

is adopted for the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office.  

SCOPE OF INVESTMENT POLICY  

This Investment Policy applies to the investment activities of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago 

County Treasurer. This Investment Policy will also apply to any new funds or temporary funds placed under the 

jurisdiction of the Winnebago County Treasurer. The Illinois Compiled Statutes will take precedence except 

where this policy is more restrictive, wherein this policy will take precedence. 

OBJECTIVES 

The purpose of this Investment Policy of the Winnebago County Treasurer is to establish cash management and 

investment guidelines for the stewardship of public funds under the jurisdiction of the Winnebago County 

Treasurer. The specific objectives of this investment policy will be as follows: 

1. Safety of Principal. 

2. Diversity of investment to avoid unreasonable risks. 

3. The portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating costs, which may be reasonably 

anticipated. 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: an 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: as well as the

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted:  Grant Award Summary, award,

Deleted:  a

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Bulleted + Level: 2 +

Aligned at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left:  1", Add

space between paragraphs of the same style

Deleted: ¶
¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶ ...

Moved up [15]: Departments who apply for grants that 

Moved up [14]: If Indirect Costs are allowable, all new 

Deleted: ¶ ...

Deleted: t "operating-budget"

Deleted: County Administrator and Finance Director

Deleted: as

Deleted: ¶ ...

Deleted: To manage County administrative costs, it shall ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Deleted: semi-annually by the County Administrator or ...

Moved (insertion) [16]

Formatted ...

Formatted: Heading 1

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt



 

P a g e  12 | 14 

 

4. The highest interest rate available will always be the objective of this policy, combined with safety of 

principal. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require full collateralization of any deposits. 

5. In maintaining its investment portfolio, the Winnebago County Treasurer shall avoid any transaction that 

might impair public confidence in the Winnebago County Treasurer's Office. 

6. The Winnebago County Treasurer will give consideration to the financial institutions positive community 

involvement when consideration is given to the  financial institution to be used as a depository. 

7. All funds will be invested for a period of one day or longer, depending on the requirement for the 

disbursement of funds. 

8. All funds shall be deposited within two working days at prevailing rates or better, in accordance with Illinois 

Compiled Statutes. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

All investment of funds under the control of the Winnebago County Treasurer is the direct responsibility of the 

Winnebago County Treasurer. The Winnebago County Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions and 

shall establish a system of controls of the activities of all subordinates who are directly involved in the assistance 

of such investment activities.  

PRUDENCE 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the" prudent person," and shall be applied 

in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written 

procedures and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for any individual securities 

credit risk or market price changes, provided that deviations from expectation are reported in a timely fashion, 

and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

ACCOUNTING  

All investment transactions shall be recorded by the Winnebago County Treasurer or the Winnebago County 

Treasurer's staff. A report will be generated, at least monthly, listing all active investments, including 

information regarding securities in portfolio by class or type, book value, interest earned and market value as 

of report date. This report will be made available to the Winnebago County Board and Winnebago County 

Treasurer. 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS  

The Winnebago County Treasurer will have the sole responsibility to select which financial institutions will be 

depositories for Winnebago County Treasurer funds. The Winnebago County Treasurer will take into 

consideration security, size, location, condition, service, fees and the community relations involvement of the 

financial institution when choosing a financial institution. 

At no time will the Winnebago County Treasurer investments exceed 65% of the financial institution's capital 

and surplus.  

All financial institutions having any type of financial relationships: deposit investments, loans, etc., are required 

to provide a complete and current "Call Report," required by their appropriate regulatory authority each 

calendar quarter within 30 days of the "Call" request date. 

INVESTMENT VEHICLES  

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt



 

P a g e  13 | 14 

 

The Winnebago County Treasurer will use investments approved for governmental units as set forth in the most 

current issue of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. 

COLLATERAL  

In order to protect the funds of Winnebago County, it will be a standard practice of the Winnebago County 

Treasurer to require that all deposits in financial institutions be collateralized. Collateral shall be held under the 

name of Winnebago County. During the term of the deposit, at least 102% collateralization will be required 

whenever deposits exceed the insured limits of FDIC. The Winnebago County Treasurer will require a signed 

Pledge Agreement between Winnebago County, the Financial Institution, and the Holding Company to be on 

file at all times. 

102% of collateralization of the deposit will be required. Only the following collateral will be accepted: 

• U.S. Government direct securities 

• Obligations of Federal Instrumentalities 

• Obligations of the State of Illinois 

• Obligations of the County of Winnebago 

• Obligations of municipalities located within the County of Winnebago, subject to acceptance by the 

Winnebago County Treasurer 

• Acceptable Collateral as identified in the Illinois Compiled Statutes for use by the Treasurer of the State of 

Illinois 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of 

prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 

for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the possible income to be derived.  

The above standard is established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be applied in the 

context of managing the Winnebago County Treasurer's portfolio, pursuant to the Public Funds Investment Act 

at 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 235/2.5 and other provisions included in that Act, along with all other Statutes 

and Constitutional provisions regarding conflicts of interest and ethical considerations. 

SECURITY CONTROLS 

Only the Winnebago County Treasurer is authorized to establish financial accounts for the office of Winnebago 

County Treasurer. At all times either the Winnebago County Treasurer, singly or signatories as designated by 

the Winnebago County Treasurer, should be authorized to sign on financial accounts of the office of the 

Winnebago County Treasurer.  

ADOPTION   

This investment policy or similar policy has been in effect since January 1, 2022. Last revision March 12, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: ¶
¶

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Moved up [16]: Risk Management¶
¶
¶
¶

¶

The County has an established program for 
unemployment, liability and workers compensation. To 
forecast expenditures, the County considers claims, 
retention levels, fixed costs, and fund reserves.¶

Deleted: ¶

¶

¶



 

P a g e  14 | 14 

 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET CALENDAR 

Budget Task Date 

Chief Financial Officer and Finance Department to review budget process, refine 
budget requirements, determine budget calendar and prepare preliminary budget 
guidelines 

Feb 1st 
to 

March 10th 

Finance Committee to review Budget Calendar  March 16th 

Finance Committee to approve 2024 Budget Policy & Guidelines April 6th 

County Board to approve 2024 Budget Policy & Guidelines April 13th 

Budget preparation materials are distributed to departments May 3rd 

Initial forecast of Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024 with tax levy options  
to be presented to the Finance Committee   

June 15th 

Departments to submit all budget documents to the Chief Financial Officer June 16th 

Departments to submit Budget & Outcome Goals to the Chief Financial Officer 
 

June 21st 
 

Chief Financial Officer and Administrator to review all preliminary budgets with 
Departments 

June 22nd – 30th 

Recommended budgets are provided to Department Heads/Elected Officials July 7th 

Finance Committee will review department budget presentations (if necessary) 
 

July 20th 
 

Budget to be reviewed by Chairman, Administrator and Chief Financial Officer July 25th 

County Administrator to present recommended budget to the Committee of the 
Whole 

Aug 10th 

Finance Committee to make recommended budget changes (if necessary) Aug 17th 

Truth in Taxation Hearing (we will schedule a date if needed)  

Department Heads and Elected Officials sign off sheet on budgets and capital 
requests due in the Finance Department 

Aug 23rd 

Finance Committee to vote on County Budget Ordinance Aug 31st 

County Board to place balanced Proposed Budget on public display Sept 7th 

County Board to adopt the appropriation and tax levy ordinance/budget Sept 28th 

 

Formatted ...

Deleted: ISCAL…SCAL YEAR…AR 20243…BUDGET…DGET ...

Formatted Table ...

Deleted:  …eview  ...

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 2…n
...

Deleted: 2…3 and 2023 ...

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 7

Formatted ...

Deleted: 0th

Deleted: 6

Deleted: Finance Committee will review department ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: July 7th

Deleted: Finance Committee will review department ...

Deleted: July 21st

Deleted: Budget to be reviewed by Chairman, ...

Deleted: July 25th

Deleted: County Administrator to present recommended ...

Deleted: Aug 4th

Deleted: Committee of the Whole immediately following ...

Deleted: Aug 11th

Deleted: Finance Committee to make recommended ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: Aug 18th

Deleted: Truth in Taxation Hearing (if needed)

Formatted ...

Deleted: Aug 18th

Deleted: County Board to place balanced Proposed Budget ...

Deleted: Sept 8th

Deleted: County Board to adopt the appropriation and tax ...

Deleted: Sept 29th

Deleted: ¶ ...

Moved up [12]: BUDGET AMENDMENT PROCESS (AFTER 

Deleted: ¶



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 
 
Prepared By:   Ann Johns 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 6, 2023 
Ordinance Title:   Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for a Buyer Position 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
Board Meeting Date:    April 13, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $41,900 
If not, explain funding source:   General Fund Reserve 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   14500 / General Fund Purchasing Salaries and Office Equipment  
FY2023 Budget Impact: $41,900 

 
Background Information: The Winnebago County Purchasing Department is requesting a 
budget amendment to use funds from the General Fund Reserve. We intend on hiring an 
employee for the position of Buyer, in response to the increase of ARPA, CIP and Forest 
Preserve bids and purchasing requests we are experiencing.   The budget will be used to fund 
this position for the remaining five months of the current year.  Also included is Office 
Equipment 42115 - ($500) (Mitel phone equipment) and Non-Capital Computer Equipment 
42117 - ($3400).  There are also salary adjustments for staff included in the overall Salary line 
item for a total Salary 41110 request - ($38,000).  
 
Recommendation: Patrick Thompson and David Rickert recommend the hiring of a Buyer 
position for the Department. 
  
Contract/Agreement:  Not Applicable 
 
Legal Review:    Not Applicable    
 
Follow-Up:    Not Applicable 

        



1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance: April 6, 2023 
 Lay Over: April 13, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: April 27, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for a Buyer Position 

  
WHEREAS, The Purchasing Department has found itself in need of a buyer due to the 

increased projects associated with ARPA, CIP and Forest Preserve bids, 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-018 Purchasing Dept Employee. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                      JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



3/28/2023
Purcashing Department Ann Johns

0001 General Fund

Department Org 
Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

14500 41110 Regular  Salaries $256,466 $0 $256,466 $38,000 $294,466
14500 42115 Non-Capital Equipment $0 $0 $0 $500 $500
14500 42117 Non-Capital Computer Equipment $0 $0 $0 $3,400 $3,400

Revenue

$41,900
Reason budget amendment is required:

$41,900

Revenue Source:
General Fund Reserve

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Due to increased purchasing request activity, the Purchasing Department is requesting funds to add an employee and outfit them with technology 
equipment.

23-018

14500 PurchasingDEPT. BUDGET NO.

Impact to Fiscal Year 2023 budget:



    Resolution Executive Summary 

     

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By:  David J. Rickert 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: 4-6-2023

Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing a Salary Adjustment for the Winnebago 
County Supervisor of Assessments 

County Code:      N\A 

Board Meeting Date: 4-13-2023

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? Not Applicable    Appropriation Amount: Not Applicable 
If not, explain funding source: Not Applicable  
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Not Applicable    Budget Impact: Not Applicable 

Background 
Information: 

On October 27, 2022, the Winnebago County Board approved the 
reappointment of Thomas Hodges, as Winnebago County Supervisor 
of Assessments for a four-year term from November 8, 2022 to 
November 8, 2026, with an annual salary of $93,636.14. The Finance 
Committee of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
having conferred with the County Administration, recommends that 
the annual salary of the Supervisor of Assessments be adjusted to 
$114,188.00, Starting on 10-1-2023.  

Recommendation: Administration supports this resolution 

Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review:   States Attorney’s Office did review this proposal 

Follow-Up: Will be included in fiscal year 2024 budget 

http://www.wincoil.us/


    County Board Meeting: April 13, 2023 
  

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2023 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SALARY ADJUSTMENT FOR THE  

WINNEBAGO COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTS   
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/3-40 (Code), provides that the annual 
salary of the supervisor of assessments is fixed by the county board subject to a minimum amount 
depending on the population of the county; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3-40 of the Code further provides that if the Department of Revenue of 
the State of Illinois determines that the total assessed value of property in a county, as equalized by 
the supervisor of assessments under Section 9-210, is between 31 1/3% and 35 1/3% of the total fair 
cash value of property in the county, subject to appropriation, the Department shall reimburse the 
county monthly from the Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund 50% of the amount of salary the 
county paid to the officer for the preceding month; and  
 

WHEREAS, the minimum amount for Winnebago County, Illinois (County) falls into the 
category of “in counties with 200,000 or more but less than 300,000 inhabitants, not less than 
$13,000” and the County meets the parameters for 50% reimbursement by the Department; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on October 27, 2022, the Winnebago County Board approved the 
reappointment of Thomas Hodges, as Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments for a four-year 
term from November 8, 2022 to November 8, 2026, with an annual salary of $93,636.14; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, having conferred with the County Administration, recommends that the annual salary of the 
Supervisor of Assessments be adjusted to $114,188.00, effected 10-1-2023.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the annual salary for the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments is 
hereby authorized, set and adjusted from $93,636.14 to $114,188.00, effective October 1, 2023. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Treasurer, County Auditor, 
County Board Office, Director of Human Resources and the Supervisor of Assessments.  



            Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
¹Level of Assessments as determined by the Illinois Department of Revenue is between 31 1/3% & 35 1/3% 
²Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U year over inflation  
³Based on the February 2023 State of Illinois Reimbursement from the Illinois Department of Revenue 

 

 

Memorandum 
Date: March, 23, 2023 
To: County Chairman, Joseph Chiarelli & County Administrator, Patrick Thompson 
From: Supervisor of Assessments, Tom Hodges 
Re: Compensation Adjustment for Supervisor of Assessments 

 
Please let this memo serve as a humble request to the Winnebago County Board to review and adjust 
the salary allocated to the position of Supervisor of Assessments in order to ensure that it is equitable 
with other Chief County Assessment Officers (CCAO) in similar jurisdictions throughout the State of 
Illinois. One item to note is that pursuant to Section 3-40 of the Illinois Property Tax Code, 50% of the 
salary for the position in question is reimbursed monthly by the State of Illinois as long as certain metrics 
are acheived¹. 
 
Winnebago County, according to the 2020 census, is the 7th most populous county in the State of Illinois. 
Currently, the salary of the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments is ranked 20th³ in the State of 
Illinois. When viewing the salary per resident of the ten most similar counties based on population (5 
larger & 5 smaller), the median salary per resident is $0.40. This would equate to an annual salary of 
$114,188. 
 
I respectfully request that the Winnebago County Board set the annual salary for the Supervisor of 
Assessments to $114,188 with future increases that reflect those increases given to other non-
bargaining County Employees. This would result in a County expenditure increase of $10,275.93 
($46,818.07 to $57,094) and would allow the County to leverage the State’s reimbursement funds to 
pay a competitive wage in relation to similarly sized jurisdictions.  



County
CCAO Annual 

Salary¹
Population²

Salary per 
Resident

County
CCAO Annual 

Salary¹
Population²

Salary per 
Resident

DUPAGE     $160,117.92 934,094 $0.17 KNOX     $61,359.84 50,193 $1.22
LAKE     $155,902.32 714,484 $0.22 LAWRENCE     $60,000.00 15,465 $3.88
KANE     $146,603.76 518,648 $0.28 PIKE     $59,416.08 14,923 $3.98
JOHNSON     $130,000.32 13,238 $9.82 GALLATIN     $59,310.00 5,038 $11.77
SHELBY     $126,660.00 21,160 $5.99 WHITE     $58,765.68 13,959 $4.21
MACOUPIN     $125,297.76 45,152 $2.78 EDWARDS     $58,184.16 6,233 $9.33
MCHENRY     $121,836.00 310,749 $0.39 MARSHALL     $58,000.08 11,781 $4.92
WILL     $120,000.00 696,403 $0.17 MOULTRIE     $57,915.36 14,634 $3.96
MASSAC     $116,689.92 14,280 $8.17 MONTGOMERY     $57,500.16 28,482 $2.02
COLES     $110,000.16 47,542 $2.31 EDGAR     $57,253.92 16,998 $3.37
MADISON     $109,948.80 266,112 $0.41 MCDONOUGH     $57,000.00 27,743 $2.05
SANGAMON     $105,004.32 196,759 $0.53 PUTNAM     $55,860.96 5,638 $9.91
MCLEAN     $104,209.92 171,455 $0.61 BROWN     $55,500.24 6,330 $8.77
LA SALLE     $100,042.08 109,986 $0.91 CLARK     $55,000.08 15,587 $3.53
CASS     $96,947.04 13,058 $7.42 HAMILTON     $54,727.20 8,021 $6.82
PEORIA     $95,120.16 182,439 $0.52 WAYNE     $54,621.12 16,250 $3.36
KENDALL     $95,000.16 130,757 $0.73 MERCER     $54,207.12 15,779 $3.44
JEFFERSON     $94,800.24 37,362 $2.54 WARREN     $54,000.00 16,887 $3.20
WINNEBAGO     $93,636.24 285,471 $0.33 HENDERSON     $53,915.04 6,485 $8.31
WILLIAMSON     $91,534.08 62,271 $1.47 ALEXANDER     $52,000.08 5,488 $9.48
DEKALB     $90,625.44 100,922 $0.90 RICHLAND     $51,633.84 15,876 $3.25
CHAMPAIGN     $89,249.76 206,583 $0.43 POPE     $51,225.12 3,820 $13.41
GRUNDY     $87,393.60 52,364 $1.67 CUMBERLAND     $51,042.00 10,528 $4.85
ROCK ISLAND     $86,698.56 144,694 $0.60 SCOTT     $48,420.00 4,923 $9.84
WHITESIDE     $85,680.00 55,932 $1.53 STARK     $44,678.16 5,436 $8.22
TAZEWELL     $85,000.08 131,977 $0.64 WABASH     $41,800.08 11,414 $3.66
HARDIN     $83,652.00 3,700 $22.61 IROQUOIS     $21,547.44 27,362 $0.79
MORGAN     $83,607.12 33,189 $2.52
MONROE     $83,537.76 34,732 $2.41
KANKAKEE     $82,740.96 108,104 $0.77
MACON     $79,500.00 104,331 $0.76
LEE     $79,102.56 34,373 $2.30
DEWITT     $78,810.48 16,653 $4.73
SALINE     $78,034.08 23,869 $3.27
JACKSON     $77,502.00 53,676 $1.44
VERMILION     $77,265.12 74,953 $1.03
BOONE     $75,377.04 53,592 $1.41
LIVINGSTON     $74,300.16 35,902 $2.07
MASON     $74,214.96 13,225 $5.61
CLINTON     $73,967.04 37,048 $2.00
ADAMS     $73,830.96 65,878 $1.12
HENRY     $72,500.16 49,412 $1.47
LOGAN     $72,000.00 28,238 $2.55
CARROLL     $71,646.00 15,586 $4.60
CHRISTIAN     $70,353.12 34,038 $2.07
JO DAVIESS     $70,303.92 21,995 $3.20
FULTON     $69,480.00 34,022 $2.04
DOUGLAS     $69,349.44 19,708 $3.52
EFFINGHAM     $69,000.96 34,576 $2.00
OGLE     $68,900.16 51,787 $1.33
RANDOLPH     $68,000.16 30,632 $2.22
MARION     $67,200.24 37,781 $1.78
BUREAU     $67,158.96 33,338 $2.01
GREENE     $66,935.04 12,187 $5.49
PIATT     $65,170.80 16,664 $3.91
STEPHENSON     $65,000.16 44,817 $1.45
UNION     $64,945.92 17,259 $3.76
SCHUYLER     $64,887.12 6,953 $9.33
MENARD     $64,832.16 12,343 $5.25
HANCOCK     $63,282.96 17,750 $3.57
JERSEY     $63,202.08 21,533 $2.94
FAYETTE     $62,667.12 21,514 $2.91
CLAY     $62,628.00 13,313 $4.70
CRAWFORD     $62,510.16 18,825 $3.32
PERRY     $62,500.08 21,158 $2.95
WASHINGTON     $61,450.08 13,827 $4.44

CCAO Salary - Statewide

¹Based upon February 2023 State of Illinois Reimbursement
²Based upon 2020 Census

County
CCAO Annual 

Salary¹
Population²   

Salary per 
Resident

DUPAGE     $160,117.92 934,094 $0.17
LAKE     $155,902.32 714,484 $0.22
WILL     $120,000.00 696,403 $0.17
KANE     $146,603.76 518,648 $0.28
MCHENRY     $121,836.00 310,749 $0.39
WINNEBAGO     $93,636.24 285,471 $0.33
MADISON     $109,948.80 266,112 $0.41
CHAMPAIGN     $89,249.76 206,583 $0.43
SANGAMON     $105,004.32 196,759 $0.53
PEORIA     $95,120.16 182,439 $0.52
MCLEAN     $104,209.92 171,455 $0.61

Median Salary per Resident (Not incl. WinnCo.)= $0.40 
285,471 X $0.40 = $114,188

10 Most Similar Counties

Previous WinnCo. CCAO Salary 
2018 = $105,227.20

Year
CPI‐U Year % 

Change
2018 2.4
2019 1.8
2020 1.2
2021 4.7
2022 8

Year
Corresponding 

Salary
2018 $105,227.20
2019 $107,752.65
2020 $109,692.20
2021 $111,886.04
2022 $117,144.69
2023 $126,516.26

thodges
Highlight



    Resolution Executive Summary 

     

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By:  David J. Rickert 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: 4-6-2023

Resolution Title:   Resolution to Approve Payment of Stipends to the Regional  
Superintendent and Assistant Regional Superintendent of Schools 
(Boone and Winnebago Counties) 

County Code:      N\A 

Board Meeting Date: 4-13-2023

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? Not Applicable    Appropriation Amount: Not Applicable 
If not, explain funding source: Not Applicable  
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Not Applicable    Budget Impact: Not Applicable 

Background 
Information: 

The County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to 
provide stipends to the Regional Superintendent and Assistant 
Regional Superintendent of Schools (Boone and Winnebago Counties) 
in the total amounts of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) and 
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00), respectively. The Resolution 
shall be in full force and effect October 1st, 2023. 

Recommendation: Administration supports this resolution 

Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review:   States Attorney’s Office did review this proposal 

Follow-Up: Will be included in fiscal year 2024 budget 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 COUNTY BOARD MEETING: APRIL 13, 2023 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2023 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: JOHN BUTITTA  

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PAYMENT OF STIPENDS TO THE REGIONAL 
SUPERINTENDENT AND ASSISTANT REGIONAL SUPERINTENDENT OF 

SCHOOLS (BOONE AND WINNEBAGO COUNTIES) 

WHEREAS, Section 3-2.5 of the School Code, [105 ILCS 5/3-2.5)] provides that 
“County boards may provide for additional compensation for the regional superintendent or the 
assistant regional superintendents, or for each of them, to be paid quarterly from the county 
treasury” (School Code); and  

WHEREAS, both the Regional Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent (Boone and 
Winnebago Counties) have taken on additional duties and responsibilities within the Regional 
Office of Education (Boone and Winnebago Counties) and the Office shall have sufficient 
funding within its fiscal year 2024 budget for both stipends and future stipends shall be 
budgeted; and  

WHEREAS, the stipends for the Regional Superintendent and Assistant Regional 
Superintendent of Schools shall be paid on a pro-rated quarterly basis; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to provide 
the stipends to the Regional Superintendent and Assistant Regional Superintendent of Schools 
(Boone and Winnebago Counties) in the total amounts of twenty-five thousand dollars 
($25,000.00) and fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00), respectively. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that it approves payment of the stipends to the Regional Superintendent and Assistant 
Regional Superintendent of Schools (Boone and Winnebago Counties) in the total amounts of 
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) and fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) respectively, 
which shall be paid on a pro-rated quarterly basis, and any future stipends shall be budgeted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
October 1st, 2023. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Finance Department and the 
Regional Superintendent of Schools (Boone and Winnebago Counties).  



              Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 







 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 
 
Prepared By:   Dan Magers 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  April 6, 2023 
Ordinance Title:   Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for procurement of Karpel 

Solutions Case Management System for the State’s Attorney’s and 
Public Defender’s Offices 

County Code:       Not Applicable  
Board Meeting Date:    April 13, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $244,725 
If not, explain funding source:   Pretrail Fairness Act Contingency Budget 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   40100 / 40101 /40102  PSST Contingency Budget / PSST State’s 
Atty / PSST Public Defender  
FY2023 Budget Impact: $0.00 

 
Background Information: The Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office, Public 
Defender’s Office, and Department of Information Technology are requesting a budget 
amendment to receive funds from the Pretrial Fairness Act funding.  These funds will be used to 
procure Karpel Solutions Case Management System.  There is a necessity to increase 
efficiencies and cohesion; as current system “FullCase” is outdated, not meeting the growing 
needs, and at “end of life” stage. 
 
Recommendation: State’s Attorney J. Hanley 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:     
 
Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

        



1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance: April 6, 2023 
 Lay Over: April 13, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: April 27, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for a Budget Amendment 
 procurement of Karpel Solutions Case Management System  

 
WHEREAS, The State’s Attorney’s Office and the Public Defender’s Office are in need of a 

new case management system as their current one is at its end of life, 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-019 Karpel Case Management System. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                      JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



3/28/2023
State's Attorney, and Public Defender Dan Magers

0101 PSST Fund

Department Org 
Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

40100 41999 Contingency Budget $2,250,000 ($36,392) $2,213,608 ($244,725) $1,968,883
40101 43167 Software Subscription $0 $0 $0 $180,600 $180,600
40102 43167 Software Subscription $0 $0 $0 $64,125 $64,125

Revenue

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

$0

Revenue Source:
PSST Pretrial Fairness Act Contingency Budget

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The State's Attorney's Office and Public Defender's Office are in need of a new court management system as their old one FullCase software has reached 
it's end of life and is no longer being supported.

23-019

40100 Public Safety Sales Tax 
40101 State's Attorney      
40102 Public DefenderDEPT. BUDGET NO.

Impact to Fiscal Year 2023 budget:



PROSECUTORbyKarpel (PbyK)

Software Product / Licensing $225,750
Installation Services $15,350
Professional Services $62,100
Training Services $26,400
Customization Services $15,000
Estimated Travel Expenses $16,300
Year 1 Support Services $67,725
Sub Total $428,625

20% Contingency $85,725
Estimated Total $514,350

Total Due at signing (FY23) $180,600

Total Due in FY24 $401,475
Projected Ongoing Annual Maintenance $67,725

DEFENDERbyKarpel (DbyK)

Software Product / Licensing $67,500
Installation Services $8,250
Professional Services $31,700
Training Services $12,000
Customization Services $15,000
Estimated Travel Expenses $5,400
Year 1 Support Services $30,375
Sub Total $170,225

20% Contingency $34,045
Estimated Total $204,270

Total Due at signging (FY23) $64,125

Total Due in FY24 $170,520
Projected Ongoing Annual Maintenance $30,375

Combined Total Due at Signing (FY23) $244,725
Combined Total Due in FY24 (Includes Maintenance) $571,995
Projected Combined Ongoing Annual Maintenance (FY25 forward) $98,100

Draft 03/28/2023



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Circuit Court – Thomas Jakeway 
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: April 6, 2023 
Resolution Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology 
Expenditures    
County Code:  Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date: April 13, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?     No    Appropriation Amount:   $167,295 
If not, explain funding source:   Pre-Approved State Reimbursement 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 32000-42290  Circuit Court\Other Departmental Supplies 
Budget Impact:   Neutral 

Background Information: 
The Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts is administering a Court Technology 
Modernization Program for court technology needs.   The Court and County were jointly awarded 
specified reimbursable expenses totaling $167,295. Approved goods and services will support 
courtroom operations and court staff, inclusive of capital improvement wiring needs in all of the 
courtrooms. 

Recommendation:   Good/resources were selected in consultation with the Department of 
Information Technology and Winnebago County Facilities.  

Contract/Agreement: See attached.  

Legal Review:  Not necessary 

Follow-Up:  Process necessary reimbursement paperwork. 



County Board Meeting: April 13, 2023 

ORDINANCE 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Finance Committee 

2023 CR 

ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR REIMBURSEABLE TECHNOLOGY 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and 
Appropriations Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 
2022 Board Meeting; 

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act. Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the record 
of the meeting; and  

WHEREAS, preapproved reimbursement funds from the Administrative Office of the 
Illinois Courts have been awarded to the Winnebago County Circuit Court for court technology 
expenses; 

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003 (2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore the 
increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized for 
Amendment #2023- Reimbursable Technology Expenditures. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the Office of the Chief Judge, Director 
of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office and County Auditor. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                      JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



3/6/2023
Circuit Court Thomas Jakeway

32000

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
32000 42290 Other Dept. Supplies $5,000 $0 $5,000 $167,295 $172,295
32000 32240 Revenue $76,000 $0 $72,000 $167,295 $239,295

$0 $0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

AOIC State Reimbursement

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:

The Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts is administering a Court Technology Modernization Program for court 
technology needs.   Preapproved reimbursement funds from the Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts have been 
awarded to the Winnebago County Circuit Court for court technology expenses totaling $167,295.  Approved goods and 
services will support courtroom operations and court staff, inclusive of capital improvement wiring needs in all of the 
courtrooms.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

N/A

2022-

DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:



 
9717 Landmark Parkway | St. Louis, MO 63127 | (314) 892-6300 

 

 
 
 
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, IL 

 
CONTRACT FOR 

 
 

 
 

 
 

DEFENDERbyKarpel® & HOSTEDbyKarpel® 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 2 of 24 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

1.DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 3 

2.SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................................... 4 

3.OTHER INFORMATION .................................................................................................. 5 

4.GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS ................................................... 5 

5.INVESTMENT SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 7 

 5.1 Payment Terms ..................................................................................................... 10 

6.ANNUAL SUPPORT ...................................................................................................... 10 

 6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES ................................................................................... 10 
 6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT ............................................................................. 12 

7.OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ................................................................. 13 

8.LICENSE TERMS AND USE ............................................................................................ 13 

9.WARRANTY ................................................................................................................. 14 

10.LIMITATION OF LIABILITY .......................................................................................... 16 

11.INDEMNIFICATION .................................................................................................... 16 

12.TERMINATION ........................................................................................................... 17 

13.GENERAL PROVISIONS .............................................................................................. 18 

14.MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS ........................................................................... 21 

 

 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 3 of 24 
 

This agreement between Karpel Computer Systems Inc., a Missouri corporation, doing business as Karpel 
Solutions (hereinafter referred to as “Karpel Solutions”) and Winnebago County a political subdivision of 
the State of Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “Client”) is for the purposes of reviewing this proposal and 
to enter into this Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions  expressly incorporated 
herein, with respect to the license of Karpel Solutions’ copyrighted software program known as 
DEFENDERbyKarpel® (hereinafter referred to as “DbK”).  
 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
1. “Confidential Information” means information of either Karpel Solutions or Client which is 

disclosed under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, electronic, sample 
or any other form by one of us to the other, and which is considered to be proprietary or trade 
secret by the disclosing party. Confidential Information of Karpel Solutions expressly includes, 
without limitation, the Software and Documentation. The Confidential Information of Client 
includes, without limitation, Personally Identifiable Information and Client Content. Confidential 
Information shall not include information which the party receiving the information can 
demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of confidentiality 
prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through no act or 
fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the receiving 
party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently developed 
by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. “Client Content” means all data, information, documents, and files Client uploads or inputs into 

DbK on the Service through the website, including, without limitation, Personally Identifiable 
Information.  

 
3. “Enhancements” means any specific configurations or customizations to the Software, which 

Client may request, and Karpel Solutions agrees in writing to provide.  
 
4. “Documentation” means any operating instructions, specifications and other documentation 

related to the operation, description and function of DbK, the Service or Website provided by 
Karpel Solutions whether supplied in paper or electronic form.  

 
5. “Intellectual Property” (IP) means any patents, patent applications, copyrights, mask works, 

trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names, inventions, improvements (whether 
patentable or not), trade secrets, Confidential Information, moral rights, and any other 
intellectual property rights provided by applicable law.  

 
6. “Hosted” or “Hosting” means the act of providing service and access to Client Content by the 

Internet.  
 
7. “Personally Identifiable Information” (PII) means any information that may be used to identify 

specific persons or individuals, which is collected by either Karpel Solutions or Client for use in 
conjunction with the use of DbK on HOSTEDbyKarpel. Personally Identifiable Information shall be 
considered Confidential Information.  

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 4 of 24 
 

8. “DbK” mean the DEFENDERbyKarpel® case management system and specifically the Client’s 
licensed copy of DbK. 

 
9. “Service” means the HOSTEDbyKarpel hosting platform provided by Karpel Solutions which allows 

internet-based hosting of the Client’s licensed copy of DbK through the Website.  
 
10. “Service Level Requirements” means the technical service levels Karpel Solutions shall meet for 

Services as set forth below in the Service Level Commitments for the delivery of the Services. 
 
11. “Software” means the Client’s licensed copy of the DbK application, and includes any and all 

updates, enhancements, underlying technology or content, law enforcement transfer interfaces, 
other Enhancements and any Documentation as may be provided the Client by Karpel Solutions.   

 
12. “Website” means the content and functionality currently located at the domain 

www.hostedbykarpel.com on the internet, or any successor or related domain that provides 
access to the Software and Service. 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Karpel Solutions will perform all work in accordance with the descriptions, scopes and specifications 
hereafter described. 
 

Deadline  

Minimum 
Number of 
Days Out 

June 24, 2019 Final Contract & Implementation Agreement signed. Project Pre-Implementation 
Meeting scheduled.  Minimum Workstation requirements are explained to agency 
project manager. 

90 

July 4, 2019 Workstation assessment completed and any necessary hardware or software ordered 
to meet PbK Installation Prerequisites. 

80 

July 24, 2019 4-hour remote pre-implementation meeting with project manager and System 
Administrator(s). PbK Overview. Project Team is selected including Karpel Staff and 
Customer System Administrator(s). (One Customer System Administrator must be a 
Policy Setting Attorney). This meeting will begin with application overview and 
enhancement definitions. PbK Pre-load configuration is explained and initial 
Document Templates are received.  Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. 

60 

August 3, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress on hardware/software assessments, finalize pre-implementation 
meeting timeline agreement. 

50 

August 8, 
2019 

Agency Document Templates are received. System Administrator training begins. 
Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. System enhancements are completed and 
demonstrated. 

45 

August 13, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress and answer additional questions regarding pre-load spreadsheet. 

40 



 

Initials _____________   Page 5 of 24 
 

August 18, 
2019 

Karpel Support installation and application testing on each workstation should begin 
at this time. Karpel Solutions or local IT support will schedule workstation application 
testing and follow Karpel testing procedures to thoroughly test browser functionality, 
document generation, Outlook Calendaring and email on each workstation. 

35 

August 18, 
2019 

The agency project manager will provide Karpel with any additional legacy 
documents.  

35 

August 18, 
2019 

Training Schedule is completed with assignment of all office staff to specific training 
sessions. The Policy Setting Attorney must attend the initial Configuration, Case 
Initiation and Event Entry sessions at a minimum. 

35 

August 23, 
2019 

Karpel will install the preliminary document templates and Event Entry Configuration. 
Application testing will begin. Agency project manager will report all inaccuracies to 
Karpel. All Custom Enhancements are tested and verified.  Begin testing of all 
application interfaces. 

30 

September 8, 
2019 

Complete installation and testing of all workstations by Karpel Solutions or local IT 
support. 

14 

September 15, 
2019 

Final teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager to verify 
final data accuracy. 

7 

TBD Final configuration of PbK is performed with all System Administrators.  User training 
begins. Customer begins using PbK in a live state. 

Go Live 

 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Project Timeline”). 
 
The above Go Live date will no longer be valid if Client fails to sign this contract within 30 days of receipt. 
Furthermore, the Project Timeline may be modified as mutually agreed upon by Client and Karpel 
Solutions. 
 
Karpel Solutions will use its best efforts to convert existing Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and Corel 
WordPerfect® documents provided by Client up to the time of training as outlined in the Project Timeline 
listed above into a format that can be utilized by DbK.  However, Karpel Solutions does not support, nor 
will Karpel Solutions convert customized macros, auto-text files or other custom programming items not 
a part of the ordinary functionality of Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and/or Corel WordPerfect® 
 

3. OTHER WORK 
 
Any additional work requirements outside the scope of this Agreement must be presented in the form of 
a written change order and must be approved by Client prior to start of such work. No additional charges 
will be incurred without prior written approval from Client.  
 

4. GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS 
 
In order for the project to be completed on time and on budget, Client shall provide at a minimum:   
 

1. Access to Client facilities while onsite, as deemed necessary by the Karpel Solutions project 
manager. 

  
2. Access to systems and equipment as required by Karpel Solutions including: 



 

Initials _____________   Page 6 of 24 
 

a. DbK application access using Karpel Solutions laptops and Client’s network for training 
and application testing. 
 

b. Installation of the Karpel Solutions remote support tool on all desktops accessing the DbK 
application. Failure of Client to provide access to enable support tool will render the 
Karpel Solutions support null and void. 

 
3. Access to Client data and document templates (if applicable) that will be provided by Client if such 

data is to be converted and populated by Karpel Solutions into DbK.  
a. Legacy data (i.e., any data from Client’s current system which is being replaced under this 

Agreement) must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but not later than 
120 days from the above go live date. Data provided after this date will not be converted 
unless mutually agreed otherwise. 
 

b. Document templates must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but no 
later than 90 days from the above go live date. Document templates provided after this 
date will not be converted unless mutually agreed otherwise.  

 
4. An authorized contact person with decision making authority to assist in the definition of any 

project unknowns. 
a. Appointed decision maker must be present during the following activities: 

i. Project kickoff 
ii. Establishment of timeline 

iii. Interface definition meetings 
iv. Document review signoff 
v. Data conversion signoff 

 
5. Sufficient time, if applicable, for all data reviews which will include a minimum of: 

a. Verification and review of ten (10) cases per year of any legacy system(s) data during each 
review. 
 

b. Client is responsible for validating their data during the project (if applicable). Validating data 
is key to a successful implementation. If issues arise with converted data after go-live, Karpel 
Solutions will determine if a fix is possible and an additional fee for this work may be required 
for the work required to fix the issue. 
 

6. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to the Software through the Service and Website is password-
protected. Karpel Solutions provides multiple authentication alternatives for access to the 
Website and Software. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY ENCOURAGES THE USE OF STRONG 
PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for Client’s use of the Service, 
Website or Software. Only the number of users set forth in the Cost Sheet may access the Service 
and Website. Client must inform their users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of 
the terms of this Agreement. Client is fully responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and 
agents who access the Service and Website. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for 
and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless for any unauthorized access to the Service 
and Website, including without limitation access caused by failure to protect the login and 
password information of users. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 7 of 24 
 

7. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. Client agrees to conduct all activities on the Service and Website in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Access to the Service, Website, Software and 
Documentation must be solely for Client’s own internal use. Client may not (and may not allow 
any third party to) (i) alter, modify, decompile, mirror, translate, disassemble or otherwise reverse 
engineer any part of the Software, source code, algorithms, or underlying ideas of the Software; 
(ii) provide, lease, lend, subcontract, sublicense, or re-publish for,, service bureau or hosting 
purposes any or all of the Software or Documentation; (iii) reproduce, modify, copy, distribute, 
publish, display or create derivative works of any or all of the Software or Documentation or (iv) 
alter, remove, or obscure any copyright, trademark or other proprietary notices or confidentiality 
legends on or in the Software or Documentation.  
 

8. SUSPENSION. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to immediately suspend access to Software 
and/or Website without notice and at any time if Karpel Solutions suspects or has reason to 
suspect a security or data breach, if suspension is necessary to protect Karpel Solutions’ rights, 
Client’s rights or the rights of a third party, if Client misuses the Software and/or Website, and/or 
if Client otherwise violates this Agreement. Karpel Solutions will provide note to client upon 
suspension of the Service and Website.  

 

5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY 
 
Karpel Solutions will perform its Services as set forth in this Agreement in exchange for payment as set 
forth below.  
 

Software Products/Licensing Qty. Price   Total 
DEFENDERbyKarpel 45 $1,500  $67,500 

Total Software       $67,500 

 
Installation Services Qty. Price   Total 
DEFENDERbyKarpel Installation and Configuration 1 $1,000  $1,000 
Data Preload 1 $5,000  $5,000 
Client Support Tool, Scanning Tool and System 
Compatibility Check (per computer) 45 $50  $2,250 

Total Installation Services       $8,250 

     
Professional Services Qty. Price   Total 
Project Management No Additional Cost 
Pre-Implementation Services (hours, remote) 12 $150 1 resource $1,800 
Data Conversion: FullCase 1 $25,000  $25,000 
Mock Go-Live and System Administrator Training (30 
days prior to go-live, hours, remote) 8 $300 2 resources $2,400 
Document Template Setup, Training and Conversion of 
Up To 100 Document  Templates 1 $2,500  $2,500 

Total Professional Services       $31,700 

     



 

Initials _____________   Page 8 of 24 
 

Training Services Qty. Price   Total 
Onsite Training (days) 5 $2,400 2 resources $12,000 
Post Go-Live Support and Training (remote days) 1 $1,200 1 resource $1,200 

Total Onsite Training Services       $12,000 
    
Customization Services Qty. Price   Total 
Interface: None 0   $0 

Total Customization Services       $0 

     
Estimated Travel Expenses    $5,400 

     
Total One-Time Costs       $124,850 

     
Annual Support Services Qty. Price   Total 
DEFENDERbyKarpel 45 $450  $20,250 
Unlimited eDiscovery 1 $5,625  $5,625 
Hosted Services (per user/year) 45 $100  $4,500 

Total Annual Support Services       $30,375 
 

Optional Items   Price 
JasperSoft Reporting Module  $1,000 

JasperSoft Reporting Module Annual Support  $5,000 
JasperSoft Reporting Module Training (minimum)  $600 

Custom Reports (per report)  $1,000 
Document Template Conversion After 100 Documents (per document)  

Criminal document templates  $25 
Civil document templates  $50 

Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per terabyte, per year)  $1,000 
Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per 100 terabytes, per year)  $32,000 

 
This pricing is based upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. Interfaces must conform to the appropriate DEFENDERbyKarpel® Information Exchange Package 
Documentation (IEPD) for that interface. Interfaces that do not conform to the appropriate 
DEFENDERbyKarpel IEPD (i.e., require a new schema to be designed or database modification), 
will require Karpel Solutions and Client review before approval of both design and potential 
additional development and maintenance costs.  
 

2. All phase one (1) interfaces must have an IRF (Interface Request Form) completed and signed off 
by all parties within 30 days of the project kick-off meeting. If not completed within this time 
frame, the interfaces will be automatically moved into phase 2. 
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 9 of 24 
 

PLEASE NOTE: THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL COSTS FROM THE OTHER VENDOR(S), WHICH IS NOT 
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ABOVE PRICING FOR THIS CONTRACT, AND WHICH WILL BE BILLED 
SEPARATELY.  CLIENT SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THESE SEPARATE COSTS.  
 

3. Interfaces not currently in production will be considered as “Phase 2” and implemented post-go 
live. 

 
4. The above costs do not include additional hardware, Microsoft licenses, or networking services 

which may be necessary to properly and legally operate DbK.  Such expenses are solely the Client’s 
responsibility. 
 

5. Changes to the Project Timeline or project scope will impact other work of Karpel Solutions and 
will result in an increased financial burden to Karpel Solutions.  As such, if a scheduled go-live date 
is rescheduled due to delays by the client or a client’s 3rd party vendor, a penalty of 10% of the 
total first year costs may be assessed by Karpel Solutions as compensation to Karpel Solutions for 
costs incurred and lost time, including, but not limited to, costs associated with booked travel and 
accommodations and time that will be lost on  other client start dates as a result of Client’s change 
to the Project Timeline. 
 

6. Karpel Solutions will honor pricing proposals for Optional Services for up to 90 days of execution 
of this Agreement.   Upon the request of Client to provide an Optional Service, an official notice 
to begin the service must be received from Client before the Optional Services will be provided 
by Karpel Solutions.  This is to ensure there are no misunderstandings between Client and Karpel 
Solutions as to the provision of Optional Services. 
 

7. The aggregate document / file storage space included with the stated hosted service fee is two 
terabytes (2TB) of storage per instance of DbK. If the Client’s storage exceeds 2TB in any instance, 
any additional storage above 2TB will automatically be added to the Client’s bill at a flat rate of 
$1,000 per 1TB, per year.  Client hereby consents to this additional charge in advance and waives 
any requirement for additional notice regarding the same.   
 

8. Hosted eDiscovery services will be invoiced monthly at the rate of $1 per submission to the hosted 
eDiscovery site if Client does not elect the unlimited annual fee option. 
 

9. All travel costs are estimates and the Client is responsible for all the project’s actual travel 
expenses to include airfare, lodging, ground transportation, meals, and incidental expenses.  
 

10. As with any project, all prices herein are subject to change as new information arises that will alter 
or impact the project or as workload for the project increases. Karpel Solutions will seek approval 
from Client if additional work becomes necessary to make requested changes during the project.  
 

11. In the event Client or Karpel terminates this Agreement, Client understands and agrees to pay 
$1,000 to Karpel Solutions as compensation for work to be performed by Karpel Solutions in 
connection with the return of Client Content and Confidential Information.   
 
 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 10 of 24 
 

5.1 Payment Terms 
 

50% of Software User Licenses is due and must be paid upon execution of this Agreement by Client, 
with the remaining amount, including first year annual fees, due and payable within thirty (30) days 
of completion of implementation of the Service and initial training provided to Client by Karpel 
Solutions. 

 
TERM. Annual Fees in the Agreement will begin upon Client’s go live month and will be due each year 
thereafter, unless Karpel Solutions or Client terminates this Agreement before the renewal date.  This 
Agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year and shall automatically renew for subsequent one-year 
terms, unless either Karpel Solutions or Client gives notice to the other party at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current term of Karpel Solutions or Client’s intent not to renew. 
Prior to the expiration of the term, Karpel Solutions will send Client a renewal invoice, which must be 
paid in full within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. Pricing for subsequent annual terms is 
subject to change at the sole discretion of Karpel Solutions.  Karpel Solutions will provide Client with 
at least ninety (90) days’ notice of any pricing change prior to the renewal date.  

 
INTEREST AND LATE FEES. Past due accounts will be charged interest on a monthly basis, calculated  
at one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of the unpaid balance or the maximum rate allowable 
by law.  

 
6. ANNUAL SUPPORT 

 
6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES 
 
Client understands that technical support fees will be required annually, in order to receive software 
updates and technical support.  The support period shall begin from the date of go-live as part of the 
initial first year costs.  The Client may elect to purchase subsequent annual support, on a yearly basis 
at a fixed cost, and billed annually, separate and apart from any license fees required by this 
Agreement.  The option to purchase annual support is solely at the Client’s discretion. The Client’s 
license to use DbK is not dependent upon the Client purchasing annual support; however, if Client 
discontinues annual support, Client will not be provided with updated versions of the software, unless 
it is purchased. Provided Client’s computers, network and systems meet recommended specifications 
set by Karpel Solutions and the Client has purchased and is current with annual support payments, 
Karpel Solutions will provide updated versions of the System and/or Software as they become 
available during the terms of the contract.  If Client elects to renew the annual support service, Karpel 
Solutions has the right to increase current pricing for annual support at the time of renewal, provided 
that notice of the increased pricing is provided to Client prior to the effective date of the renewal of 
the annual support service.   
  

6.1.1 SUPPORT PROVIDED 
 

Karpel Solutions will provide support (e.g. software updates, general program enhancements and 
technical support) for all Software provided, including ongoing unlimited telephone technical 
support problem determination, and resolution. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 11 of 24 
 

6.1.2 HOURS OF OPERATION 
 

Karpel Solutions will provide technical support Monday through Friday, at a minimum of eight (8) 
hours a day.  Technical support services shall be available between the hours of 7:00 a.m. through 
9:00 p.m. Central time, via a toll-free telephone number provided. After-hours support is available 
as well via the same toll-free number which will reach the on-call support group. 

 
6.1.3 INCLUDED SUPPORT 

 
Support services include the detection and correction of Software errors and the implementation 
of all DbK program changes, updates, and upgrades. Karpel Solutions shall respond to the inquiries 
regarding the use and functionality of the solution as issues are encountered by Authorized Users. 
Support to users will be provided through the remote support tool installed on the end user’s 
computer. This tool was installed at the time of go-live allowing Karpel to provide the needed 
support to meet the service level agreement. If this access is not allowed, support will be delayed 
and the service level agreement (severity levels) will no longer be applicable. 

 
6.1.4 RESPONSE TIMES 

 
Karpel Solutions shall be responsive and timely to technical support calls/inquires made by the 
Client.  The Client will first make support inquires through their qualified system administrators to 
assure the policies and business practices of the Client are enforced prior to contacting Karpel 
Solutions.  The timeliness of the response is dependent upon the severity of the issue/support 
problem, as defined below:      

The severity* of the issue/support problem shall determine the average problem resolution 
response time as follows: 

 
*If the remote support tool is not installed or available, all issues will fall into the general assistance and the severity 
levels are no longer applicable. 

Severity Level 1 shall be defined as urgent situations, when the Client’s production system is down 
and the Client is unable to use DbK, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the 
Client’s call for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is not 
immediately available, Karpel Solutions shall return the customer’s call within one (1) business 
hour.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 1 problems as quickly as possible, which on 
average should not exceed two (2) business days, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the 
Client.   

Severity Level 2 shall be defined as critical Software system component(s) that has significant 
outages and/or failure precluding its successful operation, and possibly endangering the 
customer’s environment.  DbK may operate but are severely restricted. Karpel Solutions’ technical 
support staff shall accept the customer’s call for assistance at the time the customer places the 
initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel Solutions shall return the 
Client’s call within four (4) business hours.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 2 problems 
as quickly as possible, which on average should not exceed three (3) business days, unless 
otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 12 of 24 
 

Severity Level 3 shall be defined as a minor problem that exists with DbK but the majority of the 
functions are still usable and some circumvention may be required to provide service.  Karpel 
Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call for assistance at the time the 
customer places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel 
Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business day.  Karpel 
Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 3 problems as quickly as possible, which should not exceed 
the next available release of Software, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 

General Assistance:  For general Software support/helpdesk calls not covered by the above 
severity level descriptions, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call 
for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately 
available, Karpel Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business 
day. 

 
6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT 

 
UPTIME: Karpel Solutions is committed to providing the Software, Website and Service in a  
consistent and reliable manner. Karpel Solutions will provide the Software, Website and Service 
to Client with a stated minimum uptime of 99.5% to Client.  

 
SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE: Karpel Solutions periodically performs scheduled maintenance  
Including, but not limited to, outline, preventative or emergency maintenance of the Software, 
Website, and/or Service. Client understands that schedule maintenance may affect availability of 
the Service, Website, and/or Software.  If schedule maintenance is to be performed, Karpel 
Solutions will provide notice to Client three (3) days prior to the scheduled maintenance. Karpel 
Solutions will make every effort to schedule maintenance outside of normal business hours of the 
Client between the hours of ten (10) p.m. and five (5) a.m. Central Standard Time.  
 
DATA RETENTION AND BACKUPS:  As a part of the Service and Website, Karpel Solutions will  
maintain under this Agreement consistent, regular and validated backup both onsite and offsite 
of the Client Content, Confidential Information and Software. Backups occur and will be 
maintained pursuant to Karpel Solutions internal backup policies. Upon written request, Karpel 
Solutions will make available to Client a copy of Karpel Solutions’ current backup policies and 
procedures.  
 
AUDITS AND SECURITY: Karpel Solutions is committed to maintaining the security of Client  
Content, Confidential Information, and Software on Karpel Solutions’ Service and Website. Karpel 
Solutions will maintain the Software, Website and Service in a reasonably secure manner, subject 
to Client’s own obligations to protect and safeguard usernames and passwords on Client’s end. 
Karpel Solutions will perform annual security audits of the Website and Service to ensure the 
integrity and security of the Website and Service. Results of the Audits and Security Policy for 
Karpel Solutions will be made available to Client upon written request.  
 
DATA TRANSMISSION: Karpel Solutions ensures that all data transmitted to and from the Service 
and Website is transmitted at a minimum level of 128-bit SSL encryption using digital    certificates 
issued by an internationally recognized domain registrar and certificate authority.  
 

      DATA LOCATION: Karpel Solutions will maintain the Service, Software, Client Content and  



 

Initials _____________   Page 13 of 24 
 

   Confidential Information of Client in a SAS 70/SSAE 16 certified data facility.  
 

7. OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY  
 
KARPEL SOLUTIONS OWNERSHIP: Karpel Solutions retains all right, title and interest in and to 
the Software, Documentation, Website, Service, and related Intellectual Property.  Any suggestions, 
solutions, improvements, corrections, or other contributions Client provides regarding the Software, 
Documentation, Website or Services will become the property of Karpel Solutions and Client hereby 
assigns all such rights to Karpel Solutions without charge. Client is granted a non-exclusive, non-
transferable license with respect to the Software on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 8 below. 
 
CLIENT OWNERSHIP: Client retains all rights, title, and interest in and to the Client Content. Client hereby 
grants to Karpel Solutions and Karpel Solutions hereby accepts a non-exclusive, non-transferable, 
worldwide, fully paid license to use, copy, and modify the Client Content solely to the extent necessary 
and for the sole purposes of providing access to the Software, Documentation, Website, and Services or 
otherwise complying with its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
8. LICENSE TERMS AND USE 

 
The Software, DbK, is a proprietary product of Karpel Solutions.  It is licensed (not sold) and is licensed to 
Client for its use and only in accordance with the terms set forth below. During the term of this Agreement, 
Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to use DbK solely 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Client’s license will terminate immediately and 
automatically upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  Client may not sub-license any rights 
under this Agreement to any party without Karpel Solution’s prior written consent. Client’s license is 
subject at all times to Client’s full compliance with this Agreement. 

 
1. Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive and non-transferable sublicense to use any 

associated manuals and/or documentation furnished.  
 
2. Client cannot distribute, rent, sublicense, or lease the Software. A separate license of DbK is 

required for each authorized user or employee. Each license of DbK may not be shared by more 
than one full time employee or user (defined as working 20 hours or more per week), nor more 
than two (2) part-time employees or users (defined as working less than 20 hours per week each 
and working no more than 40 hours per week combined). The Client agrees that Karpel Solutions 
will suffer damages from the Client’s breach of this term and further agrees that in the event of 
such breach by Client, Karpel Solutions shall be entitled to and Client must pay to Karpel Solutions 
the monetary equivalent of the costs that would have been incurred by Client had Client properly 
obtained the license, installation and training associated with each violation, in addition to any 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by Karpel Solutions with respect to the same 

 
3. This license does not transfer any rights to Software source codes, unless Karpel Solutions ceases 

to do business without transferring its obligations under this Agreement to another qualified 
software business.  Karpel Solutions will, at Client’s expense, enter into escrow agreement for the 
storage of the source codes. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 14 of 24 
 

 
4. DbK and its Documentation are protected by copyright and trade secret laws. Client may not use, 

copy, modify, or transfer the Software or its Documentation, in whole or in part, except as 
expressly provided herein. Karpel Solutions retains all rights in any copy, derivative or 
modification to the Software or its Documentation no matter by whom made. DbK is licensed for 
single installations of one full time employee or two part-time employees as defined in Section 
8.2 above. A separate license is required for each installation of DbK. Client shall not provide or 
disclose or otherwise make available DbK or any portion thereof in any form to any third party. 
Client acknowledges that unauthorized copying and distribution will cause substantial damage to 
Karpel Solutions far greater than the value of the copies involved. 

 
5. DbK was developed exclusively at private expense and is Karpel Solutions’ trade secret. For all 

purposes of the Freedom of Information Act or any other similar statutory right of “open” or 
public records, the Software shall be considered exempt from disclosure.  DbK is "commercial 
computer software" subject to limited utilization "Restricted Rights."  DbK, including all copies, is 
and shall remain proprietary to Karpel Solutions or its licensors.  In the event that a third party 
seeks to compel disclosure and/or production of the Software, the Documentation, and/or the 
Website by court order or otherwise, Client shall promptly give notice to Karpel Solutions so as to 
allow Karpel Solutions to take whatever steps it deems necessary to prevent such disclosure 
and/or production, and Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions in connection therewith. 

 
6. Public Agency Participation: Other public agencies may utilize the terms and conditions 

established by this Contract. “Public agency”, for purposes of this paragraph, is defined to include 
any city, county, district, public authority, public agency, municipality, and other political 
subdivision. Client is not an agent, partner, or representative of such public agency, and is not 
obligated or liable for any action or debts that may arise out of such independently negotiated 
procurements. These so called “piggy-back” awards shall be made independently by each public 
agency, and that agency shall accept sole responsibility for placing orders with Vendor. Client does 
not accept any responsibility or involvement in the purchase orders or Contracts issued by other 
public agencies. Any such contract by another public agency must be in accordance with the 
statutes, codes, ordinances, charter and/or procurement rules and regulations of such public 
agency. 

 
9. WARRANTY  

 
1. LIMITED WARRANTY: Karpel Solutions warrants it will provide the Services and Website in a 

professional manner by qualified personnel. Karpel Solutions warrants it has the requisite power 
and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. Karpel Solutions 
warrants that the performance by Karpel Solutions of any services described in this Agreement 
shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Karpel Solutions warrants it 
will provide access to and use of the Software, Service and Website in material accordance with 
the Service Level Commitment outlined in this Agreement. No representations or warranties as 
to the use, functionality or operation of the Website, Software, or Service are made by Karpel 
Solutions other than as expressly stated in this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions disclaims all other 
warranties as set forth in Section 9.5 below. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 15 of 24 
 

2. INTERNET: Karpel Solutions makes the Website, Software and Services available to Client through 
the internet to the extent commercially reasonable, and subject to outages, communication and 
data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in Internet communications. Client 
recognizes that problems with the Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, 
impairments or congestion, or the configuration of Client’s computer systems, may prevent, 
interrupt or delay Client’s access to the Service, Website or Software. Client agrees that Karpel 
Solutions is not liable for and agreed to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any delays, 
interruptions, suspensions or unavailability of the Website or Software attributable to problems 
with the Internet or the configuration of Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
3. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS: Karpel Solutions provides the Services and Website based upon the 

system requirements as specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions 
is not liable for and agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of the Services, or 
the Software based upon Client’s failure to comply with the system requirements of Karpel 
Solutions. 

  
4. WARRANTY LIMITATION: The warranties set forth in this Agreement do not apply if non-

compliance is caused by, or has resulted from (i) Client’s failure to use any new or corrected 
versions of the Software or Documentation made available by Karpel Solutions, (ii) use of the 
Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client for any purpose other than that 
authorized in this Agreement, (iii) use of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services in 
combination with other software, data or products that are defective, incompatible with, or not 
authorized in writing by Karpel Solutions for use with the Software, Documentation, Website, or 
Services, (iv) misuse of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client, (v) any 
malfunction of Client’s software, hardware, computers, computer-related equipment or network 
connection, (vi) any modification of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services not 
performed by or otherwise authorized by Karpel Solutions in writing, or (vii) an event of Force 
Majeure.  

 
5. DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE MADE IN LIEU OF ALL 

OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NONINFRINGEMENT, TITLE, 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING OUT 
OF A USE IN TRADE OR COURSE OF DEALING OR PERFORMANCE. KARPEL SOLUTIONS DOES NOT 
WARRANT (i) THAT ACCESS TO OR USE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL BE CONTINUOUS, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, (ii) 
THAT THE RESULTS ARISING OUT OF CLIENT’S USE OF THE SOFTWARE, DOCUMENTATION OR 
WEBSITE WILL BE ACCURATE, COMPLETE OR ERROR-FREE, OR (iii) THAT THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL MEET CLIENT’S NEEDS. 

 
6. EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES: If the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services provided under this 

Agreement do not materially comply with the requirements stated in the Limited Warranty 
Section outlined above, Karpel Solutions’ sole obligation shall be to correct or modify the 
Software, Documentation, Website or Services, at no additional charge to Client. If Karpel 
Solutions determines it is unable to correct what is non-conforming, Client’s sole remedy will be 
to receive a refund of the fees paid for the non-conforming Services, even if such remedy fails of 
its essential purpose. In that event, Client may also elect to terminate this Agreement as set forth 
in Section 12 of this Agreement. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 16 of 24 
 

  
10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

 
CLIENT AGREES THAT KARPEL SOLUTIONS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS OF DATA, COST OF 
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF KARPEL 
SOLUTIONS HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND CLIENT WAIVES ANY RIGHTS 
AND AGREES TO HOLD KARPEL SOLUTIONS HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY SUCH DAMAGES OR 
LOSSES. THIS LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY), STATUTE OR OTHERWISE. REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 
THE CLAIM, KARPEL SOLUTIONS’ TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO: (i) THE EXTENT 
AND AMOUNT OF ANY INSURANCE COVERAGE WHICH IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), OR (ii) THE 
AMOUNT OF FEES CLIENT HAS PAID TO KARPEL SOLUTIONS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD PRIOR TO SUCH CLAIM(S) ARISING.  TO THE EXTENT THAT INSURANCE 
COVERAGE IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), CLIENT’S SOLE RECOURSE SHALL BE PAYMENT OF ANY 
AVAILABLE INSURANCE PROCEEDS. 

  
11. INDEMNIFICATION  

 
CLIENT’S INDEMNIFICATION: Client will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Karpel Solutions from and 
against any and all liability, damage, loss or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of 
(i) any claim, demand, action or proceeding, statutory or otherwise,  relating to the use of the Website, 
Software, Documentation or Services in a manner not expressly described or permitted by this 
Agreement, (ii) use of the Website, Software, Documentation or Services in any unlawful manner or for 
any unlawful purpose, (iii) Karpel Solutions’ use of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that 
allegedly infringes upon or violates any third party Intellectual Property rights, or (iv) Karpel Solutions’ use 
of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that allegedly violates privacy rights or other rights with 
respect to Personally Identifiable Information of a third party.  

 
KARPEL SOLULTIONS’ INDEMNIFICATION: Karpel Solutions will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Client from and against any claim or suit brought against Client alleging that the Software directly infringes 
upon or violates any valid U.S. Intellectual Property rights. Karpel Solutions shall have the right to select 
counsel for purposes of its defense obligations hereunder and will at all times have the right to control 
the defense of such claim or suit.  Karpel Solutions will not be liable for any cost or expense incurred by 
Client in connection with any such suit or claim, without Karpel Solutions’ prior and specific authorization 
and consent.  Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions and to provide such assistance as may be 
requested by Karpel Solutions in connection with the defense of such claim or suit.   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Karpel Solutions shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify Client if the 
infringement claim is based solely or in part upon or arises out of: (i) any modification of or alteration to 
the Software not made by Karpel Solutions, (ii) any combination or use of the Software with products, 
hardware or services not supplied by Karpel Solutions or approved in writing by Karpel Solutions in 
advance of such combination, (iii) Client’s continuance of allegedly infringing activity after being notified 
of such activity, or after being informed of modifications that would have avoided the alleged 
infringement, (iv) Client’s failure to use corrections or enhancements made available by Karpel Solutions, 
(v) use of the Software not in accordance with the applicable Documentation or this Agreement, or (vi) 
use of the Software in a manner for which it was neither designed nor contemplated.  



 

Initials _____________   Page 17 of 24 
 

 
In no event shall Karpel Solutions’ total liability and obligation under this Section exceed the total fees 
Client has paid to Karpel Solutions under this Agreement in the twelve (12) month period prior to the 
assertion or filing of such claim against Client. The foregoing remedies constitute Client’s sole and 
exclusive remedies, and Karpel Solutions’ entire liability and obligation with respect to any suit or claim 
for infringement or misappropriation of third-party Intellectual Property rights or with respect to the 
Software.  
 
NOTIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OF INDEMNIFIED PARTIES: The indemnification obligations set forth above 
will apply only if and to the extent (i) the indemnified party gives prompt written notice to the 
indemnifying party of the assertion of any such claims, demands, action or proceeding, (ii) the 
indemnifying party has the right to select counsel and control the defense and all negotiations for 
settlement thereof and (iii) the indemnified party provides all reasonable information, assistance and 
cooperation required to defend such claim, demand, action or proceeding. The indemnifying party shall 
not settle or dispose of any such claim, demand, action or proceeding without written notification to the 
indemnified party in the event that the proposed settlement or disposal would materially adversely 
impact the indemnified party. 

 
12. TERMINATION 

  
TERMINATION: Client may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Karpel Solutions of 
Client’s intent to terminate in the event that Karpel Solutions has failed to perform under or materially 
breaches this Agreement.  Thereafter, Karpel Solutions will have thirty (30) days from the receipt of such 
notice to cure the alleged failure or breach.  If at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Karpel Solutions 
has not cured the alleged failure or breach, then Client may terminate this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions 
may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days’ written notice for any reason. Either party may 
immediately terminate this Agreement in the event the other party (i) files for, or has filed against it, a 
bankruptcy petition, and such petition is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of the filing date, (ii) ceases 
to conduct business in the normal course, (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (iv) is 
liquidated or otherwise dissolved, (v) becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts in the normal course, 
or (vi) has a receiver, trustee or custodian appointed for it.  

 
RIGHTS AFTER EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION: Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Karpel 
Solutions will immediately terminate Client’s access to and use of the Website, Documentation, and 
Services. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, each party shall immediately cease use of any 
Confidential Information received from the other party. Within thirty (30) days of written request 
following termination or expiration of this Agreement, Karpel Solutions shall coordinate with Client with 
respect to the return of Client Content and Confidential Information obtained or shared during the course 
of the Agreement.  Client understands that upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, Client 
must return to Karpel Solutions (or at Karpel Solutions’ election, destroy and certify such destruction in 
writing) any Documentation or other materials provided by Karpel Solutions, whether in written or 
electronic form, regarding the Website, Software or Services provided under this Agreement.  

 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 18 of 24 
 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
NOTICES: Any notices provided under this Agreement will be in writing in the English language and will be 
deemed to have been properly given if delivered personally or if sent by (i) a recognized overnight courier, 
(ii) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (iii) electronic means, 
followed by mailing a copy by regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid. Karpel Solutions’ address for such notices 
is set forth below. Client’s address for such notices will be the address on file with Karpel Solutions as 
provided by Client. Such address or contact information may be revised from time to time by Karpel 
Solutions and/or Client by written notice as described in this Section. All notices sent by mail will be 
deemed received on the tenth (10th) business day after deposit in the mail. All notices sent by overnight 
courier will be deemed given on the next business day after deposit with the overnight courier. All notices 
sent by electronic means will be deemed given on the next business day after successful transmission. 

  
Karpel Solutions 
c/o Jeffery L. Karpel, CEO 
9717 Landmark Parkway, Suite 200 
St. Louis, MO 63127 
(314) 892-6300 
karpel@karpel.com 

 
GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. This Agreement is to be construed and governed by the 
laws of the United States and the State of Missouri, without regard to conflict of law’s provisions. Any 
dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement must be brought exclusively in the appropriate 
court(s) located in St. Louis County, Missouri, and Client expressly waives any and all objections regarding 
jurisdiction, venue, and forum non conviens in such court(s). If either Karpel Solutions or Client employs 
attorneys to enforce any rights arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party will be 
entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-prevailing party.  

 
  

mailto:mziemianski@karpel.com


 

Initials _____________   Page 19 of 24 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date set forth 
below. This Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions attached hereto and incorporated 
herein and all other attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, superseding all 
prior written and oral agreements.  The parties hereto agree that this Agreement may not be modified, 
altered, or changed except by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.  Prior to acceptance of 
this Agreement, Karpel Solutions reserves the right to make modifications to this Agreement. The 
signatories warrant they have the authority to bind their respective party.   

 

  Winnebago County, IL      Karpel Solutions 

 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 20 of 24 
 

Mailing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Billing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Billing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 

Tax Exempt?   No □     Yes □ If yes, please attach copy of tax exempt certificate 
 
Agency Project Manager Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Project IT Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 



 

Initials _____________   Page 21 of 24 
 

14. MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

KARPEL COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC. (dba “Karpel Solutions”), 
MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
GENERAL TERMS 

 
1. ACCEPTANCE TERM. The proposal attached to these Master Terms and Conditions is tendered for 

acceptance in its entirety within thirty (30) days from the date of the proposal, after which it is to be 
considered null and void.   

 
2. MODIFICATION AND WAIVER. Any modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

both parties. Neither party will be deemed to have waived any of its rights under the Agreement by 
any statement or representation other than (i) by an Authorized Representative and (ii) in an explicit 
written waiver. No waiver of a breach of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of any prior or 
subsequent breach of this Agreement.  

 
3. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Karpel Solutions, Client, 

and Karpel Solutions’ successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client may not assign or 
otherwise transfer this Agreement or Client’s rights and obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of Karpel Solutions, and any purported assignment or other transfer without 
such consent will be void and of no force or effect. Karpel Solutions may assign and /or transfer this 
Agreement or Karpel Solutions’ rights and obligations under this Agreement at any time and the 
Client’s consent to such assignment or transfer is not needed.  

 
4. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the extent that 

performance of its obligations or attempts to cure any breach thereof are delayed or prevented by 
reason of any act of God, government, fire, natural disaster, accident, terrorism, network or 
telecommunication system failure, sabotage or any other cause beyond the control of such party 
(“Force Majeure”), provided that such party promptly gives the other party written notice of such 
Force Majeure.  

 
5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. The parties will be deemed to have the status of independent 

contractors, and nothing in this Agreement will be deemed to place the parties in the relationship of 
employer-employee, principal-agent, or partners or joint ventures. Neither party has the authority to 
bind, commit or make any representations, claims or warranties on behalf of the other party without 
the other party’s prior written approval. 

 
6. SOFTWARE ANOMALIES. New commercial software releases or upgrades, or any hardware and/or 

software owned by or licensed to Client, used in connection with Karpel Solutions’ Services may have 
anomalies, performance or integration issues unknown to Karpel Solutions which can impact the 
timely, successful implementation of information systems.  Karpel Solutions will inform the Client 
promptly if this occurs and will attempt to analyze, correct and/or work around the anomalies or 
performance issues on a "best efforts" basis.  Karpel Solutions is not responsible for any delay or 
inability to complete its Services if such anomalies or performance issues occur.  Client is responsible 
for payment for all of Karpel Solutions’ Services at the rate stated in the Agreement whether or not a 
successful solution is achieved. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 22 of 24 
 

 
7. SOFTWARE AUDIT. Client agrees to allow Karpel Solutions the right to audit Client’s use of DbK and 

license of DbK at any time. Client will cooperate with the audit, including providing access to any 
books, computers, records or other information that relate to the use of DbK. Such audit will not 
unreasonably interfere with Client’s activities. In the event that an audit reveals unauthorized use, 
reproduction, distribution, or other exploitation of DbK, Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions for the 
reasonable cost of the audit, in addition to such other rights and remedies that Karpel Solutions may 
have. Absent extenuating circumstances or circumstances which lead Karpel Solutions to believe that 
there has been unauthorized use, reproduction, distribution or other exploitation of DbK by Client or 
Client’s agents, Karpel Solutions will not conduct an audit more than once per year.  

 
8. CLIENT ENVIRONMENT. Client is responsible for the application, operation and management of its 

information technology environment, including but not limited to: (a) purchasing, licensing and 
maintaining hardware and software; (b) following appropriate operating procedures; (c) following 
appropriate protective measures to safeguard the software and data from unauthorized duplication, 
modification, destruction or disclosure; (d) following adequate backup contingency plans; and (e) 
employing qualified personnel to obtain the desired results. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for the 
loss of data in DbK or security breaches that result in the unauthorized dissemination of data 
contained in DbK that is the result of Client not following appropriate operating procedures, security 
and protective measures and/or following adequate backup contingency plans.  

 
9. MATERIALS. Client Agrees to pay Karpel Solutions for materials purchased for the Client’s use.  

Materials may include computer hardware, software, hosting, facility leases, other services, 
telecommunications charges, freight, shipping, mailing, document reproduction and any other such 
costs incurred in performance of services for Client.  Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions for all out 
of town travel expenses, such as automobile/airline travel, hotel, meals, and cab fare provided these 
costs are discussed and approved in advance by Client.  Billing for services rendered on-site on an as 
needed basis will include portal-to-portal time.  

 
10. COPYRIGHT. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to seek damages if Client is responsible for a violation 

of Karpel Solutions’ copyright, and Client assumes full responsibility for the acts and omissions of its 
agents acting in the course and scope of their duties for Client with respect to the protection of Karpel 
Solutions’ copyright. 

 
10. INTERNET AND NETWORK. Karpel Solutions makes DbK available to Client through the Internet and/or 

Client’s own network and systems, to the extent commercially reasonable, and subject to outages, 
communication and data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in the Internet and network 
communications on the Client’s own network and systems. Client recognizes that problems with the 
Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, impairments or congestion, or the 
configuration of Client’s own computer systems and network, may prevent, interrupt or delay Client’s 
access to DbK. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client agrees to hold Karpel 
Solutions harmless from any delays, interruptions, suspensions or unavailability of DbK attributable 
to problems with the Internet or the configuration of Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
11. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to DbK is password-protected. Karpel Solutions provides multiple 

authentication alternatives for access to DbK. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY ENCOURAGES THE USE 
OF STRONG PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for Client’s use of DbK. 
Only the number of authorized users may access the Service and Website. Client must inform their 



 

Initials _____________   Page 23 of 24 
 

users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of the terms of this Agreement. Client is fully 
responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and agents who access DbK. Client agrees that 
Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any 
unauthorized access to DbK and data or information contained therein, including without limitation, 
access caused by Client’s failure to protect the login and password information of users.  

 
12. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS. Karpel Solutions provides DbK based upon the system requirements as 

specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client 
agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of DbK based upon Client’s failure to comply 
with the system requirements of Karpel Solutions.   

 
13. THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to any third 

party software or as to Karpel Solutions’ ability to support such software on an on-going basis.    
 
14. LIMITED ENGAGEMENT. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to the quality 

of, or the ability of software developed by Karpel Solutions to operate with, any hardware, network, 
software, systems and/or external data flows already in place at Client's facilities or as may be added 
by the Client.   

 
NON-SOLICITATION OF KARPEL SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEES 

 
Karpel Solutions has invested substantial sums of money and large amounts of time in recruiting, 
supervising and training Karpel Solutions’ employees.  Client acknowledges that it has a unique 
opportunity to evaluate Karpel Solutions employees’ performance, and has the potential to hire Karpel 
Solutions employees.  Client further acknowledges that such hiring away would substantially disrupt 
Karpel Solutions’ business and ability to provide its services for others.  Client understands that Karpel 
Solutions’ employees are subject to non-competition agreements; therefore, Client agrees during the 
term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter, Client will not in any manner, directly 
or indirectly, solicit, recruit or hire, or attempt to solicit, recruit or hire, or otherwise interfere with the 
employment or engagement of any other employees of Karpel Solutions who are employed or engaged 
by the Company at the time of the solicitation, attempted solicitation, and/or hire. 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

1. CONFIDENTIALITY. Neither party shall disclose or use any confidential or proprietary information of 
the other party.  The foregoing obligations shall not apply to information which the party receiving 
the information can demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of 
confidentiality prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through 
no act or fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the 
receiving party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently 
developed by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION. The parties recognize that certain data Client or Karpel 

Solutions may use in conjunction with DbK may be confidential Personally Identifiable Information of 
third parties. Karpel Solutions shall use all best efforts to protect the confidentiality of Personally 
Identifiable Information of third parties. Client Agreements that Karpel Solutions is not liable and 
Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any claims arising out of disclosure of Personally 
Identifiable Information caused by Client’s own negligence or misconduct. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 24 of 24 
 

 
3. DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY LAW. In the event that any Confidential Information is required to be 

disclosed pursuant to any law, code, regulation or court order from a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the receiving party shall give the disclosing party immediate written notice of such requirement and 
shall use its best efforts to seek or to cooperate with the disclosing party in seeking a protective order 
with respect to the Confidential Information requested. 

 
4. SIMILAR PROGRAMS AND MATERIALS. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions 

of this Agreement regarding confidentiality, the Agreement shall not preclude Karpel Solutions from 
developing for itself, or for others, programs or materials which are similar to those produced as a 
result of Services provided to Client. 
 

5. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The parties acknowledge that any breach of the confidentiality provisions of this 
Section will cause irreparable harm to the other party. Accordingly, the parties agree that the non-
breaching party may enforce the provisions of this Agreement by seeking an injunction, specific 
performance, criminal prosecution or other equitable relief without prejudice to any other rights and 
remedies the non-breaching party may have available to it. 

 
MARKETING 

 
1. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions may identify Client as a customer of Karpel Solutions in Karpel 

Solutions’ written promotional and marketing materials, as well as in any oral or visual presentations 
regarding the business of Karpel Solutions.   
 

2. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions of this Agreement regarding 
confidentiality, Karpel Solutions shall have the right to demonstrate for other prospective clients any 
application developed by Karpel Solutions under this Agreement and shall have the right to include 
information about any such application in marketing materials and presentations.   

 
MISCELLANEOUS  

 
1. ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS. To the extent possible, and under the terms required by Client, Client and 

Karpel Solutions may communicate by electronic means, including but not limited to, facsimile 
documents and email.  Both parties agree that:  a signature or an identification code ("USERID") 
contained in an electronic document is legally sufficient to verify the sender's identity and the 
document's authenticity; an electronic document that contains a signature or USERID is a signed 
writing; and that an electronic document, or any computer printout of it, is an original when 
maintained in the normal course of business. 

 
2. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, 

in whole or in part, the remaining portions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
9717 Landmark Parkway | St. Louis, MO 63127 | (314) 892-6300 

 

 
 
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

CONTRACT FOR 

 
 

 
 
 
 

PROSECUTORbyKarpel® & HOSTEDbyKarpel® 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 2 of 33 
 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1.DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 3 

2.SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................................... 4 

3.OTHER INFORMATION .................................................................................................. 5 

4.GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS ................................................... 5 

5.INVESTMENT SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 7 

 5.1 Payment Terms ..................................................................................................... 10 

6.ANNUAL SUPPORT ...................................................................................................... 11 

 6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES ................................................................................... 11 
 6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT ............................................................................. 12 

7.OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ................................................................. 13 

8.LICENSE TERMS AND USE ............................................................................................ 14 

9.WARRANTY ................................................................................................................. 15 

10.LIMITATION OF LIABILITY .......................................................................................... 16 

11.INDEMNIFICATION .................................................................................................... 17 

12.TERMINATION ........................................................................................................... 18 

13.GENERAL PROVISIONS .............................................................................................. 19 

14.MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS ........................................................................... 22 

 

 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 3 of 33 
 

This agreement between Karpel Computer Systems Inc., a Missouri corporation, doing business as Karpel 
Solutions (hereinafter referred to as “Karpel Solutions”) and 41st Judicial Circuit District Attorney, Alabma 
(hereinafter referred to as “Client”) is for the purposes of reviewing this proposal and to enter into this 
Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions  expressly incorporated herein, with respect 
to the license of Karpel Solutions’ copyrighted software program known as PROSECUTORbyKarpel® 
(hereinafter referred to as “PbK”).  
 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
1. “Confidential Information” means information of either Karpel Solutions or Client which is 

disclosed under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, electronic, sample 
or any other form by one of us to the other, and which is considered to be proprietary or trade 
secret by the disclosing party. Confidential Information of Karpel Solutions expressly includes, 
without limitation, the Software and Documentation. The Confidential Information of Client 
includes, without limitation, Personally Identifiable Information and Client Content. Confidential 
Information shall not include information which the party receiving the information can 
demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of confidentiality 
prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through no act or 
fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the receiving 
party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently developed 
by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. “Client Content” means all data, information, documents, and files Client uploads or inputs into 

PbK on the Service through the website, including, without limitation, Personally Identifiable 
Information.  
 

 
3. “Enhancements” means any specific configurations or customizations to the Software, which 

Client may request, and Karpel Solutions agrees in writing to provide.  
 

 
4. “Documentation” means any operating instructions, specifications and other documentation 

related to the operation, description and function of PbK, the Service or Website provided by 
Karpel Solutions whether supplied in paper or electronic form.  
 

 
5. “Intellectual Property” (IP) means any patents, patent applications, copyrights, mask works, 

trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names, inventions, improvements (whether 
patentable or not), trade secrets, Confidential Information, moral rights, and any other 
intellectual property rights provided by applicable law.  
 

 
6. “Hosted” or “Hosting” means the act of providing service and access to Client Content by the 

Internet.  
 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 4 of 33 
 

7. “Personally Identifiable Information” (PII) means any information that may be used to identify 
specific persons or individuals, which is collected by either Karpel Solutions or Client for use in 
conjunction with the use of PbK on HOSTEDbyKarpel. Personally Identifiable Information shall be 
considered Confidential Information.  
 

 
8. “PbK” mean the PROSECUTORbyKarpel® case management system and specifically the Client’s 

licensed copy of PbK. 
 
 

9. “DbK” mean the DEFENDERbyKarpel® case management system and specifically the Client’s 
licensed copy of PbK. 
 

 
10. “Service” means the HOSTEDbyKarpel hosting platform provided by Karpel Solutions which allows 

internet-based hosting of the Client’s licensed copy of PbK through the Website.  
 

 
11. “Service Level Requirements” means the technical service levels Karpel Solutions shall meet for 

Services as set forth below in the Service Level Commitments for the delivery of the Services. 
 

 
12. “Software” means the Client’s licensed copy of the PbK application, and includes any and all 

updates, enhancements, underlying technology or content transfer interfaces, other 
Enhancements and any Documentation as may be provided the Client by Karpel Solutions.   
 

 
13. “Website” means the content and functionality currently located at the domain 

www.hostedbykarpel.com on the internet, or any successor or related domain that provides 
access to the Software and Service. 
 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Karpel Solutions will perform all work in accordance with the descriptions, scopes and specifications 
hereafter described. 
 

  

Minimum 
Number of 
Days Out 

June 24, 2019 Final Contract & Implementation Agreement signed. Project Pre-Implementation 
Meeting scheduled.  Minimum Workstation requirements are explained to agency 
project manager. 

90 

July 4, 2019 Workstation assessment completed and any necessary hardware or software ordered 
to meet PbK Installation Prerequisites. 

80 

http://www.hostedbykarpel/


 

Initials _____________   Page 5 of 33 
 

July 24, 2019 4-hour remote pre-implementation meeting with project manager and System 
Administrator(s). PbK Overview. Project Team is selected including Karpel Staff and 
Customer System Administrator(s). (One Customer System Administrator must be a 
Policy Setting Attorney). This meeting will begin with application overview and 
enhancement definitions. PbK Pre-load configuration is explained, and initial 
Document Templates are received.  Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. 

60 

August 3, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress on hardware/software assessments, finalize pre-implementation 
meeting timeline agreement. 

50 

August 8, 
2019 

Agency Document Templates are received. System Administrator training begins. 
Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. System enhancements are completed and 
demonstrated. 

45 

August 13, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress and answer additional questions regarding pre-load spreadsheet. 

40 

August 18, 
2019 

Karpel Support installation and application testing on each workstation should begin 
at this time. Karpel Solutions or local IT support will schedule workstation application 
testing and follow Karpel testing procedures to thoroughly test browser functionality, 
document generation, Outlook Calendaring and email on each workstation. 

35 

August 18, 
2019 

The agency project manager will provide Karpel with any additional legacy 
documents.  

35 

August 18, 
2019 

Training Schedule is completed with assignment of all office staff to specific training 
sessions. The Policy Setting Attorney must attend the initial Configuration, Case 
Initiation and Event Entry sessions at a minimum. 

35 

August 23, 
2019 

Karpel will install the preliminary document templates and Event Entry Configuration. 
Application testing will begin. Agency project manager will report all inaccuracies to 
Karpel. All Custom Enhancements are tested and verified.  Begin testing of all 
application interfaces. 

30 

September 8, 
2019 

Complete installation and testing of all workstations by Karpel Solutions or local IT 
support. 

14 

September 15, 
2019 

Final teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager to verify 
final data accuracy. 

7 

 
Final configuration of PbK is performed with all System Administrators.  User training 
begins. Customer begins using PbK in a live state. 

Go Live 

 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Project Timeline”). 
 
The above Go Live date will no longer be valid if Client fails to sign this contract within 30 days of receipt. 
Furthermore, the Project Timeline may be modified as mutually agreed upon by Client and Karpel 
Solutions. 
 
Karpel Solutions will use its best efforts to convert existing Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and Corel 
WordPerfect® documents provided by Client up to the time of training as outlined in the Project Timeline 
listed above into a format that can be utilized by PbK.  However, Karpel Solutions does not support, nor 
will Karpel Solutions convert customized macros, auto-text files or other custom programming items not 
a part of the ordinary functionality of Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and/or Corel WordPerfect® 



 

Initials _____________   Page 6 of 33 
 

 
3. OTHER WORK 

 
Any additional work requirements outside the scope of this Agreement must be presented in the form of 
a written change order and must be approved by Client prior to start of such work. No additional charges 
will be incurred without prior written approval from Client.  
 

4. GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS 
 
In order for the project to be completed on time and on budget, Client shall provide at a minimum:   
 

1. Access to Client facilities while onsite, as deemed necessary by the Karpel Solutions project 
manager. 

  
2. Access to systems and equipment as required by Karpel Solutions including: 

 
a. PbK application access using Karpel Solutions laptops and Client’s network for training 

and application testing. 
 

b. Installation of the Karpel Solutions remote support tool on all desktops accessing the PbK 
application. Failure of Client to provide access to enable support tool will render the 
Karpel Solutions support null and void. 

 
 

3. Access to Client data and document templates (if applicable) will be provided by Client if such 
data is to be converted and populated by Karpel Solutions into PbK.  

a. Legacy data source(s) (i.e., any data from Client’s current system which is being replaced 
under this Agreement) must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but not 
later than 120 days from the above go live date. Additional data sources provided after 
this date will not be converted unless mutually agreed otherwise. 
 

b. Document templates must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but no 
later than 90 days from the above go live date. Document templates provided after this 
date will not be converted unless mutually agreed otherwise.  

 
 

4. An authorized attorney with decision making authority to assist in the definition of any project 
unknowns. 

a. Appointed decision maker must be present during the following activities: 
i. Project kickoff 

ii. Establishment of timeline 
iii. Interface definition meetings 
iv. Workflow meetings 
v. Charge language review and approval 

vi. Document template review and signoff 
vii. Data conversion signoff 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 7 of 33 
 

5. Sufficient time, if applicable, for all data reviews which will include a minimum of: 
a. Verification and review of ten (10) cases per year per department of any legacy system(s) data 

during each review. 
 

b. Client is responsible for validating their data and codes tables during the project. Validating 
data is key to a successful implementation. If issues arise with converted data after go-live, 
Karpel Solutions will determine if a fix is possible and an additional fee for this work may be 
required for the work required to fix the issue. 

 
 

6. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to the Software through the Service and Website is password-
protected. Karpel Solutions provides multiple authentication alternatives for access to the 
Website and Software. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY ENCOURAGES THE USE OF STRONG 
PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for Client’s use of the Service, 
Website or Software. Only the number of users set forth in the Cost Sheet may access the Service 
and Website. Client must inform their users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of 
the terms of this Agreement. Client is fully responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and 
agents who access the Service and Website. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for 
and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless for any unauthorized access to the Service 
and Website, including without limitation access caused by data destruction and/or failure to 
protect the login and password information of users. 

 
7. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. Client agrees to conduct all activities on the Service and Website in 

accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Access to the Service, Website, Software and 
Documentation must be solely for Client’s own internal use. Client may not (and may not allow 
any third party to) (i) alter, modify, decompile, mirror, translate, disassemble or otherwise reverse 
engineer any part of the Software, source code, algorithms, or underlying ideas of the Software; 
(ii) provide, lease, lend, subcontract, sublicense, or re-publish for,, service bureau or hosting 
purposes any or all of the Software or Documentation; (iii) reproduce, modify, copy, distribute, 
publish, display or create derivative works of any or all of the Software or Documentation or (iv) 
alter, remove, or obscure any copyright, trademark or other proprietary notices or confidentiality 
legends on or in the Software or Documentation.  
 
 

8. SUSPENSION. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to immediately suspend access to Software 
and/or Website without notice and at any time if Karpel Solutions suspects or has reason to 
suspect a security or data breach, if suspension is necessary to protect Karpel Solutions’ rights, 
Client’s rights or the rights of a third party, if Client misuses the Software and/or Website, and/or 
if Client otherwise violates this Agreement. Karpel Solutions will provide note to client upon 
suspension of the Service and Website.  
 

 

5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY 
 
Karpel Solutions will perform its Services as set forth in this Agreement in exchange for payment as set 
forth below.  
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 8 of 33 
 

Software Products/Licensing Qty. Price   Total 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel 87 $2,250  $195,750 
External Agency Portal 1 $30,000  $30,000 

Total Software       $225,750 

 
Installation Services Qty. Price   Total 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel Installation and Configuration 1 $1,000  $1,000 
Data Preload 1 $10,000  $10,000 
Client Support Tool, Scanning Tool and System 
Compatibility Check (per computer) 87 $50  $4,350 

Total Installation Services       $15,350 

     
Professional Services Qty. Price   Total 
Project Management No Additional Cost 
Pre-Implementation Services (on-site/days) 2 $2,400 2 resources $4,800 
Data Conversion:  FullCase 1 $50,000  $50,000 
Mock Go-Live and System Administrator Training (30 
days prior to go-live, hours, remote) 2 $2,400 2 resources $4,800 
Document Template Setup, Training and Conversion of 
Up To 100 Document (max of 50 Civil) Templates 1 $2,500  $2,500 

Total Professional Services       $62,100 

     
Training Services Qty. Price   Total 
Pre-Go-Live Review and Training (onsite/days) 3 $2,400 2 resources $7,200 
Go-Live Training (onsite/days) 5 $3,600 3 resources $18,000 
Post Go-Live Support and Training (remote/days) 1 $1,200 1 resource $1,200 

Total Training Services       $26,400 
    
Customization Services Qty. Price   Total 
Interface: Illinois Court Events (FullCourt) 1 $15,000  $15,000 

Total Customization Services       $15,000 

     
Estimated Travel Expenses    $16,300 

     

Total One-Time Costs       $360,900 
     

Annual Support Services Qty. Price   Total 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel 87 $450  $39,150 
External Agency Portal 1 $6,000  $6,000 
Hosted Services (per user/year) 87 $100  $8,700 
Unlimited eDiscovery 1 $10,875  $10,875 



 

Initials _____________   Page 9 of 33 
 

Interface: IL Court Interface 1 $3,000  $3,000 
Total Annual Support Services       $67,725 

 
Optional Items       Price 
JasperSoft Reporting Module    $2,000 

JasperSoft Reporting Module Annual Support    $10,000 
JasperSoft Reporting Module Training (minimum)    $600 

Custom Reports (per report)    $1,000 
Document Template Conversion After 100 Documents (per document)   

Criminal document templates    $25 
Civil document templates    $50 

Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per terabyte, per year)   $1,000 
Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per 100 terabytes, per 
year)   $32,000 

 
This pricing is based upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. Interfaces must conform to the appropriate Karpel Solutions Information Exchange Package 
Documentation (IEPD) for that interface. Interfaces that do not conform to the appropriate 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel IEPD (i.e., require a new schema to be designed or database modification), 
will require Karpel Solutions and Client review before approval of both design and potential 
additional development and maintenance costs.  
 

2. All phase one (1) interfaces must have an IRF (Interface Request Form) completed and signed off 
by all parties within 30 days of the project kick-off meeting. If not completed within this time 
frame, the interfaces will be automatically moved into phase 2. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL COSTS FROM THE OTHER VENDOR(S), WHICH IS NOT 
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ABOVE PRICING FOR THIS CONTRACT, AND WHICH WILL BE BILLED 
SEPARATELY.  CLIENT SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THESE SEPARATE COSTS.  
 

3. Interfaces not currently in production will be considered as “Phase 2” and implemented post-go 
live. 
 
 

4. The above costs do not include additional hardware, Microsoft licenses, or networking services 
which may be necessary to properly and legally operate PbK.  Such expenses are solely the Client’s 
responsibility. 
 

5. Changes to the Project Timeline or project scope will impact other work of Karpel Solutions and 
will result in an increased financial burden to Karpel Solutions.  As such, if a scheduled go-live date 
is rescheduled due to delays by the client or a client’s 3rd party vendor, a penalty of 10% of the 
total first year costs may be assessed by Karpel Solutions as compensation to Karpel Solutions for 
costs incurred and lost time, including, but not limited to, costs associated with booked travel and 
accommodations and time that will be lost on  other client start dates as a result of Client’s change 
to the Project Timeline. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 10 of 33 
 

 
6. Karpel Solutions will honor pricing proposals for Optional Services for up to 90 days of execution 

of this Agreement.   Upon the request of Client to provide an Optional Service, an official notice 
to begin the service must be received from Client before the Optional Services will be provided 
by Karpel Solutions.  This is to ensure there are no misunderstandings between Client and Karpel 
Solutions as to the provision of Optional Services. 
 

7. The aggregate document / file storage space included with the stated hosted service fee is two 
terabytes (2TB) of storage per instance of PbK. If the Client’s storage exceeds 2TB in any instance, 
any additional storage above 2TB will automatically be added to the Client’s bill at a flat rate of 
$1,000 per 1TB, per year.  Client hereby consents to this additional charge in advance and waives 
any requirement for additional notice regarding the same.   
 

8. Hosted eDiscovery services will be invoiced monthly at the rate of $1 per submission to the hosted 
eDiscovery site if Client does not elect the unlimited annual fee option. 
 

9. Statewide service is a free service provided to all PROSECUTORbyKarpel clients. To enroll in and 
activate this additional service, the Memorandum Of Understanding at Appendix A must be 
separately signed by the Client. 
 

10. All travel costs are estimates and the Client is responsible for all the project’s actual travel 
expenses to include airfare, lodging, ground transportation, meals, and incidental expenses.  
 

11. As with any project, all prices herein are subject to change as new information arises that will alter 
or impact the project or as workload for the project increases. Karpel Solutions will seek approval 
from Client if additional work becomes necessary to make requested changes during the project.  
 

12. In the event Client or Karpel terminates this Agreement, Client understands and agrees to pay 
$1,000 to Karpel Solutions as compensation for work to be performed by Karpel Solutions in 
connection with the return of Client Content and Confidential Information. All fees incurred up to 
point of termination are also due in full.    

 
5.1 Payment Terms 

 
50% of Software User Licenses is due and must be paid upon execution of this Agreement by Client, 
with the remaining amount, including first year annual fees, due and payable within thirty (30) days 
of completion of implementation of the Service and initial training provided to Client by Karpel 
Solutions. 

 
TERM. Annual Fees in the Agreement will begin upon Client’s go live month and will be due each year 
thereafter, unless Karpel Solutions or Client terminates this Agreement before the renewal date.  This 
Agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year and shall automatically renew for subsequent one-year 
terms, unless either Karpel Solutions or Client gives notice to the other party at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current term of Karpel Solutions or Client’s intent not to renew. 
Prior to the expiration of the term, Karpel Solutions will send Client a renewal invoice, which must be 
paid in full within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. Pricing for subsequent annual terms is 
subject to change at the sole discretion of Karpel Solutions.  Karpel Solutions will provide Client with 
at least ninety (90) days’ notice of any pricing change prior to the renewal date.  



 

Initials _____________   Page 11 of 33 
 

 
INTEREST AND LATE FEES. Past due accounts will be charged interest on a monthly basis, calculated  
at one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of the unpaid balance or the maximum rate allowable 
by law.  

 
6. ANNUAL SUPPORT 

 
6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES 
 
Client understands that technical support fees will be required annually, in order to receive software 
updates and technical support.  The support period shall begin from the date of go-live as part of the 
initial first year costs.  The Client may elect to purchase subsequent annual support, on a yearly basis 
at a fixed cost, and billed annually, separate and apart from any license fees required by this 
Agreement.  The option to purchase annual support is solely at the Client’s discretion. The Client’s 
license to use PbK is not dependent upon the Client purchasing annual support; however, if Client 
discontinues annual support, Client will not be provided with updated versions of the software, unless 
it is purchased. Provided Client’s computers, network and systems meet recommended specifications 
set by Karpel Solutions and the Client has purchased and is current with annual support payments, 
Karpel Solutions will provide updated versions of the System and/or Software as they become 
available during the terms of the contract.  If Client elects to renew the annual support service, Karpel 
Solutions has the right to increase current pricing for annual support at the time of renewal, provided 
that notice of the increased pricing is provided to Client prior to the effective date of the renewal of 
the annual support service.   
  

6.1.1 SUPPORT PROVIDED 
 

Karpel Solutions will provide support (e.g. software updates, general program enhancements and 
technical support) for all Software provided, including ongoing unlimited telephone technical 
support problem determination, and resolution. 

 
6.1.2 HOURS OF OPERATION 

 
Karpel Solutions will provide technical support Monday through Friday between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. through 9:00 p.m. Central time, via a toll-free telephone number provided. After-hours support 
is available as well via the same toll-free number which will reach the on-call support group. 

 
6.1.3 INCLUDED SUPPORT 

 
Support services include the detection and correction of Software errors and the implementation 
of all PbK program changes, updates, and upgrades. Karpel Solutions shall respond to the inquiries 
regarding the use and functionality of the solution as issues are encountered by Authorized Users. 
Support to users will be provided through the remote support tool installed on the end user’s 
computer. This tool was installed at the time of go-live allowing Karpel to provide the needed 
support to meet the service level agreement. If this access is not allowed, support will be delayed 
and the service level agreement (severity levels) will no longer be applicable. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 12 of 33 
 

6.1.4 RESPONSE TIMES 
 

Karpel Solutions shall be responsive and timely to technical support calls/inquires made by the 
Client.  The Client will first make support inquires through their qualified system administrators to 
assure the policies and business practices of the Client are enforced prior to contacting Karpel 
Solutions.  The timeliness of the response is dependent upon the severity of the issue/support 
problem, as defined below:      

The severity* of the issue/support problem shall determine the average problem resolution 
response time as follows: 

 
*If the remote support tool is not installed or available, support will not be provided.. 

Severity Level 1 shall be defined as urgent situations, when the Client’s production system is down 
and the Client is unable to use the system, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept 
the Client’s call for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is 
not immediately available, Karpel Solutions shall return the customer’s call within one (1) business 
hour.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 1 problems as quickly as possible, which on 
average should not exceed two (2) business days, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the 
Client.   

Severity Level 2 shall be defined as critical Software system component(s) that has significant 
outages and/or failure precluding its successful operation, and possibly endangering the 
customer’s environment.  Karpel Solution’s may operate but are severely restricted. Karpel 
Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the customer’s call for assistance at the time the 
customer places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel 
Solutions shall return the Client’s call within four (4) business hours.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve 
Severity Level 2 problems as quickly as possible, which on average should not exceed three (3) 
business days, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 

Severity Level 3 shall be defined as a minor problem that exists with Karpel Solution’s but the 
majority of the functions are still usable and some circumvention may be required to provide 
service.  Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call for assistance at the 
time the customer places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel 
Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business day.  Karpel 
Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 3 problems as quickly as possible, which should not exceed 
the next available release of Software, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 

General Assistance:  For general Software support/helpdesk calls not covered by the above 
severity level descriptions, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call 
for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately 
available, Karpel Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business 
day. 

 
6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT 

 
UPTIME: Karpel Solutions is committed to providing the Software, Website and Service in a  
consistent and reliable manner. Karpel Solutions will provide the Software, Website and Service 
to Client with a stated minimum uptime of 99.5% to Client.  



 

Initials _____________   Page 13 of 33 
 

 
SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE: Karpel Solutions periodically performs scheduled maintenance  
Including, but not limited to, outline, preventative or emergency maintenance of the Software, 
Website, and/or Service. Client understands that schedule maintenance may affect availability of 
the Service, Website, and/or Software.  If schedule maintenance is to be performed, Karpel 
Solutions will provide notice to Client three (3) days prior to the scheduled maintenance. Karpel 
Solutions will make every effort to schedule maintenance outside of normal business hours of the 
Client between the hours of ten (10) p.m. and five (5) a.m. Central Standard Time.  
 
DATA RETENTION AND BACKUPS:  As a part of the Service and Website, Karpel Solutions will  
maintain under this Agreement consistent, regular and validated backup both onsite and offsite 
of the Client Content, Confidential Information and Software. Backups occur and will be 
maintained pursuant to Karpel Solutions internal backup policies. Upon written request, Karpel 
Solutions will make available to Client a copy of Karpel Solutions’ current backup policies and 
procedures.  
 
AUDITS AND SECURITY: Karpel Solutions is committed to maintaining the security of Client  
Content, Confidential Information, and Software on Karpel Solutions’ Service and Website. Karpel 
Solutions will maintain the Software, Website and Service in a reasonably secure manner, subject 
to Client’s own obligations to protect and safeguard usernames and passwords on Client’s end. 
Karpel Solutions will perform annual security audits of the Website and Service to ensure the 
integrity and security of the Website and Service. Results of the Audits and Security Policy for 
Karpel Solutions will be made available to Client upon written request.  
 
DATA TRANSMISSION: Karpel Solutions ensures that all data transmitted to and from the Service 
and Website is transmitted at a minimum level of 128-bit SSL encryption using digital    certificates 
issued by an internationally recognized domain registrar and certificate authority.  
 

      DATA LOCATION: Karpel Solutions will maintain the Service, Software, Client Content and  
   Confidential Information of Client in a SAS 70/SSAE 16 certified data facility.  

 
7. OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY  

 
KARPEL SOLUTIONS OWNERSHIP: Karpel Solutions retains all right, title and interest in and to the 
Software, Documentation, Website, Service, and related Intellectual Property.  Any suggestions, solutions, 
improvements, corrections, or other contributions Client provides regarding the Software, 
Documentation, Website or Services will become the property of Karpel Solutions and Client hereby 
assigns all such rights to Karpel Solutions without charge. Client is granted a non-exclusive, non-
transferable license with respect to the Software on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 8 below. 
 
CLIENT OWNERSHIP: Client retains all rights, title, and interest in and to the Client Content. Client hereby 
grants to Karpel Solutions and Karpel Solutions hereby accepts a non-exclusive, non-transferable, 
worldwide, fully paid license to use, copy, and modify the Client Content solely to the extent necessary 
and for the sole purposes of providing access to the Software, Documentation, Website, and Services or 
otherwise complying with its obligations under this Agreement.  

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 14 of 33 
 

8. LICENSE TERMS AND USE 
 
The Software, is a proprietary product of Karpel Solutions.  It is licensed (not sold) and is licensed to Client 
for its use and only in accordance with the terms set forth below. During the term of this Agreement, 
Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to use Karpel 
Solutions solely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Client’s license will terminate 
immediately and automatically upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  Client may not sub-
license any rights under this Agreement to any party without Karpel Solution’s prior written consent. 
Client’s license is subject at all times to Client’s full compliance with this Agreement. 

 
1. Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive and non-transferable sublicense to use any 

associated manuals and/or documentation furnished.  
 
2. Client cannot distribute, rent, sublicense, or lease the Software. A separate license is required for 

each authorized user or employee. Each license may not be shared by more than one full time 
employee or user (defined as working 20 hours or more per week), nor more than two (2) part-
time employees or users (defined as working less than 20 hours per week each and working no 
more than 40 hours per week combined). The Client agrees that Karpel Solutions will suffer 
damages from the Client’s breach of this term and further agrees that in the event of such breach 
by Client, Karpel Solutions shall be entitled to and Client must pay to Karpel Solutions the 
monetary equivalent of the costs that would have been incurred by Client had Client properly 
obtained the license, installation and training associated with each violation, in addition to any 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by Karpel Solutions with respect to the same 

 
3. This license does not transfer any rights to Software source codes, unless Karpel Solutions ceases 

to do business without transferring its obligations under this Agreement to another qualified 
software business.  Karpel Solutions will, at Client’s expense, enter into escrow agreement for the 
storage of the source codes. 

 
4. Karpel Solutions and its Documentation are protected by copyright and trade secret laws. Client 

may not use, copy, modify, or transfer the Software or its Documentation, in whole or in part, 
except as expressly provided herein. Karpel Solutions retains all rights in any copy, derivative or 
modification to the Software or its Documentation no matter by whom made. Karpel Solutions is 
licensed for single installations of one full time employee or two part-time employees as defined 
in Section 8.2 above. A separate license is required for each installation of Karpel Solutions. Client 
shall not provide or disclose or otherwise make available the application or any portion thereof in 
any form to any third party. Client acknowledges that unauthorized copying and distribution will 
cause substantial damage to Karpel Solutions far greater than the value of the copies involved. 

 
5. Karpel Solutions was developed exclusively at private expense and is Karpel Solutions’ trade 

secret. For all purposes of the Freedom of Information Act or any other similar statutory right of 
“open” or public records, the Software shall be considered exempt from disclosure.  Karpel 
Solutions is "commercial computer software" subject to limited utilization "Restricted Rights."  
PbK, including all copies, is and shall remain proprietary to Karpel Solutions or its licensors.  In the 
event that a third party seeks to compel disclosure and/or production of the Software, the 
Documentation, and/or the Website by court order or otherwise, Client shall promptly give notice 
to Karpel Solutions so as to allow Karpel Solutions to take whatever steps it deems necessary to 



 

Initials _____________   Page 15 of 33 
 

prevent such disclosure and/or production, and Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions 
in connection therewith. 

 
6. Public Agency Participation: Other public agencies may utilize the terms and conditions 

established by this Contract. “Public agency”, for purposes of this paragraph, is defined to include 
any city, county, district, public authority, public agency, municipality, and other political 
subdivision. Client is not an agent, partner, or representative of such public agency, and is not 
obligated or liable for any action or debts that may arise out of such independently negotiated 
procurements. These so called “piggy-back” awards shall be made independently by each public 
agency, and that agency shall accept sole responsibility for placing orders with Vendor. Client does 
not accept any responsibility or involvement in the purchase orders or Contracts issued by other 
public agencies. Any such contract by another public agency must be in accordance with the 
statutes, codes, ordinances, charter and/or procurement rules and regulations of such public 
agency. 

 
9. WARRANTY  

 
1. LIMITED WARRANTY: Karpel Solutions warrants it will provide the Services and Website in a 

professional manner by qualified personnel. Karpel Solutions warrants it has the requisite power 
and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. Karpel Solutions 
warrants that the performance by Karpel Solutions of any services described in this Agreement 
shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Karpel Solutions warrants it 
will provide access to and use of the Software, Service and Website in material accordance with 
the Service Level Commitment outlined in this Agreement. No representations or warranties as 
to the use, functionality or operation of the Website, Software, or Service are made by Karpel 
Solutions other than as expressly stated in this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions disclaims all other 
warranties as set forth in Section 9.5 below. 

 
2. INTERNET: Karpel Solutions makes the Website, Software and Services available to Client through 

the internet to the extent commercially reasonable, and subject to outages, communication and 
data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in Internet communications. Client 
recognizes that problems with the Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, 
impairments or congestion, or the configuration of Client’s computer systems, may prevent, 
interrupt or delay Client’s access to the Service, Website or Software. Client agrees that Karpel 
Solutions is not liable for and agreed to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any delays, 
interruptions, suspensions or unavailability of the Website or Software attributable to problems 
with the Internet or the configuration of Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
3. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS: Karpel Solutions provides the Services and Website based upon the 

system requirements as specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions 
is not liable for and agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of the Services, or 
the Software based upon Client’s failure to comply with the system requirements of Karpel 
Solutions. 

  
4. WARRANTY LIMITATION: The warranties set forth in this Agreement do not apply if non-

compliance is caused by, or has resulted from (i) Client’s failure to use any new or corrected 
versions of the Software or Documentation made available by Karpel Solutions, (ii) use of the 



 

Initials _____________   Page 16 of 33 
 

Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client for any purpose other than that 
authorized in this Agreement, (iii) use of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services in 
combination with other software, data or products that are defective, incompatible with, or not 
authorized in writing by Karpel Solutions for use with the Software, Documentation, Website, or 
Services, (iv) misuse of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client, (v) any 
malfunction of Client’s software, hardware, computers, computer-related equipment or network 
connection, (vi) any modification of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services not 
performed by or otherwise authorized by Karpel Solutions in writing, or (vii) an event of Force 
Majeure.  

 
5. DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE MADE IN LIEU OF ALL 

OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NONINFRINGEMENT, TITLE, 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING OUT 
OF A USE IN TRADE OR COURSE OF DEALING OR PERFORMANCE. KARPEL SOLUTIONS DOES NOT 
WARRANT (i) THAT ACCESS TO OR USE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL BE CONTINUOUS, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, (ii) 
THAT THE RESULTS ARISING OUT OF CLIENT’S USE OF THE SOFTWARE, DOCUMENTATION OR 
WEBSITE WILL BE ACCURATE, COMPLETE OR ERROR-FREE, OR (iii) THAT THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL MEET CLIENT’S NEEDS. 

 
6. EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES: If the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services provided under this 

Agreement do not materially comply with the requirements stated in the Limited Warranty 
Section outlined above, Karpel Solutions’ sole obligation shall be to correct or modify the 
Software, Documentation, Website or Services, at no additional charge to Client. If Karpel 
Solutions determines it is unable to correct what is non-conforming, Client’s sole remedy will be 
to receive a refund of the fees paid for the non-conforming Services, even if such remedy fails of 
its essential purpose. In that event, Client may also elect to terminate this Agreement as set forth 
in Section 12 of this Agreement. 

  
10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

 
CLIENT AGREES THAT KARPEL SOLUTIONS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS OF DATA, COST OF 
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF KARPEL 
SOLUTIONS HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND CLIENT WAIVES ANY RIGHTS 
AND AGREES TO HOLD KARPEL SOLUTIONS HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY SUCH DAMAGES OR 
LOSSES. THIS LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY), STATUTE OR OTHERWISE. REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 
THE CLAIM, KARPEL SOLUTIONS’ TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO: (i) THE EXTENT 
AND AMOUNT OF ANY INSURANCE COVERAGE WHICH IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), OR (ii) THE 
AMOUNT OF FEES CLIENT HAS PAID TO KARPEL SOLUTIONS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD PRIOR TO SUCH CLAIM(S) ARISING.  TO THE EXTENT THAT INSURANCE 
COVERAGE IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), CLIENT’S SOLE RECOURSE SHALL BE PAYMENT OF ANY 
AVAILABLE INSURANCE PROCEEDS. 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 17 of 33 
 

11. INDEMNIFICATION  
 

CLIENT’S INDEMNIFICATION: Client will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Karpel Solutions from and 
against any and all liability, damage, loss or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of 
(i) any claim, demand, action or proceeding, statutory or otherwise,  relating to the use of the Website, 
Software, Documentation or Services in a manner not expressly described or permitted by this 
Agreement, (ii) use of the Website, Software, Documentation or Services in any unlawful manner or for 
any unlawful purpose, (iii) Karpel Solutions’ use of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that 
allegedly infringes upon or violates any third party Intellectual Property rights, or (iv) Karpel Solutions’ use 
of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that allegedly violates privacy rights or other rights with 
respect to Personally Identifiable Information of a third party.  

 
KARPEL SOLULTIONS’ INDEMNIFICATION: Karpel Solutions will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Client from and against any claim or suit brought against Client alleging that the Software directly infringes 
upon or violates any valid U.S. Intellectual Property rights. Karpel Solutions shall have the right to select 
counsel for purposes of its defense obligations hereunder and will at all times have the right to control 
the defense of such claim or suit.  Karpel Solutions will not be liable for any cost or expense incurred by 
Client in connection with any such suit or claim, without Karpel Solutions’ prior and specific authorization 
and consent.  Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions and to provide such assistance as may be 
requested by Karpel Solutions in connection with the defense of such claim or suit.   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Karpel Solutions shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify Client if the 
infringement claim is based solely or in part upon or arises out of: (i) any modification of or alteration to 
the Software not made by Karpel Solutions, (ii) any combination or use of the Software with products, 
hardware or services not supplied by Karpel Solutions or approved in writing by Karpel Solutions in 
advance of such combination, (iii) Client’s continuance of allegedly infringing activity after being notified 
of such activity, or after being informed of modifications that would have avoided the alleged 
infringement, (iv) Client’s failure to use corrections or enhancements made available by Karpel Solutions, 
(v) use of the Software not in accordance with the applicable Documentation or this Agreement, or (vi) 
use of the Software in a manner for which it was neither designed nor contemplated.  
 
In no event shall Karpel Solutions’ total liability and obligation under this Section exceed the total fees 
Client has paid to Karpel Solutions under this Agreement in the twelve (12) month period prior to the 
assertion or filing of such claim against Client. The foregoing remedies constitute Client’s sole and 
exclusive remedies, and Karpel Solutions’ entire liability and obligation with respect to any suit or claim 
for infringement or misappropriation of third-party Intellectual Property rights or with respect to the 
Software.  
 
NOTIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OF INDEMNIFIED PARTIES: The indemnification obligations set forth above 
will apply only if and to the extent (i) the indemnified party gives prompt written notice to the 
indemnifying party of the assertion of any such claims, demands, action or proceeding, (ii) the 
indemnifying party has the right to select counsel and control the defense and all negotiations for 
settlement thereof and (iii) the indemnified party provides all reasonable information, assistance and 
cooperation required to defend such claim, demand, action or proceeding. The indemnifying party shall 
not settle or dispose of any such claim, demand, action or proceeding without written notification to the 
indemnified party in the event that the proposed settlement or disposal would materially adversely 
impact the indemnified party. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 18 of 33 
 

 
12. TERMINATION 

  
TERMINATION: Client may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Karpel Solutions of 
Client’s intent to terminate in the event that Karpel Solutions has failed to perform under or materially 
breaches this Agreement.  Thereafter, Karpel Solutions will have thirty (30) days from the receipt of such 
notice to cure the alleged failure or breach.  If at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Karpel Solutions 
has not cured the alleged failure or breach, then Client may terminate this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions 
may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days’ written notice for any reason. Either party may 
immediately terminate this Agreement in the event the other party (i) files for, or has filed against it, a 
bankruptcy petition, and such petition is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of the filing date, (ii) ceases 
to conduct business in the normal course, (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (iv) is 
liquidated or otherwise dissolved, (v) becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts in the normal course, 
or (vi) has a receiver, trustee or custodian appointed for it.  

 
RIGHTS AFTER EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION: Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Karpel 
Solutions will immediately terminate Client’s access to and use of the Website, Documentation, and 
Services. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, each party shall immediately cease use of any 
Confidential Information received from the other party. Within thirty (30) days of written request 
following termination or expiration of this Agreement, Karpel Solutions shall coordinate with Client with 
respect to the return of Client Content and Confidential Information obtained or shared during the course 
of the Agreement.  Client understands that upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, Client 
must return to Karpel Solutions (or at Karpel Solutions’ election, destroy and certify such destruction in 
writing) any Documentation or other materials provided by Karpel Solutions, whether in written or 
electronic form, regarding the Website, Software or Services provided under this Agreement.  

 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 19 of 33 
 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
NOTICES: Any notices provided under this Agreement will be in writing in the English language and will be 
deemed to have been properly given if delivered personally or if sent by (i) a recognized overnight courier, 
(ii) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (iii) electronic means, 
followed by mailing a copy by regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid. Karpel Solutions’ address for such notices 
is set forth below. Client’s address for such notices will be the address on file with Karpel Solutions as 
provided by Client. Such address or contact information may be revised from time to time by Karpel 
Solutions and/or Client by written notice as described in this Section. All notices sent by mail will be 
deemed received on the tenth (10th) business day after deposit in the mail. All notices sent by overnight 
courier will be deemed given on the next business day after deposit with the overnight courier. All notices 
sent by electronic means will be deemed given on the next business day after successful transmission. 

  
Karpel Solutions 
c/o Jeffery L. Karpel, CEO 
9717 Landmark Parkway, Suite 200 
St. Louis, MO 63127 
(314) 892-6300 
karpel@karpel.com 

 
GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. This Agreement is to be construed and governed by the 
laws of the United States and the State of Missouri, without regard to conflict of law’s provisions. Any 
dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement must be brought exclusively in the appropriate 
court(s) located in St. Louis County, Missouri, and Client expressly waives any and all objections regarding 
jurisdiction, venue, and forum non conviens in such court(s). If either Karpel Solutions or Client employs 
attorneys to enforce any rights arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party will be 
entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-prevailing party.  

 
  

mailto:karpel@karpel.com


 

Initials _____________   Page 20 of 33 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date set forth 
below. This Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions attached hereto and incorporated 
herein and all other attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, superseding all 
prior written and oral agreements.  The parties hereto agree that this Agreement may not be modified, 
altered, or changed except by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.  Prior to acceptance of 
this Agreement, Karpel Solutions reserves the right to make modifications to this Agreement. The 
signatories warrant they have the authority to bind their respective party.   

 

Winnebago County, IL    Karpel Solutions 

 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 21 of 33 
 

Mailing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Billing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Billing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 

Tax Exempt?   No □     Yes □ If yes, please attach copy of tax exempt certificate 
 
Agency Project Manager Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Project IT Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 



 

Initials _____________   Page 22 of 33 
 

14. MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

KARPEL COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC. (dba “Karpel Solutions”), 
MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
GENERAL TERMS 

 
1. ACCEPTANCE TERM. The proposal attached to these Master Terms and Conditions is tendered for 

acceptance in its entirety within thirty (30) days from the date of the proposal, after which it is to be 
considered null and void.   

 
2. MODIFICATION AND WAIVER. Any modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

both parties. Neither party will be deemed to have waived any of its rights under the Agreement by 
any statement or representation other than (i) by an Authorized Representative and (ii) in an explicit 
written waiver. No waiver of a breach of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of any prior or 
subsequent breach of this Agreement.  

 
3. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Karpel Solutions, Client, 

and Karpel Solutions’ successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client may not assign or 
otherwise transfer this Agreement or Client’s rights and obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of Karpel Solutions, and any purported assignment or other transfer without 
such consent will be void and of no force or effect. Karpel Solutions may assign and /or transfer this 
Agreement or Karpel Solutions’ rights and obligations under this Agreement at any time and the 
Client’s consent to such assignment or transfer is not needed.  

 
4. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the extent that 

performance of its obligations or attempts to cure any breach thereof are delayed or prevented by 
reason of any act of God, government, fire, natural disaster, accident, terrorism, network or 
telecommunication system failure, sabotage or any other cause beyond the control of such party 
(“Force Majeure”), provided that such party promptly gives the other party written notice of such 
Force Majeure.  

 
5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. The parties will be deemed to have the status of independent 

contractors, and nothing in this Agreement will be deemed to place the parties in the relationship of 
employer-employee, principal-agent, or partners or joint ventures. Neither party has the authority to 
bind, commit or make any representations, claims or warranties on behalf of the other party without 
the other party’s prior written approval. 

 
6. SOFTWARE ANOMALIES. New commercial software releases or upgrades, or any hardware and/or 

software owned by or licensed to Client, used in connection with Karpel Solutions’ Services may have 
anomalies, performance or integration issues unknown to Karpel Solutions which can impact the 
timely, successful implementation of information systems.  Karpel Solutions will inform the Client 
promptly if this occurs and will attempt to analyze, correct and/or work around the anomalies or 
performance issues on a "best efforts" basis.  Karpel Solutions is not responsible for any delay or 
inability to complete its Services if such anomalies or performance issues occur.  Client is responsible 
for payment for all of Karpel Solutions’ Services at the rate stated in the Agreement whether or not a 
successful solution is achieved. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 23 of 33 
 

 
7. SOFTWARE AUDIT. Client agrees to allow Karpel Solutions the right to audit Client’s use and license of 

the software at any time. Client will cooperate with the audit, including providing access to any books, 
computers, records or other information that relate to the use of Karpel Solutions. Such audit will not 
unreasonably interfere with Client’s activities. In the event that an audit reveals unauthorized use, 
reproduction, distribution, or other exploitation of the software, Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions 
for the reasonable cost of the audit, in addition to such other rights and remedies that Karpel Solutions 
may have. Absent extenuating circumstances or circumstances which lead Karpel Solutions to believe 
that there has been unauthorized use, reproduction, distribution or other exploitation of Karpel 
Solutions by Client or Client’s agents, Karpel Solutions will not conduct an audit more than once per 
year.  

 
8. CLIENT ENVIRONMENT. Client is responsible for the application, operation and management of its 

information technology environment, including but not limited to: (a) purchasing, licensing and 
maintaining hardware and software; (b) following appropriate operating procedures; (c) following 
appropriate protective measures to safeguard the software and data from unauthorized duplication, 
modification, destruction or disclosure; (d) following adequate backup contingency plans; and (e) 
employing qualified personnel to obtain the desired results. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for the 
loss of data in the software or security breaches that result in the unauthorized dissemination of data 
contained in Karpel Solutions that is the result of Client not following appropriate operating 
procedures, security and protective measures and/or following adequate backup contingency plans.  

 
9. MATERIALS. Client Agrees to pay Karpel Solutions for materials purchased for the Client’s use.  

Materials may include computer hardware, software, hosting, facility leases, other services, 
telecommunications charges, freight, shipping, mailing, document reproduction and any other such 
costs incurred in performance of services for Client.  Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions for all out 
of town travel expenses, such as automobile/airline travel, hotel, meals, and cab fare provided these 
costs are discussed and approved in advance by Client.  Billing for services rendered on-site on an as 
needed basis will include portal-to-portal (travel) time.  

 
10. COPYRIGHT. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to seek damages if Client is responsible for a violation 

of Karpel Solutions’ copyright, and Client assumes full responsibility for the acts and omissions of its 
agents acting in the course and scope of their duties for Client with respect to the protection of Karpel 
Solutions’ copyright. 

 
10. INTERNET AND NETWORK. Karpel Solutions makes the software available to Client through the 

Internet and/or Client’s own network and systems, to the extent commercially reasonable, and 
subject to outages, communication and data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in the 
Internet and network communications on the Client’s own network and systems. Client recognizes 
that problems with the Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, impairments or 
congestion, or the configuration of Client’s own computer systems and network, may prevent, 
interrupt or delay Client’s access to Karpel Solutions. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable 
for and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any delays, interruptions, suspensions or 
unavailability of Karpel Solutions attributable to problems with the Internet or the configuration of 
Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
11. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to Karpel Solutions is password-protected. Karpel Solutions provides 

multiple authentication alternatives for access to Karpel Solutions. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY 



 

Initials _____________   Page 24 of 33 
 

ENCOURAGES THE USE OF STRONG PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible 
for Client’s use of Karpel Solutions. Only the number of authorized users may access the Service and 
Website. Client must inform their users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of the 
terms of this Agreement. Client is fully responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and agents 
who access Karpel Solutions. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client agrees to 
hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any unauthorized access to Karpel Solutions and data or 
information contained therein, including without limitation, access caused by Client’s failure to 
protect the login and password information of users.  

 
12. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS. Karpel Solutions provides Karpel Solutions based upon the system 

requirements as specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not 
liable for and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of Karpel Solutions 
based upon Client’s failure to comply with the system requirements of Karpel Solutions.   

 
13. THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to any third 

party software or as to Karpel Solutions’ ability to support such software on an on-going basis.    
 
14. LIMITED ENGAGEMENT. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to the quality 

of, or the ability of software developed by Karpel Solutions to operate with, any hardware, network, 
software, systems and/or external data flows already in place at Client's facilities or as may be added 
by the Client.   

 
NON-SOLICITATION OF KARPEL SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEES 

 
Karpel Solutions has invested substantial sums of money and large amounts of time in recruiting, 
supervising and training Karpel Solutions’ employees.  Client acknowledges that it has a unique 
opportunity to evaluate Karpel Solutions employees’ performance, and has the potential to hire Karpel 
Solutions employees.  Client further acknowledges that such hiring away would substantially disrupt 
Karpel Solutions’ business and ability to provide its services for others.  Client understands that Karpel 
Solutions’ employees are subject to non-competition agreements; therefore, Client agrees during the 
term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter, Client will not in any manner, directly 
or indirectly, solicit, recruit or hire, or attempt to solicit, recruit or hire, or otherwise interfere with the 
employment or engagement of any other employees of Karpel Solutions who are employed or engaged 
by the Company at the time of the solicitation, attempted solicitation, and/or hire. 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

1. CONFIDENTIALITY. Neither party shall disclose or use any confidential or proprietary information of 
the other party.  The foregoing obligations shall not apply to information which the party receiving 
the information can demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of 
confidentiality prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through 
no act or fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the 
receiving party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently 
developed by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION. The parties recognize that certain data Client or Karpel 

Solutions may use in conjunction with PbK may be confidential Personally Identifiable Information of 
third parties. Karpel Solutions shall use all best efforts to protect the confidentiality of Personally 



 

Initials _____________   Page 25 of 33 
 

Identifiable Information of third parties. Client Agreements that Karpel Solutions is not liable and 
Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any claims arising out of disclosure of Personally 
Identifiable Information caused by Client’s own negligence or misconduct. 

 
3. DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY LAW. In the event that any Confidential Information is required to be 

disclosed pursuant to any law, code, regulation or court order from a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the receiving party shall give the disclosing party immediate written notice of such requirement and 
shall use its best efforts to seek or to cooperate with the disclosing party in seeking a protective order 
with respect to the Confidential Information requested. 

 
4. SIMILAR PROGRAMS AND MATERIALS. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions 

of this Agreement regarding confidentiality, the Agreement shall not preclude Karpel Solutions from 
developing for itself, or for others, programs or materials which are similar to those produced as a 
result of Services provided to Client. 
 

5. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The parties acknowledge that any breach of the confidentiality provisions of this 
Section will cause irreparable harm to the other party. Accordingly, the parties agree that the non-
breaching party may enforce the provisions of this Agreement by seeking an injunction, specific 
performance, criminal prosecution or other equitable relief without prejudice to any other rights and 
remedies the non-breaching party may have available to it. 

 
MARKETING 

 
1. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions may identify Client as a customer of Karpel Solutions in Karpel 

Solutions’ written promotional and marketing materials, as well as in any oral or visual presentations 
regarding the business of Karpel Solutions.   
 

2. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions of this Agreement regarding 
confidentiality, Karpel Solutions shall have the right to demonstrate for other prospective clients any 
application developed by Karpel Solutions under this Agreement and shall have the right to include 
information about any such application in marketing materials and presentations.   

 
MISCELLANEOUS  

 
1. ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS. To the extent possible, and under the terms required by Client, Client and 

Karpel Solutions may communicate by electronic means, including but not limited to, facsimile 
documents and email.  Both parties agree that:  a signature or an identification code ("USERID") 
contained in an electronic document is legally sufficient to verify the sender's identity and the 
document's authenticity; an electronic document that contains a signature or USERID is a signed 
writing; and that an electronic document, or any computer printout of it, is an original when 
maintained in the normal course of business. 

 
2. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, 

in whole or in part, the remaining portions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

 
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 26 of 33 
 

 
 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 

BETWEEN 41ST JUDICIAL CIRCUIT DISTRICT ATTORNEY AND KARPEL SOLUTIONS 
FOR PARTICIPATION IN STATEWIDE DATA SHARING 

FOR PROSECUTORBYKARPEL® 
 

Parties: 
 

1. The parties to this MOU are Karpel Solutions and Prosecution Offices that are willing to 
contribute potentially Confidential, Personally Identifiable, Criminal Justice Information 
to a Statewide Search system for purposes of information sharing with other Prosecution 
Offices. 
 

2. The parties agree that maximum participation by all Prosecution Offices will 
strengthen the purposes of this MOU. Accordingly, the parties anticipate and desire 
that other eligible offices will join this MOU from time to time in the future. A 
joining agency shall also be considered a party and shall have the same rights, 
privileges, obligations, and responsibilities as the original parties. 

 
Authority 

 

Each participating Office warrants that it has the legal authority to enter into this MOU and 
share Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information and Criminal Justice 
Information with each other and with Karpel Solutions for the sole purpose under this MOU 
for the delivery of a Statewide Search function. 

Definitions 
 
Confidential Information - Means information of either Karpel Solutions or Contributing Party 
which is disclosed under this MOU in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, electronic, 
sample or any other form by one office to the other, and which is considered to be proprietary, 
sensitive, or trade secret by the disclosing party. Confidential Information of Karpel Solutions 
expressly includes HOSTEDbyKarpel, PROSECUTORbyKarpel, and Statewide Search. The 
Confidential Information of Contributing Party includes, subject to the limitation below, 
Personally Identifiable Information and Criminal Justice Information. Confidential Information 



 

Initials _____________   Page 27 of 33 
 

for purposes of this MOU does not include information with access restricted to certain users or 
teams within PROSECUTORbyKarpel by the Contributing Party. 

Contributing Party - A Prosecuting Attorney's Office that is a party to this MOU. 

Criminal Justice Information - Any information collected and retained by each Contributing Party 
within PROSECUTORbyKarpel pel and securely cached on HOSTEDbyKarpel for use by Statewide 
Search. Criminal Justice Information shall be considered Confidential Information. Criminal 
Justice Information includes limited information regarding defendants, co-defendants, court 
dates, charges, cases, and law enforcement referrals. 

HOSTEDbyKarpel - Application and database delivery platform and website used by 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel to securely cache Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable 
Information, and Criminal Justice Information delivered through the Statewide Search function. 

Information - Includes Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information and 
Criminal Justice Information. 

Personally Identifiable Information - Means any information that may be used to identify specific 
persons or individuals, which is collected by each Contributing Party for use in conjunction with 
the use of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and Statewide Search on HOSTEDbyKarpel.  Personally Identifiable 
Information shall be considered Confidential Information. Personally Identifiable Information 
includes pedigree information used to identify specific persons or individuals and may include, 
but is not limited to, date of birth, social security numbers, addresses, and alias names. 

PROSECUTORbyKarpel - Means the PROSECUTORbyKarpel criminal case management system and 
specifically each Contributing Party's licensed copy of PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

Statewide Search - Functionality contained in PROSECUTORbyKarpel that allows each Contributing 
Party to query or search defendant information, co-defendant information, court dates charge 
and case information of other Contributing Parties. 

Purpose 
 

The Contributing Parties and Karpel Solutions agree that criminal history and case information 
currently available through other law enforcement and public portals is inadequate and 
sometimes incomplete. 

The Contributing Parties and Karpel Solutions agree that the sharing of information between each 
Contributing Party will benefit criminal justice statewide as it will allow for better charging, filing 
and case disposition decisions. 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to establish permissions and 
guidelines for the use of Personally Identifiable Information, Confidential Information, and 
Criminal Justice. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 28 of 33 
 

Information data the parties agree to share between each other and Karpel Solutions in 
connection with the Statewide Search function inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel that is housed in a 
secure database on HOSTEDbyKarpel. 

In addition to the permissions and guidelines the purpose of the Statewide Search function is 
multifold: 

 

1. Defendant information - Provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to search 
and view basic defendant pedigree information that is contained in each Contributing 
Party's installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure database on 
HOSTEDbyKarpel accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 

2. Charge and Case information - Provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to 
search and view defendant charge, referral and basic case information contained in each 
Contributing Party's installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure 
database on HOSTEDbyKarpel that is accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 

3. Co-Defendant information - Provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to search and 
view co-defendant information and associations that are contained in each Contributing 
Party's installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure database on 
HOSTEDbyKarpel that is accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 
4. Court Dates - provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to search and view court 

date information for cases that are contained in each Contributing Party's installation of 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure database on HOSTEDbyKarpel that is 
accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 
Ownership, Entry and Maintenance of Information 

 

1. Each Contributing Party retains sole ownership of, exclusive control over, and sole 
responsibility over all the information it contributes through Statewide Search including 
Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information and Criminal Justice 
Information, and may at any time update, correct or delete any information contained in 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel. Any changes made to Information in PROSECUTORbyKarpel by the 
Contributing Party will be reflected in the Information shared through Statewide Search. 
Information shared through Statewide Search cannot be altered by the Contributing Party 
independent of PROSECUTORbyKarpel. All entries into Statewide Search are clearly 
delineated to identify the jurisdiction or Contributing Party. 
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 29 of 33 
 

2. Each Contributing Party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring the 
information it enters into PROSECUTORbyKarpel and subsequently shared through 
Statewide Search was not obtained in violation of any federal, state, local or tribal law 
applicable to the Contributing Party. 
 

3. Each Contributing Party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring 
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, policies and procedures applicable to the 
party's entry of information in PROSECUTORbyKarpel that is subsequently shared through 
Statewide Search and cached by Karpel Solutions on HOSTEDbyKarpel. 
 

4. As information entered into PROSECUTORbyKarpel and subsequently shared through 
Statewide Search is separately maintained by each Contributing Party in their separate 
installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel, and for which each Contributing Party is solely 
responsible and accountable, information is not alterable or changeable in the Statewide 
Search database in any way by any other Contributing Party. 
 

5. Statewide Search is only populated with loaned information derived from each 
Contributing Party and is not intended to be an official repository of original records, or to 
be used as a substitute for one, nor is the information contained in Statewide Search 
accorded any independent record status. Statewide Search is merely an application to 
facilitate the sharing of copies of the information outlined above that is contributed from 
already existing records contained in each Contributing Party's installation of 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

6. Each Contributing Party agrees to treat information shared through Statewide Search, 
including Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information, and Criminal 
Justice Information as confidential to the extent authorized by law, including the Freedom 
of Information Act, 5.U.S.C. § 552, the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a, and STATE SUNSHINE 
LAWS. 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 30 of 33 
 

Access to and Use of Information 
 

1. Each Contributing Party will contribute Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable 
Information, and Criminal Justice Information automatically through 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel. Each Contributing party agrees and permits other Contributing 
Parties to access and use through the Statewide Search function such Confidential 
Information, Personally Identifiable Information, and Criminal Justice Information. 
 

2. Each Contributing Party will have access via PROSECUTORbyKarpel through the Statewide 
Search function to Information securely cached on HOSTEDbyKarpel for use by Statewide 
Search. 
 

3. Each Contributing Party agrees and understands that cases, persons, and other 
Information that is given an authorization level by each Contributing Party within 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel is not subject to dissemination to other Contributing Parties 
through Statewide Search. Such cases, persons and Information that are assigned specific 
users or teams (authorizations) through PROSECUTORbyKarpel authorization levels are 
excluded in Statewide Search results. 
 

4. Prosecution Offices that are not Contributing Parties are not eligible to use Statewide 
Search function through PROSECUTORbyKarpel and will not have direct access to 
Statewide Search within PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

5. Each Contributing Party is responsible for providing its own Internet connectivity to use 
Statewide Search. 
 

6. Karpel Solutions is responsible for securely caching Information for use by the Statewide 
Search function. Karpel Solutions houses Information within a secured datacenter that is 
CJIS compliant and SAS70 audited. Multiple levels of security are in place to access the 
physical systems along with multiple levels of authentication. All systems are backed up 
and a copy of those backups is kept in two different locations. Additionally, an outside 
third-party security audit is performed annually, testing both the network and 
application layers. 
 

7. Karpel Solutions is responsible for providing a secure method of delivery of the 
Information that is requested through Statewide Search. Karpel Solutions accomplishes 
this by providing the information in an encrypted stream through SSL (Secure Sockets 
Layer) that is only accessible by Contributing Parties with the necessary GUID (Globally 
Unique Identifier) to access such Information. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 31 of 33 
 

8. Each Contributing Party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring that 
the use of the Statewide Search function conforms with laws, regulations, policies 
and procedures applicable to the Contributing Party. 
 

9. All Contributing Parties agree that any information that is accessed through Statewide 
Search may only be disseminated in the furtherance of a legitimate law enforcement 
investigation or criminal prosecution. 
 

10. All Contributing Parties agree that Karpel Solutions is allowed to use Statewide Search for 
demonstration purposes showing only fictitious Information.  
 

Effective Date, Duration, Modification and Termination 
  

1. As among the Contributing Parties and Karpel Solutions, this MOU shall become effective as to 
each such party when an authorized representative of the party signs it.  
 

2. This MOU shall remain in full force and effect for each Contributing Party as long as they 
continue to use PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

3. This MOU may be modified or altered upon the mutual written consent of the duly authorized 
representatives of each Contributing Party and Karpel Solutions. However, Karpel Solutions 
and the Contributing Parties may modify, address, and resolve technical and operational 
details with regards to the functionality of Statewide Search and PROSECUTORbyKarpel that 
relate to this MOU without obtaining the consent of all Contributing Parties provided that 
such does not conflict with this MOU. 
 

4. This MOU may be terminated at any time by the mutual written agreement of the 
authorized representatives of all the parties. A duly authorized representative of a 
Contributing Party may also terminate participation in the MOU upon thirty (30) day 
written notice to all other parties. Karpel Solutions may terminate the provision of 
Statewide Search to the Contributing Parties upon thirty (30) day written notice to all the 
Contributing Parties. A Contributing Party's participation may also be terminated 
involuntarily if the Contributing Party is not in compliance with the terms of this MOU. 
 

5. Upon termination of this MOU, Karpel Solutions agrees to return or destroy all data that 
is cached on HOSTEDbyKarpel for use by the Statewide Search function. 

 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 32 of 33 
 

SO AGREED, the parties below have executed this MOU by the signatures of the authorized 
representative of the Contributing Party on the dates indicated below. 

 

Winnebago County, IL      Karpel Solutions 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 33 of 33 
 

Statewide Data Sharing Portal Details 
 

When PROSECUTORbyKarpel recognizes identical Persons in the Statewide Data Sharing Portal, the 
Statewide button will automatically turn blue. Selecting the Statewide button will show the data in the 
portal as seen below.  

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  April 6, 2023 
 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Approving an Agreement between the County of 

Winnebago and Winnebago Homes Association for Emergency 
Rental Assistance Program 2 Funds 

 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    April 13, 2023 
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? NO                Amount Budgeted?         N/A      
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   Emergency Rental Assistance Grant                                  
Actual Amount?  $90,000 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 61200  Descriptor: Emergency Rental Assistance II 

 
 
Background Information: The County has approximately $94,000.00 remaining in WCERA2 
(ERA2) funding and has met its threshold to obligate the funds for affordable rental housing and 
eviction prevention purposes. The County seeks to grant $90,000.00 to Winnebago Homes 
Association (WHA) for the renovation and/or operations of very low-income housing in 
accordance with the Treasury Guidance  
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Legal Review:  Legal review conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office  
 
Follow-Up: The County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to, on behalf of the County 
of Winnebago, execute the agreement by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and 
Winnebago Homes Association, in substantially the same form as that set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto. 



  County Board Meeting: April 13, 2023 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2023 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 
WINNEBAGO AND WINNEBAGO HOMES ASSOCIATION FOR EMERGENCY 

RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 2 FUNDS

WHEREAS, the Emergency Rental Assistance program 2 (hereinafter “ERA2”) was 
established under the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 which authorized the U.S. Department 
of the Treasury (hereinafter the “Treasury”) to make payments to certain recipients to be used to 
provide emergency rental assistance; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) was awarded two rounds of 
funding by the Treasury for its Winnebago County Emergency Rental Assistance Program 
(WCERA), in the amounts of $8,376,029.00 and $6,627,599.00, respectively, which provided 
funding throughout the County of Winnebago, Illinois to “eligible households” or to landlords on 
behalf of an eligible household that were unable to pay rent and utilities based on certain 
guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the County has approximately $94,000.00 remaining in WCERA2 (ERA2) 
funding and has met its threshold to obligate the funds for affordable rental housing and eviction 
prevention purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the County seeks to grant $90,000.00 to Winnebago Homes Association 
(WHA) for the renovation and/or operations of very low-income housing in accordance with the 
Treasury Guidance as provided in the Treasury’s Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) dated July 
27, 2022 (Exhibit A) specifically, FAQ #46, page 22, and the County will utilize the remaining 
$4,000 for administrative costs related to the final compliance reports required by the Treasury 
for the close-out of the program; and 

WHEREAS, WHA is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pursuant to WHA’s Articles of Incorporation, as 
amended, and its Bylaws, is organized and shall be operated to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of the public within Winnebago County, Illinois and in part, engage in low-rent housing 
projects and acquire improved or unimproved property for said purpose; and 



WHEREAS, the County and WHA desire to enter into this Agreement toward a mutually 
beneficial purpose of reducing blight and providing affordable rental housing to serve very low-
income families of Winnebago County, Illinois. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that Joseph V. Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized 
and directed to, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, execute the agreement by and between 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois and Winnebago Homes Association, in substantially the same 
form as that set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, County 
Board Office, County Treasurer and the President of Winnebago Homes Association.  

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



            Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



1 
 
 

AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO AND 

WINNEBAGO HOMES ASSOCIATION 
 

This Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is entered into this ______ day of 
__________________, 2023, by and between the County of Winnebago, an Illinois body politic 
and corporate, (hereinafter “County”) and the Winnebago Homes Association, an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation (hereinafter “WHA”). The County and WHA are collectively referred to as the 
“Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Emergency Rental Assistance program 2 (hereinafter “ERA2”) was 
established under the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 which authorized the U.S. Department 
of the Treasury (hereinafter the “Treasury”) to make payments to certain recipients to be used to 
provide emergency rental assistance; and 

WHEREAS, the County was awarded two rounds of funding by the Treasury for its 
Winnebago County Emergency Rental Assistance Program (WCERA), in the amounts of 
$8,376,029.00 and $6,627,599.00, respectively, which provided funding throughout the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois to “eligible households” or to landlords on behalf of an eligible household 
that were unable to pay rent and utilities based on certain guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the County has approximately $94,000.00 remaining in WCERA2 (ERA2) 
funding and has met its threshold to obligate the funds for affordable rental housing and eviction 
prevention purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the County seeks to grant $90,000.00 to WHA for the renovation and/or 
operations of very low-income housing in accordance with the Treasury Guidance as provided in 
the Treasury’s Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) dated July 27, 2022 (Exhibit A) specifically, 
FAQ #46, page 22, and the County will utilize the remaining $4,000 for administrative costs 
related to the final compliance reports required by the Treasury for the close-out of the program; 
and 

WHEREAS, WHA is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pursuant to WHA’s Articles of Incorporation, as 
amended, and its Bylaws, is organized and shall be operated to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of the public within Winnebago County, Illinois and in part, engage in low-rent housing 
projects and acquire improved or unimproved property for said purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement toward a mutually beneficial 
purpose of reducing blight and providing affordable rental housing to serve very low-income 
families of Winnebago County, Illinois. 

 



2 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, mutual covenants, terms and 
provisions set forth in this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency 
and receipt of which is acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

I. RECITALS. The above Recitals are incorporated in this Agreement by their 
reference and made part of this Agreement.  
 

II. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM.  This Agreement will take effect as soon as it is 
signed by all authorized representatives of the parties. This Agreement shall terminate 
at the conclusion of the WCERA2 (ERA2) program and satisfactory compliance with 
all requirements set by the Treasury for the award. 
 

III. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNTY 
 
a. Grant Funds. The WCERA2 (ERA2) funds to be disbursed by the County to 

WHA as part of this Agreement shall not exceed ninety thousand dollars 
($90,000.00) for affordable rental housing purposes. The County will utilize the 
remaining four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) for administrative costs related to the 
final compliance reports required by the Treasury for the close-out of the 
program. 
 

b. Timeframe for Disbursement of Funds. Upon approval by the Winnebago County 
Board and WHA Board of Commissioners, the County shall distribute the 
WCERA2 (ERA2) funds within forty-five (45) days. The grant from the County 
to WHA is contingent on the availability of WCERA2 (ERA2) funds, and further 
subject to all applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the governance of 
WCERA2 (ERA2) funds within the ERA2. 
 

c. Expiration and reallocation of funds. In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 2 
CFR § 200.344, the funds may be obligated only until September 30, 2025. The 
funds are considered obligated upon the County’s approval of the grant to WHA 
and such obligation is considered to be liquidated for the purpose of award 
closeout upon the County’s disbursement of the WCERA2 (ERA2) funds to 
WHA.   

 
d. Compliance, Records and Reporting. The County shall prepare all reports 

necessary for compliance requirements of external auditors, state and/or federal 
authorities and specifically of the ERA2 by the Treasury. The data necessary to 
satisfy the compliance requirements shall be supplied by WHA to the County. In 
fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement, the County further agrees to 
comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes and regulations, 
executive orders and Treasury interpretive guidance regarding such requirements 
for ERA2. The County shall maintain records and financial documents sufficient 



3 
 
 

to support compliance regarding the eligible uses of WCERA2 (ERA2) funds, for 
a period of five (5) years after all funds have been expended or returned to 
Treasury. The County may request additional information from WHA, to meet 
any additional guidelines regarding the use of WCERA2 funds that may be 
established by the Treasury during the scope of this Agreement. 
 

IV. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF WHA 
 
a. Utilization of WCERA2 funds. WHA shall utilize the WCERA2 funds for 

affordable rental housing and eviction prevention purposes, specifically for the 
renovation and/or operations of very low-income housing in accordance with the 
Treasury Guidance as provided in the Treasury’s FAQ #46 (see Exhibit A). By 
executing this Agreement, WHA agrees that its proposed use of the WCERA2 
(ERA2) funds comports with the guidelines of the ERA2 as set forth by the 
Treasury.  
 

b. Compliance, Records and Reporting. WHA shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local laws and all requirements and published guidance set forth regarding the 
usage of any and all monies appropriated under the ERA2. In order to ensure 
compliance with the existing and any future ERA2 guidelines set forth by the 
Treasury during the term of this Agreement, WHA, shall provide to the County a 
written description and an invoice to support its expenditure(s) of all WCERA2 
funds.  WHA shall provide the County with any additional information, as 
needed, to meet any additional guidelines regarding the use of WCERA2 (ERA2) 
funds that may be established by the Treasury during the scope of this Agreement.  
The parties agree and acknowledge the requirements of this subsection are for 
purposes of the County’s program documentation and shall not be construed to 
require the County’s pre-approval over WHA’s use of the WCERA2 funds.   

 
V. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
a. Independent Contractor. Each Party under the Agreement shall be for all purposes 

an independent contractor. Nothing contained herein will be deemed to create an 
association, a partnership, a joint venture, or a relationship of principal and agent, 
or employer and employee between the Parties. WHA shall not be, or be deemed 
to be, or act or purport to act, as an employee, agent, or representative of the 
County for any purpose. 
 

b. Hold Harmless and Indemnification.  
 

i. WHA agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and representatives harmless from and against 



4 
 
 

any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or expenses, including 
without limitation personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or damage to or destruction of property, which are alleged or 
proven to be caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of WHA, its 
officers, directors, employees, and/or agents relating to WHA’s 
performance or failure to perform under this Agreement.  This section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

ii. The County agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the WHA, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and representatives harmless from and against 
any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or expenses, including 
without limitation personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or damage to or destruction of property, which are alleged or 
proven to be caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of the 
County, its officers, directors, employees, and/or agents relating to the 
County’s performance or failure to perform under this Agreement.  This 
section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
c. Maintenance and Audit of Records. WHA shall maintain records, books, 

documents, and other materials relevant to its performance under this Agreement. 
These records shall be subject to inspection, review, and audit by the County or its 
designees, and the Treasury for five (5) years following termination of this 
Agreement. If it is determined during the course of the audit that WHA was 
granted funds for any ineligible costs or expenses under this Agreement, WHA 
agrees to promptly reimburse the County for such payment(s) upon request. 

 
d. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing herein shall or be deemed to create or 

confer any right, action, or benefit in, to, or on the part of any person or entity that 
is not a party to this Agreement. This provision shall not limit any obligation 
which either party has to the Treasury in connection with the use of WCERA2 
(ERA2) funds, including the obligations to provide access to records and 
cooperate with audits as provided in this Agreement. 

 
e. Civil Rights Compliance. Recipients of Federal financial assistance from the 

Treasury are required to meet legal requirements relating to nondiscrimination 
and nondiscriminatory use of Federal funds. Those requirements include ensuring 
that entities receiving Federal financial assistance from the Treasury do not deny 
benefits or services, or otherwise discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin (including limited English proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including 
sexual orientation and gender identity), in accordance with the following 
authorities: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) Public Law 88-352, 
42 U.S.C. 2000d-1 et seq., and the Department's implementing regulations, 31 



5 
 
 

CFR part 22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), Public 
Law 93-112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the 
Department's implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination Act 
of 1975, Public Law 94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department 
implementing regulations at 31 CFR part 23. 
 

f. Assignment. Neither party shall not assign or transfer any of its interests in or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 
party. 

 
g. Amendments. No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be effective 

without prior written consent of the authorized representatives of the parties. 
 

h. Notices. All notices, approvals, demands, requests or other documents required or 
permitted under this Agreement, other than routine communications necessary for 
the day-to-day operation of this program, shall be deemed properly given if hand 
delivered or sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier or mailed by certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the following addresses: 

 

If to the COUNTY: 

Winnebago County  
Attn: Patrick Thompson, County Administrator  
Winnebago County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 

 

If to WHA: 

Winnebago Homes Association  
Attn: President 
3617 Delaware Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61102 

 

i. Governing Law. The Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of 
the State of Illinois, both as to interpretation and performance, without regard to 
conflicts of law or choice of law provisions. Any action arising out of or in 
conjunction with the Agreement may be instituted and maintained only in the 
Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit of Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 



6 
 
 

j. Headings. Sections and other headings contained in this Agreement are for 
reference purposes only and are not intended to describe, interpret, define or limit 
the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof. 

 
k. Severability. If any provisions, covenants, agreements or portions of this 

Agreement or its application to any person, entity or property is held invalid, such 
invalidity shall not invalidate any other portion of this Agreement. The parties 
intend to be bound to this agreement even in the event that a portion of the 
agreement is declared invalid, in accordance with law. 

 
l. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument.  

 
m. Waivers. No terms or provisions hereof shall be deemed waived and no breach 

excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party 
claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, 
a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall not constitute consent to, 
waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach. 

 
n. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

County and WHA for the use of WCERA2 (ERA2) funds received under this 
Agreement and it supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications and 
proposals, whether electronic, oral, or written between the parties with respect to 
this Agreement. 

 
o. Authority. The County and WHA each warrant to the other that they have the 

authority to enter into this Agreement and that the person or persons executing 
this Agreement on their behalf has been duly authorized to act as the 
representative or officer of each respective party in affixing their signatures to the 
Agreement. The County and WHA hereto agree to sign such documents, enact 
such ordinances or resolutions, or perform such further obligations as may be 
necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. 

  
 

 

 

<signature page follows> 

 



7 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives. 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO,      
an Illinois body politic and corporate 
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Joseph V. Chiarelli       
Chairman of the County Board of the   
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

ATTEST:   
 
 
____________________________   Date: _____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

WINNEBAGO HOMES ASSOCIATION,  
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation 
 
 
____________________________________           Date: _______________________________ 
Name: 
Its: President 



 
 

Finance Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 520, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4238  |  Fax: (815) 319-4051  |  Email: drickert@admin.wincoil.gov  

 
 
 
 
Proposal to Utilize Emergency Rental Assistance Budget for Very Low-Income Housing in 
Winnebago County, Illinois 
 
The Winnebago County Emergency Rental Assistance Program (WCERA 1) expended all of the 
$8,376,029 awarded by the Treasury for the first round of emergency rental assistance as of 
September 30, 2022, including a reallocation by the Treasury in the amount of $70,961.  As per 
the award, at least 90 percent of the award was to be used for low-income rental and utility 
assistance to those impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak, and not more than 10 percent was to 
be used for administrative costs attributable to providing financial assistance and housing 
stability services to eligible households.  The final distribution of WCERA 1 funds resulted in 91.19 
percent ($7,702,448) expended for rental and utility assistance, and 8.81 percent ($744,766) for 
the administration of the WCERA 1 program. 
 
The second round of funding provided by the Treasury for the Winnebago County Emergency 
Rental Assistance Program (WCERA 2) required that at least 85 percent of the awarded amount 
of $6,627,599 was to be used for low-income rental and utility assistance to those impacted by 
the coronavirus pandemic, and not more than 15 percent to be used for administrative costs 
attributable to providing financial assistance, housing stability services, and other affordable 
rental housing and eviction prevention activities. As of December 31, 2022, 91.61 percent 
($6,071,835) has been expended for rental and utility assistance, and 6.97 percent ($461,827.05) 
for the administration of the WCERA 2 program, with approximately $94,000 available for 
remaining administrative and/or housing stability expenses. 
 
As to the remaining WCERA 2 administrative funds, we propose that $90,000 be used for the 
purchase and/or renovation of very low-income housing in accordance with the Treasury 
Guidance as provided in the Treasury FAQ’s dated July 27, 2022 (Attachment A) specifically, FAQ 
#46, page 22, and $4,000 be used for administrative costs related to the final compliance reports 
required by the Treasury for the close-out of the program. 
 
Provided for your consideration is a proposal (Attachment B) from Alan Zais of Winnebago County 
Housing Authority (dba NI ReACH, the Northern Illinois Regional Affordable Community Housing)  
for the purchase of one or two foreclosed homes, which, when layered with a sustainable housing 
assistance funding source, will provide sustainable low-income housing for those in Winnebago 
County who meet the very low-income limits as established by the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD). 

http://www.wincoil.us/


  2 

This proposal requests the Winnebago County Board’s approval of providing a grant in the 
amount of $90,000 to Winnebago Homes Association, the 501 (c)(3) nonprofit affordable housing 
component of WCHA, for the purchase and/or renovation of very low-income rental housing.   
 
NI ReACH would assist with the tenant eligibility process by utilizing the Illinois Housing 
Development Authority’s Rental Housing Assistance Program, which also meets the 
requirements set forth in FAQ #46. 
 
As an example, tenant eligibility would be based on the 30th percentile in the table below 
(allowing for future adjustments by HUD): 
 

 
  
 
Excerpt from Treasury FAQ #46: 
 
Eligible Affordable Rental Housing Purposes. Eligible “affordable rental housing purposes” are 
expenses for:  

• the construction, rehabilitation, or preservation of affordable rental housing projects 
serving very low-income families; and  

• the operation of affordable rental housing projects serving very low-income families 
that were constructed, rehabilitated, or preserved using ERA2 funds.  

 
For purposes of the definition above, affordable rental housing projects serve very low-income 
families only if:  

• the household income of occupants of units funded by ERA2 funds is limited to the 
maximum income applicable to very low-income families, as such term is defined in 
section 3(b) of the United States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)); and  

• such income limitation is imposed through a covenant, land use restriction agreement 
(LURA), or other enforceable legal requirement for a period of at least 20 years.  

 
In addition, to be considered an affordable rental housing purpose serving very low-income 
families, an affordable rental housing project funded, in whole or in part, with ERA2 funds must 
conform to and meet the program regulations and other requirements of one or more of the 
types of assistance listed below. In other words, uses of ERA2 funds for an affordable rental 



  3 

housing purpose must be aligned with at least one of the following programs and must meet 
the requirements of that program along with the other conditions specifically set forth in this 
FAQ: 
  

• Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (Treasury);  
• HOME Investment Partnerships Program (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD);  
• HOME-ARP Program (HUD);  
• Housing Trust Fund Program (HUD);  
• Public Housing Capital Fund (HUD);  
• Indian Housing Block Grant Program (HUD);  
• Section 202 Supportive Housing for the Elderly (HUD);  
• Section 811 Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities (HUD);  
• Farm Labor Housing Direct Loans and Grants (U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA);  
• Multifamily Preservation and Revitalization Program (USDA).  

 
 
Form of Provision of Funds and Time of Obligation. Grantees that use ERA2 funds for an eligible 
affordable rental housing purpose may provide such funds in the form of loans (including no-
interest loans and deferred-payment loans), interest subsidies, grants, or other financial 
arrangements. ERA2 funds may not be used to establish, provide financial support to, or invest 
in revolving loan funds or other structured funds. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Proposal from Northern Illinois Regional Affordable Community Housing (NI ReACH) to Utilize 
Emergency Rental Assistance Budget for Low-Income Housing in Winnebago County 
 
NI ReACH proposes an approach that would provide affordable housing and would assist the County in 
concluding the Winnebago Emergency Rental Assistance Program by utilizing the remaining funds for 
eligible affordable rental housing purposes with the housing authority assisting. 
 
The immediate idea would be for the Winnebago Homes Association (WHA) to purchase one or two 
foreclosed homes and layer it with a sustainable housing assistance funding source.   WHA is our 501 c 3 
(formed in 1950) that is our affordable housing developer that is an instrumentality of the WCHA board 
(the WCHA board self-appoints itself as the WHA board), and has completed about $110 million in New 
Construction and Rehab programs across Winnebago and Stephenson counties and in California since 
2006, primarily with Low Income Housing Tax Credits, the Rental Assistance Demonstration I and II, HOPE 
VI, AHP, HOME, RDA and CFFP.   
 
We have used some of the development and ROI monies to purchase about 25 homes throughout 
Winnebago County as rental assisted housing, the Rockford Police Department’s ROCK Homes (we provide 
free to RPD officer and family) and the Rockford Veterans Drop-In Center (we donated to them after we 
rehabbed it), and about 10 of these homes were acquired through the National Community Stabilization 
Trust (NCST), which allowed us to acquire a vacant, foreclosed home in an otherwise good 
neighborhood.  We are careful to choose a home where the surrounding homes are in good condition and 
are generally owner-occupied.   
 
We are very transparent to the neighborhood with notices of who we are and what we would like to do, 
and an open house, and have always been welcomed because the neighbors want the vacant, eyesore 
home restored for both the neighborhood aesthetic and the positive impact on the neighborhood home 
values.  We then use the Illinois Housing Development Authority’s Rental Housing Support Program 
(RHSP), which attaches housing assistance so that it is affordable to a very low-income family.  We have 
an RHSP wait list with preference points for senior/disabled, veteran or the surviving spouse, victim of 
domestic violence, and working/living/trade program in Winnebago County.   
 
This would be a nice conclusion to the Winnebago County Emergency Rental Assistance program  in that 
it would continue to serve the housing needs for low-income families in Winnebago County, it creates a 
cross-sector partnership that leverages additional non-profit and state government services to enhance 
the grant, helps in foreclosure and neighborhood recovery while blending seamlessly with the surrounding 
homes (it’s one of them), and would be an ongoing and sustainable plan that has proven to be welcomed 
by the community.   
 
Below are some of the homes that we have acquired using this exact process. 



 

2 
 

Three-bedroom home on Grant Avenue in West Central Rockford.  We acquired this for free but spent 
about $20,000 on rehab. 

 
 
Two-bedroom home on Loomis Avenue in Southwest Rockford.  We acquired this for free and spent about 
$20,000 on rehab. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

Four-bedroom home on Swan Trail in Northwest Rockford.  We paid about $60,000. 

 
 
Four-bedroom home on Freemont in near west Rockford.  We paid about $40,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 
 

Two units (2 and 3 bedroom) on Salmon Avenue in South Beloit.  We received it for free and spent about 
$20,000 on rehab. 

 
 
 
Four-bedroom home on Bradley in near East side of Rockford.  We paid about $80,000. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

Three-bedroom on 15th Street in southwest Rockford.  We paid about $60,000.  This is one of the homes 
we give to use for free by the Rockford Police Department. 

 
 
 
Three-bedroom home on 15th Street in Mid East Rockford.  We paid about $75,000. 

 
 
 



 

6 
 

Four-bedroom on Trenton in west Rockford that we purchased for about $60,000 recently. 

 
 
 
The families and their needs that are served by these homes and this program include a senior couple 
caring for their adult developmentally-disabled daughter who lives with them and who have now lived in 
a home provided by this program for eight years.  We housed them with their RHA voucher when we were 
originally partnered with RHA for their families with our WHA/NCST program.  When the WHA program 
that assisted RHA ended, they gave up their RHA voucher to remain under WHA assistance.    
 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: April 6, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing the Execution of Contracts to Temporarily 

Extend the Current Cable Television Franchise Agreements 
County Code:      Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date: April 13, 2023 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? NO   Amount Budgeted?    N/A  
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   N/A  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original amount requested?   N/A   
Actual Amount?  N/A 
Over or Under approved amount? N/A    By: N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: N/A  Descriptor: N/A 

Background Information: The two cable television franchise agreements with Comcast of 
Illinois/Indiana/Ohio, LLC and Charter Communications expire on April 30, 2023. The parties are 
in the process of negotiating terms for new franchise agreements and are seeking an extension 
to June 30, 2023, or until a new franchise agreement is entered into; whichever occurs first. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs  

Legal Review:  Legal review conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office 

Follow-Up: On behalf of the County, the Winnebago County Board Chairman will execute the 
agreements.  



  County Board Meeting: April 13, 2023 
  
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2023 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS  
TO TEMPORARILY EXTEND THE CURRENT CABLE TELEVISION  

FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, Comcast of Illinois/Indiana/Ohio, LLC (Comcast), Charter 
Communications f/k/a Charter Cable Partners, LLC (Charter), and Mediacom Illinois LLC 
(Mediacom) currently provide cable video programming services within unincorporated 
Winnebago County, Illinois pursuant to cable television franchises granted by the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois (County) in 2013; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by their terms the aforesaid franchise agreements are scheduled to expire 
on April 30, 2023; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County, Comcast and Charter are in the process of negotiating terms for 
new franchise agreements but do not expect the negotiations to be completed, and the new 
franchise agreements signed, by April 30, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has yet to begin negotiations with Mediacom or discuss a 
temporary extension of its franchise agreement; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Comcast and Charter franchisees are, and have been, satisfactorily 
providing cable video programming services within unincorporated Winnebago County and 
otherwise fulfilling their obligations under the aforesaid franchise agreements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the two franchisees, the County, and the 
franchisees’ customers in unincorporated Winnebago County for the franchisees to continue to 
provide cable video programming services to their customers in unincorporated Winnebago 
County while the County and the franchisees negotiate the terms of new franchise agreements. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Joseph V. Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby 
authorized and directed to, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, enter into agreements with 
Comcast of Illinois/Indiana/Ohio, LLC and Charter Communications to extend the expiration 



dates of their current cable television franchise agreements with the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois through June 30, 2023, or until a new franchise agreement is entered into; whichever 
occurs first.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any cable television franchise extension 
agreement entered into by the authority granted in this Resolution shall contain substantially 
similar terms to the agreement which is attached to this Resolution as “Exhibit A”.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



             Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT EXTENSION 

WHEREAS, Comcast of Illinois/Indiana/Ohio, LLC (hereinafter referred to as 
“Comcast”) currently provides cable video programming services within unincorporated 
Winnebago County, Illinois pursuant to a cable television franchise granted by the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “County”) in May, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, by its terms the aforesaid franchise agreement was scheduled to 
expire on April 30, 2023; and  

WHEREAS, the County and Comcast are in the process of negotiating terms for a 
new franchise agreement but do not expect the negotiations to be completed, and a new 
franchise agreement signed, by April 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Comcast is, and has been, satisfactorily providing cable video 
programming services within unincorporated Winnebago County and otherwise fulfilling 
its obligations under the aforesaid franchise agreement; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of Comcast, the County of Winnebago, and 
Comcast’s customers in unincorporated Winnebago County for Comcast to continue to 
provide cable video programming services to its customers in unincorporated Winnebago 
County while the County and Comcast negotiate the terms of a new franchise agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, Comcast and County 
agree as follows: 

1. The expiration date of the currently existing cable television franchise
agreement between Comcast and County shall be extended to June 30, 2023. 

2. All other rights, obligations, and conditions arising out of the currently
existing cable television franchise agreement between Comcast and County shall remain in full 
force and effect, to the extent consistent with applicable federal and state law and  regulation, 
through June 30, 2023, or until a new franchise agreement is entered into; whichever occurs first. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Cable Television Franchise Agreement Extension 
has been executed by the duly authorized representatives of the parties as set forth below 
on the date set forth below. 

THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO,           COMCAST OF 
ILLINOIS  ILLINOIS/INDIANA/OHIO, LLC 

By: By: 

Name:_________________________ Name:________________________ 

Title:__________________________ Title:_________________________ 

Date:__________________________ Date:_________________________ 

EXHIBIT A



CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT EXTENSION 

 
WHEREAS, Charter Communications (hereinafter referred to as “Charter”) 

currently provides cable video programming services within unincorporated Winnebago 
County, Illinois pursuant to a cable television franchise granted by the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “County”) in June, 2013; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by its terms the aforesaid franchise agreement was scheduled to 
expire on April 30, 2023; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County and Charter are in the process of negotiating terms for a 
new franchise agreement but do not expect the negotiations to be completed, and a new 
franchise agreement signed, by April 30, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Charter is, and has been, satisfactorily providing cable video 
programming services within unincorporated Winnebago County and otherwise fulfilling 
its obligations under the aforesaid franchise agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of Charter, the County of Winnebago, and 
Charter’s customers in unincorporated Winnebago County for Charter to continue to 
provide cable video programming services to its customers in unincorporated Winnebago 
County while the County and Charter negotiate the terms of a new franchise agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, Charter and County 
agree as follows: 
 
 1. The expiration date of the currently existing cable television franchise 
agreement between Charter and County shall be extended to June 30, 2023. 
  
 2. All other rights, obligations, and conditions arising out of the currently 

existing cable television franchise agreement between Charter and County shall remain in full 
force and effect, to the extent consistent with applicable federal and state law and  regulation, 
through June 30, 2023, or until a new franchise agreement is entered into; whichever occurs first. 

 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Cable Television Franchise Agreement Extension 
has been executed by the duly authorized representatives of the parties as set forth below 
on the date set forth below. 
 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS  
ILLINOIS 
 
By:      By: 
 
Name:_________________________ Name:________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________ Title:_________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________ Date:_________________________ 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, March 27, 2023   
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov      

 
Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing Execution Of A First Amendment To The Economic 

Development Agreement By And Between The County Of Winnebago, Illinois 
And Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, Part Of Collins Aerospace 

County Code: NA 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, April 13, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  Yes 
(Existing agreement, amending) 

Appropriation Amount:    
$100,000 /year ($400,000 over 4 years) 

If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: 41700 – 43190 (Host Fees) Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 

In 2019 Winnebago County Board approved a 5 year $100,000 per year Host Fee 
Agreement with Collins Aerospace (2019-CR-022) to build an electric propulsion laboratory. Due 
to the unforeseen COVID-19 Pandemic that hit the U.S. economy hard starting in 2020, the 
commercial aerospace sector declined significantly. 80% decline in March of 2020 and was 45% 
below the prior year by September 2020. During this time Sundstrand maintained steady 
communication and essentially paused their incentive agreements regarding this project. They 
are requesting to amend the original agreement. The big items would be picking payments back 
up in 2023 ($100,000), 2024 ($100,000), 2025 ($100,000), and 2026 ($100,000). Also, the 50 jobs 
created would be by the 5th year instead of year 3rd. Updating the language of the project 
location from 4741 to 4747 Harrison Avenue too, but will still be on the Harrison facility campus. 
 
Recommendation:  
Hamilton Sundstrand Corp. has had a long standing existence in Winnebago County as well as the 
region. Winnebago County Administration supports industry and job growth for this project. 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
Updates can be provided to the Economic Development Committee and/or the County Board as 
requested. 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by:  John Sweeney  County Board Meeting April 13, 2023 

       
RESOLUTION 

OF THE 
THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
2023 CR ______ 

   
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 
WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION,  

PART OF COLLINS AEROSPACE 
  

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2019, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) 
and Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation (“Sundstrand”) entered into an Economic Development 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2019-CR-022), to set forth their obligations related to the County 
pledging a portion of its Host Fee Fund revenue in support of the expansion of Sundstrand’s 
electric systems headquarters; and  

 
WHEREAS, Sundstrand has submitted a request to the County seeking an amendment to 

the original Agreement due to project implementation delays brought about by the global 
COVID-19 pandemic, which severely impacted the commercial aerospace sector and the planned 
Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and Sundstrand acknowledge and mutually agree that this 

Amendment and the planned Project will contribute to the economic growth within the County 
and further support local businesses and the creation of sustainable jobs. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized 
to execute the First Amendment to the Economic Development Agreement by and between the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois and Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, in substantially the same 
form as that set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the County Administrator, the County Finance 
Director, County Auditor and the Director of Development Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 

        Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 

 



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND 

HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION, PART OF COLLINS AEROSPACE 
 

This FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation 
(“Sundstrand”), part of Collins Aerospace, Raytheon Technologies Corporation subsidiary, 
acting through its Electric Power Systems group. The County and Sundstrand are collectively 
referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2019, the County and Sundstrand entered into an 
Economic Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2019-CR-022), to set forth the 
obligations of the Parties related to the County pledging a portion of its Host Fee Fund revenue 
in support of the expansion of Sundstrand’s electric systems headquarters; and  

WHEREAS, Sundstrand has submitted a request to the County seeking an amendment to 
the original Agreement due to project implementation delays brought about by the global 
COVID-19 pandemic, which severely impacted the commercial aerospace sector and the planned 
Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and mutually agree that this Amendment and the 
planned Project will contribute to the economic growth within the County and further support 
local businesses and the creation of sustainable jobs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is 
agreed by and between the Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

I. Paragraph 1, Sundstrand’s corporation name shall be modified to read as follows: 
 
Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation (“Sundstrand”), part of Collins Aerospace, 
Raytheon Technologies Corporation subsidiary, acting through its Electric Power 
Systems group. 
 

II. Section 2.1, shall be modified to read as follows: 

In consideration for the receipt of the County’s Host Fee revenue as specified 
hereinafter, Sundstrand agrees to (i) implement the Project, and (ii) within five (5) 
years of Sundstrand signing the original Agreement, hire at least fifty (50) new, 
permanent full-time equivalent (FTE) employees who work at the Project located at 
4747 Harrison Avenue in Rockford, Illinois.  “Full-Time Equivalent Employee” or 
“FTE” shall mean an employee of Sundstrand who is employed in a permanent 
position at least thirty-five (35) hours per week at the Project. 
 

III. Section 2.2, shall be modified to read as follows: 
 
On or before the fifth anniversary date of Sundstrand signing the original Agreement, 
Sundstrand shall submit to the County Administrator a certified Jobs Certificate 



2 
 

disclosing compliance with the job creation requirement in this Agreement.  “Jobs 
Certificate” shall mean a certificate substantially in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A.  Sundstrand agrees that it shall act in good faith and, among other things, 
shall not hire temporary workers or relocate workers for short periods of time for the 
primary purpose of avoiding a breach of the job creation requirement in this 
Agreement.  The Jobs Certificate shall include all the information requested on 
Exhibit A.  Sundstrand shall allow the County to audit documents directly supporting 
the number of FTEs created to determine job creation compliance with this 
Agreement.    
 

IV. Section 2.3, shall be modified to read as follows: 
 

Sundstrand agrees to reimburse the County on a pro-rated basis if Sundstrand fails to 
satisfy its obligations under Section 2.1 of this Agreement. The formula for the prorated 
amount shall be seven thousand, five hundred dollars ($7,500.00) for each and every 
created and retained FTE position fewer than the number of required created and 
retained FTE positions. For example, if Sundstrand creates forty (40) instead of fifty 
(50) new, permanent FTE positions within five (5) years of Sundstrand signing the 
original Agreement, Sundstrand would reimburse the County Seventy-five Thousand 
Dollars ($75,000.00). 
 

     V.      Section 3.1, shall be modified to read as follows: 
 

     The County shall pay Sundstrand One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) in      
     every County fiscal year for the next five (5) years to support the Project, for a total of   
     Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00), which payments are found to be of   
     direct economic benefit to the County.  Said payments of One Hundred Thousand  
     Dollars ($100,000.00) shall be made on or about November 1st in years 2019, 2023,  
     2024, 2025 and 2026.  

 
     VI.      Section 7- Notices, County’s contact shall be modified to read as follows: 
 

     For the County        
     Winnebago County Administrator, Patrick Thompson   
     Winnebago County Administration Building       
     404 Elm Street, 5th Floor         
     Rockford, Illinois 61101 
 

 
Except as modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the original 
Economic Development Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 

<signature page follows> 
 
 



3 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment on the _____ day 
of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND CORP.   COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS   
        
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Eric Cunningham      Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Vice President, Electric Power Systems  Chairman of the County Board of the 
Date:_______________________________  County of Winnebago, Illinois 
       Date:_______________________________  
 
       Attest:  
 
        ____________________________    
        Lori Gummow 
       Clerk of the County Board of the 
       County of Winnebago, Illinois 
       Date:_______________________________ 

       



022





















COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project Report for: 

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, part of Collins Aerospace,  
Raytheon Technologies Corporation subsidiary, acting through its Electric Power Systems group 

Amendment to Multi-Year Host Fee Commitment 
 

 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023  [ 1 / 3 ] 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Applicant: PIN: 16-05-201-004 

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, 
Collins Aerospace Lot Area: 82.07 Acres 

3,574,853 Square Feet 

Location Address: Website:   https://www.collinsaerospace.com/ 

4747 Harrison Avenue County Board District #: 15 

Rockford, IL 61109 County Board Member: Christopher Scroll 

Jurisdiction: City of Rockford  

County Investment for Job Growth: $500,000 Investment / 50 FTE Jobs = ~ $10,000 / Job 

Proposed Amendment: $400,000 balance regarding agreement 

 

 

Project Summary: 

• The Project is related to the expansion of a long-standing business in the Winnebago County 
Community. Specifically, related to the technology development of Aircraft electrical power 
system components and their integration together. 

• The overall investment of the project is estimated at... 
o $45-50 million in facilities 
o $125 million of propulsion electrification investment over the next 5 years enabled by 

The Grid 
• Original County Request from Host Fees were 

o $100,000 a year for 5 years totaling $500,000. 
o This would Amendment would be for 

 $100,000 a year for 4 years totaling 400,000 this time. 
• Within 5 years the business is expected to add at least 50 employees 

o Engineering realm (entry level) and project management. 

o Union labor to run electric propulsion laboratory. 

• Electronic lab facility is approximately 25,000 square feet. 
o Remodel and renovation. 

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project Report for: 

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, part of Collins Aerospace,  
Raytheon Technologies Corporation subsidiary, acting through its Electric Power Systems group 

Amendment to Multi-Year Host Fee Commitment 
 

 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023  [ 2 / 3 ] 

• General Information 

o Collins is the innovation leader in electric systems, and The Grid positions Collins and 
Rockford to remain the world leader in the electrification of aircraft for decades to come 

o In the not-too-distant future, hybrid-electric and fully electric aircraft will revolutionize 
air travel as we know it—opening up new markets like urban air mobility, while re-
invigorating others like regional service to underutilized airports 

o The technology The Grid enables will help support a greener planet by reducing carbon 
emissions, and will help our airline customers by reducing operating costs and fuel 
consumption 

o The Grid itself is a technological achievement in itself featuring: 

 High-Voltage Direct Current (DC) capability (1kV+) – 10 times higher than 
residential electrical services 

 8 megawatts (MW) of initial power capability growing to 15 megawatts – 
approximately the power of 2,500 residential homes 

 Ability to develop components independently or interconnected from end-to-end 

 Provisioning for advanced battery and electrical energy storage systems 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO      
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project Report for: 

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, part of Collins Aerospace,  
Raytheon Technologies Corporation subsidiary, acting through its Electric Power Systems group 

Amendment to Multi-Year Host Fee Commitment 
 

 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023  [ 3 / 3 ] 

Amendments to the Original Agreement 

1. Paragraph 1 
a. Revise “a United Technologies subsidiary” to “a Raytheon Technologies 

Corporation subsidiary” 
 

2. Section 2.1 
a. Revise “4741 Harrison Avenue” to “4747 Harrison Avenue” 

i. As background, the original intent was for a new post office address to be 
created specifically for the Project at the Company’s campus at 4747 
Harrison Avenue.  However, the Company has decided the Project address 
will remain 4747 Harrison Avenue. 

b. Revise “within three years of Sundstrand signing the original of this Agreement…” 
to “within five years of Sundstrand signing the original of this Agreement….” 
 

3. Section 2.2 
a. Revise “On or before the third anniversary date….” to “On or before the fifth 

anniversary date…” 
 

4. Section 2.3 
a. Revise “….permanent FTE positions within three years of Sundstrand signing the 

original of this Agreement….” to “permanent FTE positions within five years of 
Sundstrand signing the original of this Agreement…” 
 

5. Section 3.1 
a. Revise “…years 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023” to “…years 2019, 2023, 2024, 

2025 and 2026” 
i. As background, Hamilton Sundstrand previously requested and received the 

first payment of $100,000 in 2019.  As a result of the delay of the Project 
beginning in 2020, the Company did not request payments on November 1, 
2020, November 1, 2021 nor November 1, 2022 and will hold on submitting 
further requests until the Project is completed (estimated to be in 2023). 

6. Signature Page 
a. Revise “Nate Boelkins, Vice President, Electric Power Systems“ to “Eric 

Cunningham, Vice President, Electric Power Systems” 
  

 

Additional Attachments: 

1. Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation (Collins Aerospace) Request Letter 
2. Site Map of the location 
3. Tax Information 2021 
4. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
5. Collins Aerospace Website Information 



Collins Aerospace Proprietary Information 
 

January 24, 2023 
 
VIA ELETRONIC MAIL 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 
Attention:   
Patrick J. Thompson, County Administrator, County of 
Winnebago 
Joseph V. Chiarelli, County Board Chairman, County of 
Winnebago 
 
Dear Mr. Thompson and Mr. Chiarelli: 

On behalf of Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation (“Hamilton Sundstrand” or “the Company” or 
“we”), the Company respectfully submits this formal request to Winnebago County to amend the 
“Economic Development Agreement By and Between The County of Winnebago, Illinois and 
Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation, Part of Collins Aerospace” dated February 28, 2019 
(“Agreement”).  Per our discussions with Chris Dornbush, we are seeking an amendment due to  
project implementation delays brought about by the global COVID-19 pandemic and resultant 
economic conditions. 
 
Hamilton Sundstrand is a wholly owned subsidiary of Raytheon Technologies Corporation (“RTX”). 
RTX is an aerospace and defense company that, through its subsidiaries, including Hamilton 
Sundstrand Corporation, provides advanced systems and services for commercial, military and 
government customers worldwide.  The global COVID-19 pandemic severely impacted the 
industry, particularly commercial aerospace sector.  As a result, commercial air travel declined 
80% in March 2020 and was 45% below the prior year by September 2020.  
 
Per the Agreement, Hamilton Sundstrand was approved for a performance-based grant of 
$500,000 by the County of Winnebago to build and equip an electric systems laboratory at the 
Company’s facility in Rockford, Illinois (“the Project”).  However, the Company’s plan to establish 
the Project in Rockford was severely impacted by the slump in the commercial aerospace industry. 
As a result, the Project was suspended pending recovery of commercial air travel.  Accordingly, 
we anticipate the Project will be placed in service by mid-2023. 
 
Since COVID-19 emerged through the present time, Hamilton Sundstrand and RTX representatives 
have been forthcoming with information and in regular contact with Winnebago County in an 
effort to keep local officials informed of the project’s status.  We are very appreciative of the 
understanding and responsiveness shown by County officials as we have endeavored to  ensure 
compliance with   our Agreement.
 



Collins Aerospace Proprietary Information 
 

In 2020, the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Development (“DECD”) allowed 
requests to extend the “Placed in Service” date for the Economic Development for a Growing 
Economy (“EDGE”) tax credit program for companies facing challenges in meeting program 
commitments in response to COVID-19.  In light of the aforementioned and unforeseeable 
challenges imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic over the last three years,  we are grateful for  the 
County’s consideration of our amendment request.  
 
We are extremely grateful for the outstanding support Hamilton Sundstrand has received from 
Winnebago County throughout the years, especially during the challenging experience of COVID-
19.  Again, the Company appreciates your consideration of our request to amend the Agreement 
for this meaningful incentive.  
 
If you have any questions or require anything further, please feel free to contact me directly, at 
(779) 348-1842, or Cindy Dietz at (202) 631-9960. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Joanne Giers 

Joanne Giers 
Director, Finance 
Collins Aerospace 
 

 

CC: Chris Dornbush, Director for Development Services, Winnebago County 

 Cindy Dietz, State Government Relations, Raytheon Technologies Corporation 

 



16-05-201-004

Grinnell Dr

Carthage Dr

Ho
lm

es
 St

27th
Ave

Harrison Ave
Harrison Ave

S A
lpi

ne
 R

d

S Alpine Rd

S Alpine R
d

Eg
gle

sto
n C

t

Up
lan

d D
r

S A
lpi

ne
 R

dManchester Dr

Skokie Dr

Fo
re

st 
Vie

w 
Rd

/
The Winnebago County computerized aerial base property maps were assembled using
County, State and other data. The map files are not intended to be the official survey of
the land. The official land records are on file in the Winnebago County Recorder's Office.

1 inch = 300 feet
Legend

Tax Parcels
Date: 3/21/2023

Hamilton Sundstrand Corporation (Collins Aerospace) Facility
4747 Harrison Avenue (Campus)

Project Area:
Electronic Propulsion Laboratory 



Paid on 
09/12/2022

16-05-201-004

4747 HARRISON AVE
HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND MS 255-6

106753
45

1

*$RE16052010041$*
Property Code

16-05-201-004

Parcel ID

Paid on 
05/27/2022

ROCKFORD IL  61108--792

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/10/2022

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2021 Parcel ID: 16-05-201-004

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

27,972.810.705427,562.000.7259WINNEBAGO COUNTY
7,843.800.19788,265.930.2177- PENSION

3,937.760.09933,869.090.1019FOREST PRESERVE
190.350.0048205.030.0054- PENSION

4,948.980.12484,943.620.1302CHERRY VALLEY TOWNSHIP
55,013.841.387357,724.901.5203ROCKFORD CITY
49,521.361.248848,372.991.2740- PENSION

36,811.970.928335,744.410.9414ROCKFORD PARK DISTRICT
1,808.280.04562,384.460.0628- PENSION

6,864.320.17316,815.510.1795FOUR RIVERS SANITATION AUTHO
16,270.550.410316,490.110.4343ROCKFORD CITY LIBRARY
3,216.040.08113,151.460.0830GREATER RKFD AIRPORT

571.040.0144596.120.0157- PENSION

236,468.375.9631235,816.706.2107ROCKFORD SCHOOL DIST 205
11,955.910.301514,238.380.3750- PENSION

18,098.660.456417,522.880.4615COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

9,671.920.24399,663.210.2545CHERRY VALLEY TWSP ROAD

Totals: 12.9938 493,366.80 12.3859 491,165.96

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-874-2119
$491,165.96

Fair Market Value:

11,897,760

Location of

4747 HARRISON  AVE Property:

2

09/09/2022 $0.00

Property Code
*$RE16052010042$*

Parcel ID

16-05-201-004

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

3,965,525
0
0

3,965,525
1.0000

3,965,525
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 3,965,525
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $491,165.96
Tax Rate for Tax Code 127 12.3859
Taxable Value 3,965,525

    Formula for Tax Calculation

HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND MS 255-6
4747 HARRISON AVE
ROCKFORD IL  61108--792

4747 HARRISON AVE

ROCKFORD IL  61108--792

HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND MS 255-6

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2021

NE1/4 SEC 5-43-2 LYG N OF RR & LYG W & ADJ EAST ROCK IN

Reason for Change Signature

 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight

cdornbush
Highlight



3/21/23, 8:21 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/3

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

Corporation File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

cyberdriveillinois.com is now ilsos.gov

Office of the Secretary of State

File Number 60591482

Entity Name HAMILTON SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION

Status
ACTIVE

Entity Type
CORPORATION

Type of Corp
FOREIGN BCA

Qualification Date (Foreign)
Wednesday, 21 July 1999

State
DELAWARE

Duration Date
PERPETUAL

Name



3/21/23, 8:21 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/3

Annual Report

Officers

Assumed Name

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM

Address
208 SO LASALLE ST, SUITE 814
CHICAGO , IL 60604

Change Date
Wednesday, 21 July 1999

Filing Date
Tuesday, 28 June 2022

For Year
2022

President
Name & Address
STEPHEN TIMM 2730 W TYVOLA RD 4 COLISEUM CENTRE CHARLOTTE NC

Secretary
Name & Address
CHRISTOPH T FEDDERSEN SAME

INACTIVE
UTC AEROSPACE SYSTEMS

Return to Search

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/soar/


3/21/23, 8:21 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 3/3

Tue Mar 21 2023This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

(One Certificate per Transaction)



3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 1/12

Electri�ed Aircraft

Electri�cation is the core of
sustainable �ight
Imagine a future with aircraft that consume less fuel and emit less
carbon while also reducing maintenance costs. Aircraft electri�cation
is at the center of this vision. By driving innovation in the �eld, Collins
Aerospace is unlocking new opportunities for optimizing operations
and improving sustainability.

Over the last decade, we’ve invested $3 billion in advancing our
electric architecture and dedicated more than 1,000 engineering
resources to developing more electric systems. Add in 70+ years of
experience and no one can match our �nancial commitment and
expertise in this space.


Raytheon Technologies RTX 96.00 -0.70|

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/
https://investors.rtx.com/stock-information/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 2/12

Let's connect

Tell us how we can help you with electri�ed aircraft

Our value
Our unmatched expertise in the generation and management of electrical power is
leading an electric evolution in the aviation industry. Today, we’re collaborating with
industry partners to drive innovations in hybrid-electric propulsion systems and
embracing the latest advancements in the application of hydrogen-based technologies
and sustainable aviation fuels. We know how essential this pursuit is to our future, and
we know how important it is to achieve our industry-wide goal of zero emissions.

Up to 85%
reduction in aircraft noise

Up to 30%
reduction in fuel consumption

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 3/12

>20%
reduction in carbon emissions

Up to 20%
reduction in airline operating and maintenance costs

Our solutions
We’re driving the development of electri�ed aircraft technology in all its forms,
exploring every path to an electric future to help civil aviation achieve net zero CO2 by
2050.

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 4/12

More electric systems

We’re replacing traditional hydraulic and pneumatic systems with more electric
systems, and in turn reducing engine bleed air and its resulting fuel consumption.
Our work began more than 20 years ago on the Boeing 787 Dreamliner and today
we continue to manufacture the only bleed-less electric environmental control
system in service for the Boeing 787.

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 5/12

Hybrid electric propulsion

We’re combining fuel-burning engines with electric motors and batteries, burning
less fuel for a positive economic and environmental impact.

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 6/12

Alternative energy solutions
We’re enabling 100% Sustainable Aviation Fuel-ready engines, taking
decarbonization to the next level.

Sustainability
We’re doing more than aiming high when it comes to sustainability – we’re making
it �y.

Learn more 

Our latest

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/sustainability
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/sustainability
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/sustainability
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-produces-first-prototype-500kw-electric-motor-for-hybrid-air-vehicles-airlander-10
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 7/12

Collins Aerospace produces �rst prototype 500KW electric motor for Hybrid
Air Vehicles’ Airlander 10 aircraft
 

Learn more

Collins Aerospace completes preliminary design of 1MW electric motor for
Pratt & Whitney Canada’s Regional Hybrid-Electric Flight Demonstrator
 

Learn more





https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-produces-first-prototype-500kw-electric-motor-for-hybrid-air-vehicles-airlander-10
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-produces-first-prototype-500kw-electric-motor-for-hybrid-air-vehicles-airlander-10
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-complete-preliminary-design-of-1mw-electric-motor-for-pratt-whitney-canada
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-complete-preliminary-design-of-1mw-electric-motor-for-pratt-whitney-canada
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-produces-first-prototype-500kw-electric-motor-for-hybrid-air-vehicles-airlander-10
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/collins-complete-preliminary-design-of-1mw-electric-motor-for-pratt-whitney-canada
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/pratt-whitney-collins-expand-leadership-hybrid-electric-propulsion-technology-with-new-step-tech
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


3/24/23, 4:14 PM Electrified Aircraft | Collins Aerospace

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/what-we-do/capabilities/electrified-aircraft 8/12

Pratt & Whitney and Collins Aerospace Expand Leadership in Hybrid-
Electric Propulsion Technology with New STEP-Tech Demonstrator
 

Learn more

The power of electric �ight
 

Learn more





Yes, I want to know more!

First Name*

Enter Your First Name

https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/pratt-whitney-collins-expand-leadership-hybrid-electric-propulsion-technology-with-new-step-tech
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/pratt-whitney-collins-expand-leadership-hybrid-electric-propulsion-technology-with-new-step-tech
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/stories/2021/09/power-of-electric-flight
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/stories/2021/09/power-of-electric-flight
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/news/2022/07/pratt-whitney-collins-expand-leadership-hybrid-electric-propulsion-technology-with-new-step-tech
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/news/stories/2021/09/power-of-electric-flight
https://www.collinsaerospace.com/


 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 

 

 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

 

    

 

Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: April 6, 2023  
Board Date:  April 13, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution to Approve the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Vision 

Service Plan (VSP) For Voluntary Vision Insurance  

 

Budget Information 

Budgeted? NO                                              Amount Budgeted?  N/A 100% - Employee Paid             

If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   Voluntary Benefit                                       

Over or Under approved amount?          By:                                               

ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: N/A                   Descriptor:   
Budget Impact?     N/A 

 
Background Information:  The voluntary vision plan has been offered to employees since June 
1, 2011.  We currently have 324 employees enrolled in the voluntary vision plan.      
 
Recommended By:  County Administrator, Patrick Thompson and Human Resources Director, 
Debbie Crozier, have reviewed the Renewal Offer (Resolution Exhibit A) and recommend 
approval. 
 
SAO Reviewed:   Yes 
 
Contract/Agreement Information:  June 1, 2023 through May 31, 2025 
 
Follow-Up Steps:  If approved, plan would be effective June 1, 2023. 



 
County Board Meeting:  April 13, 2023 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH VISION SERVICE PLAN (VSP) FOR 

VOLUNTARY VISION INSURANCE  
  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers employees the option of participating 
in a voluntary vision plan; the plan has been in place since June 2011, currently 324 employees 
participate in this benefit; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the quotes for the renewal of the plan, 
Resolution Exhibit A; and,  

 
WHEREAS, Vision Service Plan (VSP) has proposed the following rates to the County 

through May 2025: 
Employee Only:  $4.36 per pay period 

Family:  $12.03 per pay period 
0% rate increase through May 2025 

100% Employee Paid 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County B oard 

for the County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal agreement and recommends the 

County Board authorize execution of the renewal with Vision Service Plan for the administration 

of the voluntary vision plan through May 2025. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director 

of Human Resource, the County Board Office and the County Auditor.                 

  



 

 

       Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 



 
 

Resolution Exhibit A 
 

 

DECEMBER 19, 2022 

 
DEBBIE CROZIER 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

404 ELM STREET 

ROCKFORD, IL 61101-1239 
 

 
Re: Winnebago #30025945 / June 1, 2023 Renewal Notification 

 
Dear Debbie: 

 
We thank you for being a valued VSP® Vision Care customer since 2011. 
We’re committed to meeting and exceeding the expectations of your employees, as we’ve done for the last 12 

years. Your employees continue to benefit from participating in the VSP Signature Plan®, our premium plan. 
 

Your renewal includes fully-covered, standard progressive lenses — only from VSP. 
VSP is raising the bar as the only vision care company to offer fully-covered, standard progressive lenses. Your 
employees will automatically get this new benefit feature. There’s no extra cost and nothing more for you and your 
employees to do. Their VSP doctor will help determine which lens best suits their patient’s individual lifestyle and vision 
needs. This is one more option to help our members enjoy clear, precise vision at an exceptional value. 

 

Also standard with VSP: 

 Lowest out-of-pocket costs on the widest selection of lenses. 

 VSP Exclusive Member Extras—more than $3,000 savings included on vision care, hearing, medical, and 

lifestyle services. 

 Eye Health Management—your employees’ wider safety net to catch chronic conditions like diabetes early, 

before costly symptoms emerge. 

 Essential Medical Eye Care—coverage beyond routine eye care to treat immediate issues from pink eye to 

sudden changes in vision, or to monitor ongoing conditions such as dry eye, diabetic eye disease, glaucoma, 

and more. 

 

To see all the details, please refer to your renewal proposal attached. 
 

Let’s stay together. 
Sign the attached to continue with VSP and your premium plan for this next policy and return it to me via email at 
Jamie.Elliott@VSP.com by May 1, 2023. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 
Jamie Elliott 
Key Client Manager 

 
 

 

CC: Todd Soma 

Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Classification: Restricted 

mailto:Jamie.Elliott@VSP.com


VSP® Renewal Exhibit for Winnebago County 

Group Number: 30025945 

Renewal Effective Date: June 1, 2023 

VSP Signature Plan® VSP Signature Plan® VSP Signature Plan® 
Current Plan Renewal Plan Renewal Alternative Plan 

Exam Copay $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 

Materials Copay $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 

Frequency: 

Exam: 

Lenses: 

Frame: 

 
Every 12 Months 

Every 12 Months 

Every 12 Months 

 
Every 12 Months 

Every 12 Months 

Every 12 Months 

 
Every 12 Months 

Every 12 Months 

Every 12 Months 

Essential Medical Eye Care $20 copay per visit $20 copay per visit $20 copay per visit 

Exam Coverage 

WellVision Exam® Covered in full after copay Covered in full after copay Covered in full after copay 

 
 

Contact Lens Exam 

(Fitting & Evaluation) 

Standard and premium fit: Covered in full after copay. 

Member receives 15% off contact lens exam services; 

copay will never exceed $60 

15% off not available at Costco® Optical, 

Walmart® Optical or Sam's Club® Optical 

Standard and premium fit: Covered in full after copay. 

Member receives 15% off contact lens exam services; 

copay will never exceed $60 

15% off not available at Costco® Optical, 

Walmart® Optical or Sam's Club® Optical 

Standard and premium fit: Covered in full after copay. 

Member receives 15% off contact lens exam services; 

copay will never exceed $60 

15% off not available at Costco® Optical, 

Walmart® Optical or Sam's Club® Optical 

Routine Retinal Screening 

Not available at Walmart® Optical or Sam's Club® Optical 

No more than a $39 copay on routine retinal screening as 

an enhancement to a WellVision Exam 

No more than a $39 copay on routine retinal screening as 

an enhancement to a WellVision Exam 

No more than a $39 copay on routine retinal screening as 

an enhancement to a WellVision Exam 

Lens Coverage 

Basic Prescription Lenses: 

(Glass or plastic) 

Single vision 

Lined bifocal 

Lined trifocal 

Lenticular 

 
 
 

Covered in full after copay 

 
 
 

Covered in full after copay 

 
 
 

Covered in full after copay 

Lens Enhancements1 Covered with a copay, saving an average of 

40% 

Covered with a copay, saving an average of 

40% 

Covered with a copay, saving an average of 

40% 
 Single Vision Multifocal Single Vision Multifocal Single Vision Multifocal 

Standard Anti-Glare coating: $37 $37 $37 $37 $37 $37 

All other Anti-Glare coatings: $51 - $75 $51 - $75 $51 - $75 $51 - $75 $51 - $75 $51 - $75 

Impact-resistant lenses for children: Covered in full Covered in full Covered in full Covered in full Covered in full Covered in full 

Impact-resistant lenses for adults: $23 $28 $23 $28 $23 $28 

Standard Progressives: N/A Covered in full N/A Covered in full N/A Covered in full 

Premium & Custom Progressives: N/A $80 - $160 N/A $80 - $160 N/A $80 - $160 

Tints/Light-reactive lenses: $70 $70 $70 $70 $70 $70 

Scratch-resistant coating: $15 $15 $15 $15 $15 $15 

 
Costco® Optical, Walmart® Optical and Sam's Club® Optical 

prices already include savings. Members will pay the Usual 

& Customary fee. 

Costco® Optical, Walmart® Optical and Sam's Club® Optical 

prices already include savings. Members will pay the Usual 

& Customary fee. 

Costco® Optical, Walmart® Optical and Sam's Club® Optical 

prices already include savings. Members will pay the Usual 

& Customary fee. 

1 
Prices shown reflect standard selections; premium or custom options may also be available at additional costs.  

Frame Coverage 

VSP Network Doctors and Visionworks® 
$130 allowance; plus 20% off any amount above the 

allowance 

$130 allowance; plus 20% off any amount above the 

allowance 

$200 allowance; plus 20% off any amount above the 

allowance 

Costco® Optical $70 allowance $70 allowance $110 allowance 

Walmart® Optical, Sam's Club® Optical 

and Retail Chains 
$130 allowance $130 allowance $200 allowance 

Contact Lens Coverage 

Elective Contact Lenses 

(prescription contact lenses, in lieu of glasses) 

 
$130 allowance 

 
$130 allowance 

 
$130 allowance 

Necessary Contact Lenses 

Not available at Retail Chains, Costco® Optical, Walmart® Optical 

or Sam's Club® Optical 

 
Covered in full after copay 

 
Covered in full after copay 

 
Covered in full after copay 

Extra Savings 

 
VSP Laser VisionCareSM Program 

Discounts on LASIK, Custom LASIK, and PRK, plus patient 

education. 

Average 15% off or 5% off promotional offer 

Discounts only available from VSP contracted facilities. 

Members who've had laser surgery can use frame benefit 

for non-prescription sunglasses 

Average 15% off or 5% off promotional offer 

Discounts only available from VSP contracted facilities. 

Members who've had laser surgery can use frame benefit 

for non-prescription sunglasses 

Average 15% off or 5% off promotional offer 

Discounts only available from VSP contracted facilities. 

Members who've had laser surgery can use frame benefit 

for non-prescription sunglasses 

 
 
 
Additional Pairs of Glasses 

 

30% off unlimited additional pairs of prescription glasses 

and/or non-prescription sunglasses purchased on the same 

day with the same provider who performed the exam. Or 

20% off from any VSP provider within 12 months of the 

member's last WellVision Exam 

 

30% off unlimited additional pairs of prescription glasses 

and/or non-prescription sunglasses purchased on the same 

day with the same provider who performed the exam. Or 

20% off from any VSP provider within 12 months of the 

member's last WellVision Exam 

 

30% off unlimited additional pairs of prescription glasses 

and/or non-prescription sunglasses purchased on the same 

day with the same provider who performed the exam. Or 

20% off from any VSP provider within 12 months of the 

member's last WellVision Exam 

Plan Enhancements 

 
LightCare 

Allows members to use their frame allowance towards ready-made 

non-prescription sunglasses, or ready-made non-prescription blue 

light filtering glasses, instead of prescription glasses or contacts. 

Not available at Walmart® Optical or Sam's Club® Optical 

 
 

N/A 

 
 

 
N/A 

 
 

$25 copay 

$200 allowance 

Out-of-Network Schedule 

Eye Exam: $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 

Single Vision: $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 

Lined Bifocal: $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 

Lined Trifocal: $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 

Lenticular: $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 

Progressive: $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 

Frame: $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 

Elective Contact Lenses: $105.00 $105.00 $105.00 

Necessary Contact Lenses: $210.00 $210.00 $210.00 

Monthly Rates 

 

Risk 
Employee Only: $8.72 

Employee + Family: $24.05 

Employee Only: $8.44 

Employee + Family: $23.27 

Employee Only: $8.72 

Employee + Family: $24.05 

Commissions Sliding 10% Sliding 10% Sliding 10% 

Policy Term 2 Years 2 Years 2 Years 

Select the desired renewal plan 
       

Renewal Acceptance 

To renew your contract with VSP and ensure continuous service, please have the appropriate representative review this information, select the desired renewal action, sign and return this Renewal Agreement to the email address 

below. VSP produces your Plan Policy upon receipt of your confirmation of renewal. Your new Plan Policy may contain some provisions that are changed from those in your current Policy, so you should review the new Policy 

carefully upon receipt. Please file this Agreement with your VSP contract as it serves as your notice of renewal. 

 
Jamie Elliott 

Key Client Manager, VSP 

916-851-4437 

jamie.elliott@vsp.com 

 
Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 
 

Date:    

 
Based on applicable laws, benefits may vary by doctor location. 

©2022 Vision Service Plan. All rights reserved. 

Classification: Confidential 

Rev. 08/2022 

mailto:jamie.elliott@vsp.com


 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

 
    
 
Prepared By:  Dan Magers   
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee   
Committee Date: April 6, 2023  
Board Date:  April 13, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution for Replacement of State’s Attorney and Public Defender 

Case Management System  
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? Not in departments budgets               Amount Budgeted?  $              
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   Funded from PFA  Contingency Fund                                     

Over or Under approved amount? N/A         By: $                                              

ORG/OBJ/Project Codes:                                  Descriptor:  Software 
Budget Impact? $ 244,725.00 is due after agreement is executed.  

 

Background Information:  
The current software used by the State’s Attorney and Public Defender’s Offices is past end of 
life and end of support. Any issues that come up take months to resolve and cause 
inefficiencies for the entire Judicial System, including preparing for cases, hearings, etc. and 
poses a threat to a return to manual processing.  To be paid from the Pre-Trail Fairness Act 
Contingency Fund for the FY23 cost of $244,725 due after contract execution. 
 
The remaining project amounts as well as ongoing maintenance will be done during the budget 
planning process for FY24. 
 
Recommended By:   
Karpel Prosecutor and Karpel Defender are recommended by DoIT, State’s Attorney, the Public 
Defender and the Circuit Clerk.     
 
SAO Reviewed:  
The State’s Attorney has reviewed this proposal. 
 
Contract/Agreement Information:  See two Exhibits 
 
Follow-Up Steps:  
Execute contract agreements with Prosecutor by Karpel and Defender by Karpel. 



County Board Meeting:  April 13, 2023 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2023 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION FOR REPLACEMENT OF STATE’S ATTORNEY AND PUBLIC DEFENDER CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the State’s Attorney and Public Defender are required to maintain a 
modern software solution to manage their Office’s and caseloads; and,  

 

WHEREAS, Karpel is the sole provider of the Prosecutor by Karpel and Defender by 
Karpel software solutions; and, 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County State’s Attorney and Public Defender are authorized to 
execute, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, an agreement which shall be subject to legal 
review and a County Purchase Order with KARPEL SOLUTIONS 9717 LANDMARK PARKWAY, ST 
LOUIS MISSOURI 63127, in an amount not to exceed TWO HUNDRED, FORTY FOUR THOUSAND, 
SEVEN HUNDRED AND TWENTY FIVE DOLLARS ($244,725). 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Department of Information 
Technology, State’s Attorney, Public Defender, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Board Office, and County Auditor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
         Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
9717 Landmark Parkway | St. Louis, MO 63127 | (314) 892-6300 

 

 
 
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

CONTRACT FOR 

 
 

 
 
 
 

PROSECUTORbyKarpel® & HOSTEDbyKarpel® 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 2 of 33 
 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1.DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 3 

2.SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................................... 4 

3.OTHER WORK ................................................................................................................ 5 

4.GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS ................................................... 5 

5.INVESTMENT SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 7 

 5.1 Payment Terms ..................................................................................................... 10 

6.ANNUAL SUPPORT ...................................................................................................... 10 

 6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES ................................................................................... 10 
 6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT ............................................................................. 12 

7.OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ................................................................. 13 

8.LICENSE TERMS AND USE ............................................................................................ 13 

9.WARRANTY ................................................................................................................. 15 

10.LIMITATION OF LIABILITY .......................................................................................... 16 

11.INDEMNIFICATION .................................................................................................... 16 

12.TERMINATION ........................................................................................................... 17 

13.GENERAL PROVISIONS .............................................................................................. 19 

14.MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS ........................................................................... 22 

 

 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 3 of 33 
 

This agreement between Karpel Computer Systems Inc., a Missouri corporation, doing business as Karpel 
Solutions (hereinafter referred to as “Karpel Solutions”) and Winnebago County State’s Attorney, Illinois 
(hereinafter referred to as “Client”) is for the purposes of reviewing this proposal and to enter into this 
Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions  expressly incorporated herein, with respect 
to the license of Karpel Solutions’ copyrighted software program known as PROSECUTORbyKarpel® 
(hereinafter referred to as “PbK”).  
 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
1. “Confidential Information” means information of either Karpel Solutions or Client which is 

disclosed under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, electronic, sample 
or any other form by one of us to the other, and which is considered to be proprietary or trade 
secret by the disclosing party. Confidential Information of Karpel Solutions expressly includes, 
without limitation, the Software and Documentation. The Confidential Information of Client 
includes, without limitation, Personally Identifiable Information and Client Content. Confidential 
Information shall not include information which the party receiving the information can 
demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of confidentiality 
prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through no act or 
fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the receiving 
party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently developed 
by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. “Client Content” means all data, information, documents, and files Client uploads or inputs into 

PbK on the Service through the website, including, without limitation, Personally Identifiable 
Information.  

 
3. “Enhancements” means any specific configurations or customizations to the Software, which 

Client may request, and Karpel Solutions agrees in writing to provide.  
 

4. “Documentation” means any operating instructions, specifications and other documentation 
related to the operation, description and function of PbK, the Service or Website provided by 
Karpel Solutions whether supplied in paper or electronic form.  

 
5. “Intellectual Property” (IP) means any patents, patent applications, copyrights, mask works, 

trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names, inventions, improvements (whether 
patentable or not), trade secrets, Confidential Information, moral rights, and any other 
intellectual property rights provided by applicable law.  

 
6. “Hosted” or “Hosting” means the act of providing service and access to Client Content by the 

Internet.  
 

7. “Personally Identifiable Information” (PII) means any information that may be used to identify 
specific persons or individuals, which is collected by either Karpel Solutions or Client for use in 
conjunction with the use of PbK on HOSTEDbyKarpel. Personally Identifiable Information shall be 
considered Confidential Information.  
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 4 of 33 
 

 
8. “PbK” mean the PROSECUTORbyKarpel® case management system and specifically the Client’s 

licensed copy of PbK. 
 

9. “DbK” mean the DEFENDERbyKarpel® case management system and specifically the Client’s 
licensed copy of PbK. 

 
10. “Service” means the HOSTEDbyKarpel hosting platform provided by Karpel Solutions which allows 

internet-based hosting of the Client’s licensed copy of PbK through the Website.  
 

11. “Service Level Requirements” means the technical service levels Karpel Solutions shall meet for 
Services as set forth below in the Service Level Commitments for the delivery of the Services. 

 
12. “Software” means the Client’s licensed copy of the PbK application, and includes any and all 

updates, enhancements, underlying technology or content transfer interfaces, other 
Enhancements and any Documentation as may be provided the Client by Karpel Solutions.   

 
13. “Website” means the content and functionality currently located at the domain 

www.hostedbykarpel.com on the internet, or any successor or related domain that provides 
access to the Software and Service. 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Karpel Solutions will perform all work in accordance with the descriptions, scopes and specifications 
hereafter described. 
 

  

Minimum 
Number of 
Days Out 

June 24, 2019 Final Contract & Implementation Agreement signed. Project Pre-Implementation 
Meeting scheduled.  Minimum Workstation requirements are explained to agency 
project manager. 

90 

July 4, 2019 Workstation assessment completed and any necessary hardware or software ordered 
to meet PbK Installation Prerequisites. 

80 

July 24, 2019 4-hour remote pre-implementation meeting with project manager and System 
Administrator(s). PbK Overview. Project Team is selected including Karpel Staff and 
Customer System Administrator(s). (One Customer System Administrator must be a 
Policy Setting Attorney). This meeting will begin with application overview and 
enhancement definitions. PbK Pre-load configuration is explained, and initial 
Document Templates are received.  Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. 

60 

August 3, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress on hardware/software assessments, finalize pre-implementation 
meeting timeline agreement. 

50 

August 8, 
2019 

Agency Document Templates are received. System Administrator training begins. 
Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. System enhancements are completed and 
demonstrated. 

45 

http://www.hostedbykarpel/
http://www.hostedbykarpel/


 

Initials _____________   Page 5 of 33 
 

August 13, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress and answer additional questions regarding pre-load spreadsheet. 

40 

August 18, 
2019 

Karpel Support installation and application testing on each workstation should begin 
at this time. Karpel Solutions or local IT support will schedule workstation application 
testing and follow Karpel testing procedures to thoroughly test browser functionality, 
document generation, Outlook Calendaring and email on each workstation. 

35 

August 18, 
2019 

The agency project manager will provide Karpel with any additional legacy 
documents.  

35 

August 18, 
2019 

Training Schedule is completed with assignment of all office staff to specific training 
sessions. The Policy Setting Attorney must attend the initial Configuration, Case 
Initiation and Event Entry sessions at a minimum. 

35 

August 23, 
2019 

Karpel will install the preliminary document templates and Event Entry Configuration. 
Application testing will begin. Agency project manager will report all inaccuracies to 
Karpel. All Custom Enhancements are tested and verified.  Begin testing of all 
application interfaces. 

30 

September 8, 
2019 

Complete installation and testing of all workstations by Karpel Solutions or local IT 
support. 

14 

September 15, 
2019 

Final teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager to verify 
final data accuracy. 

7 

 
Final configuration of PbK is performed with all System Administrators.  User training 
begins. Customer begins using PbK in a live state. 

Go Live 

 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Project Timeline”). 
 
The above Go Live date will no longer be valid if Client fails to sign this contract within 30 days of receipt. 
Furthermore, the Project Timeline may be modified as mutually agreed upon by Client and Karpel 
Solutions. 
 
Karpel Solutions will use its best efforts to convert existing Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and Corel 
WordPerfect® documents provided by Client up to the time of training as outlined in the Project Timeline 
listed above into a format that can be utilized by PbK.  However, Karpel Solutions does not support, nor 
will Karpel Solutions convert customized macros, auto-text files or other custom programming items not 
a part of the ordinary functionality of Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and/or Corel WordPerfect® 
 

3. OTHER WORK 
 
Any additional work requirements outside the scope of this Agreement must be presented in the form of 
a written change order and must be approved by Client prior to start of such work. No additional charges 
will be incurred without prior written approval from Client.  
 

4. GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS 
 
In order for the project to be completed on time and on budget, Client shall provide at a minimum:   
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 6 of 33 
 

1. Access to Client facilities while onsite, as deemed necessary by the Karpel Solutions project 
manager. 

  
2. Access to systems and equipment as required by Karpel Solutions including: 

 
a. PbK application access using Karpel Solutions laptops and Client’s network for training 

and application testing. 
 

b. Installation of the Karpel Solutions remote support tool on all desktops accessing the PbK 
application. Failure of Client to provide access to enable support tool will render the 
Karpel Solutions support null and void. 

 
3. Access to Client data and document templates (if applicable) will be provided by Client if such 

data is to be converted and populated by Karpel Solutions into PbK.  
a. Legacy data source(s) (i.e., any data from Client’s current system which is being replaced 

under this Agreement) must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but not 
later than 120 days from the above go live date. Additional data sources provided after 
this date will not be converted unless mutually agreed otherwise. 
 

b. Document templates must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but no 
later than 90 days from the above go live date. Document templates provided after this 
date will not be converted unless mutually agreed otherwise.  

 
4. An authorized attorney with decision making authority to assist in the definition of any project 

unknowns. 
a. Appointed decision maker must be present during the following activities: 

i. Project kickoff 
ii. Establishment of timeline 

iii. Interface definition meetings 
iv. Workflow meetings 
v. Charge language review and approval 

vi. Document template review and signoff 
vii. Data conversion signoff 

 
5. Sufficient time, if applicable, for all data reviews which will include a minimum of: 

a. Verification and review of ten (10) cases per year per department of any legacy system(s) data 
during each review. 
 

b. Client is responsible for validating their data and codes tables during the project. Validating 
data is key to a successful implementation. If issues arise with converted data after go-live, 
Karpel Solutions will determine if a fix is possible and an additional fee for this work may be 
required for the work required to fix the issue. 

 
6. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to the Software through the Service and Website is password-

protected. Karpel Solutions provides multiple authentication alternatives for access to the 
Website and Software. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY ENCOURAGES THE USE OF STRONG 
PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for Client’s use of the Service, 
Website or Software. Only the number of users set forth in the Cost Sheet may access the Service 



 

Initials _____________   Page 7 of 33 
 

and Website. Client must inform their users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of 
the terms of this Agreement. Client is fully responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and 
agents who access the Service and Website. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for 
and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless for any unauthorized access to the Service 
and Website, including without limitation access caused by data destruction and/or failure to 
protect the login and password information of users. 

 
7. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. Client agrees to conduct all activities on the Service and Website in 

accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Access to the Service, Website, Software and 
Documentation must be solely for Client’s own internal use. Client may not (and may not allow 
any third party to) (i) alter, modify, decompile, mirror, translate, disassemble or otherwise reverse 
engineer any part of the Software, source code, algorithms, or underlying ideas of the Software; 
(ii) provide, lease, lend, subcontract, sublicense, or re-publish for,, service bureau or hosting 
purposes any or all of the Software or Documentation; (iii) reproduce, modify, copy, distribute, 
publish, display or create derivative works of any or all of the Software or Documentation or (iv) 
alter, remove, or obscure any copyright, trademark or other proprietary notices or confidentiality 
legends on or in the Software or Documentation.  
 

8. SUSPENSION. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to immediately suspend access to Software 
and/or Website without notice and at any time if Karpel Solutions suspects or has reason to 
suspect a security or data breach, if suspension is necessary to protect Karpel Solutions’ rights, 
Client’s rights or the rights of a third party, if Client misuses the Software and/or Website, and/or 
if Client otherwise violates this Agreement. Karpel Solutions will provide note to client upon 
suspension of the Service and Website.  
 
 

5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY 
 
Karpel Solutions will perform its Services as set forth in this Agreement in exchange for payment as set 
forth below.  
 

Software Products/Licensing Qty. Price   Total 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel 87 $2,250  $195,750 
External Agency Portal 1 $30,000  $30,000 

Total Software       $225,750 

 
Installation Services Qty. Price   Total 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel Installation and Configuration 1 $1,000  $1,000 
Data Preload 1 $10,000  $10,000 
Client Support Tool, Scanning Tool and System 
Compatibility Check (per computer) 87 $50  $4,350 

Total Installation Services       $15,350 

     
Professional Services Qty. Price   Total 
Project Management No Additional Cost 



 

Initials _____________   Page 8 of 33 
 

Pre-Implementation Services (on-site/days) 2 $2,400 2 resources $4,800 
Data Conversion:  FullCase 1 $50,000  $50,000 
Mock Go-Live and System Administrator Training (30 
days prior to go-live, hours, remote) 2 $2,400 2 resources $4,800 
Document Template Setup, Training and Conversion of 
Up To 100 Document (max of 50 Civil) Templates 1 $2,500  $2,500 

Total Professional Services       $62,100 

     
Training Services Qty. Price   Total 
Pre-Go-Live Review and Training (onsite/days) 3 $2,400 2 resources $7,200 
Go-Live Training (onsite/days) 5 $3,600 3 resources $18,000 
Post Go-Live Support and Training (remote/days) 1 $1,200 1 resource $1,200 

Total Training Services       $26,400 
    
Customization Services Qty. Price   Total 
Interface: Illinois Court Events (FullCourt) 1 $15,000  $15,000 

Total Customization Services       $15,000 

     
Estimated Travel Expenses    $16,300 

     

Total One-Time Costs       $360,900 
     

Annual Support Services Qty. Price   Total 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel 87 $450  $39,150 
External Agency Portal 1 $6,000  $6,000 
Hosted Services (per user/year) 87 $100  $8,700 
Unlimited eDiscovery 1 $10,875  $10,875 
Interface: IL Court Interface 1 $3,000  $3,000 

Total Annual Support Services       $67,725 
 

Optional Items       Price 
JasperSoft Reporting Module    $2,000 

JasperSoft Reporting Module Annual Support    $10,000 
JasperSoft Reporting Module Training (minimum)    $600 

Custom Reports (per report)    $1,000 
Document Template Conversion After 100 Documents (per document)   

Criminal document templates    $25 
Civil document templates    $50 

Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per terabyte, per year)   $1,000 
Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per 100 terabytes, per 
year)   $32,000 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 9 of 33 
 

This pricing is based upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. Interfaces must conform to the appropriate Karpel Solutions Information Exchange Package 
Documentation (IEPD) for that interface. Interfaces that do not conform to the appropriate 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel IEPD (i.e., require a new schema to be designed or database modification), 
will require Karpel Solutions and Client review before approval of both design and potential 
additional development and maintenance costs.  
 

2. All phase one (1) interfaces must have an IRF (Interface Request Form) completed and signed off 
by all parties within 30 days of the project kick-off meeting. If not completed within this time 
frame, the interfaces will be automatically moved into phase 2. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL COSTS FROM THE OTHER VENDOR(S), WHICH IS NOT 
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ABOVE PRICING FOR THIS CONTRACT, AND WHICH WILL BE BILLED 
SEPARATELY.  CLIENT SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THESE SEPARATE COSTS.  
 

3. Interfaces not currently in production will be considered as “Phase 2” and implemented post-go 
live. 

 
4. The above costs do not include additional hardware, Microsoft licenses, or networking services 

which may be necessary to properly and legally operate PbK.  Such expenses are solely the Client’s 
responsibility. 
 

5. Changes to the Project Timeline or project scope will impact other work of Karpel Solutions and 
will result in an increased financial burden to Karpel Solutions.  As such, if a scheduled go-live date 
is rescheduled due to delays by the client or a client’s 3rd party vendor, a penalty of 10% of the 
total first year costs may be assessed by Karpel Solutions as compensation to Karpel Solutions for 
costs incurred and lost time, including, but not limited to, costs associated with booked travel and 
accommodations and time that will be lost on  other client start dates as a result of Client’s change 
to the Project Timeline. 
 

6. Karpel Solutions will honor pricing proposals for Optional Services for up to 90 days of execution 
of this Agreement.   Upon the request of Client to provide an Optional Service, an official notice 
to begin the service must be received from Client before the Optional Services will be provided 
by Karpel Solutions.  This is to ensure there are no misunderstandings between Client and Karpel 
Solutions as to the provision of Optional Services. 
 

7. The aggregate document / file storage space included with the stated hosted service fee is two 
terabytes (2TB) of storage per instance of PbK. If the Client’s storage exceeds 2TB in any instance, 
any additional storage above 2TB will automatically be added to the Client’s bill at a flat rate of 
$1,000 per 1TB, per year.  Client hereby consents to this additional charge in advance and waives 
any requirement for additional notice regarding the same.   
 

8. Hosted eDiscovery services will be invoiced monthly at the rate of $1 per submission to the hosted 
eDiscovery site if Client does not elect the unlimited annual fee option. 
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 10 of 33 
 

9. Statewide service is a free service provided to all PROSECUTORbyKarpel clients. To enroll in and 
activate this additional service, the Memorandum Of Understanding at Appendix A must be 
separately signed by the Client. 
 

10. All travel costs are estimates and the Client is responsible for all the project’s actual travel 
expenses to include airfare, lodging, ground transportation, meals, and incidental expenses.  
 

11. As with any project, all prices herein are subject to change as new information arises that will alter 
or impact the project or as workload for the project increases. Karpel Solutions will seek approval 
from Client if additional work becomes necessary to make requested changes during the project.  
 

12. In the event Client or Karpel terminates this Agreement, Client understands and agrees to pay 
$1,000 to Karpel Solutions as compensation for work to be performed by Karpel Solutions in 
connection with the return of Client Content and Confidential Information. All fees incurred up to 
point of termination are also due in full.    

 
5.1 Payment Terms 

 
50% of Software User Licenses is due and must be paid upon execution of this Agreement by Client, 
with the remaining amount, including first year annual fees, due and payable within thirty (30) days 
of completion of implementation of the Service and initial training provided to Client by Karpel 
Solutions. 

 
TERM. Annual Fees in the Agreement will begin upon Client’s go live month and will be due each year 
thereafter, unless Karpel Solutions or Client terminates this Agreement before the renewal date.  This 
Agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year and shall automatically renew for subsequent one-year 
terms, unless either Karpel Solutions or Client gives notice to the other party at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current term of Karpel Solutions or Client’s intent not to renew. 
Prior to the expiration of the term, Karpel Solutions will send Client a renewal invoice, which must be 
paid in full within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. Pricing for subsequent annual terms is 
subject to change at the sole discretion of Karpel Solutions.  Karpel Solutions will provide Client with 
at least ninety (90) days’ notice of any pricing change prior to the renewal date.  

 
INTEREST AND LATE FEES. Past due accounts will be charged interest on a monthly basis, calculated  
at one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of the unpaid balance or the maximum rate allowable 
by law.  

 
6. ANNUAL SUPPORT 

 
6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES 
 
Client understands that technical support fees will be required annually, in order to receive software 
updates and technical support.  The support period shall begin from the date of go-live as part of the 
initial first year costs.  The Client may elect to purchase subsequent annual support, on a yearly basis 
at a fixed cost, and billed annually, separate and apart from any license fees required by this 
Agreement.  The option to purchase annual support is solely at the Client’s discretion. The Client’s 
license to use PbK is not dependent upon the Client purchasing annual support; however, if Client 



 

Initials _____________   Page 11 of 33 
 

discontinues annual support, Client will not be provided with updated versions of the software, unless 
it is purchased. Provided Client’s computers, network and systems meet recommended specifications 
set by Karpel Solutions and the Client has purchased and is current with annual support payments, 
Karpel Solutions will provide updated versions of the System and/or Software as they become 
available during the terms of the contract.  If Client elects to renew the annual support service, Karpel 
Solutions has the right to increase current pricing for annual support at the time of renewal, provided 
that notice of the increased pricing is provided to Client prior to the effective date of the renewal of 
the annual support service.   
  

6.1.1 SUPPORT PROVIDED 
 

Karpel Solutions will provide support (e.g. software updates, general program enhancements and 
technical support) for all Software provided, including ongoing unlimited telephone technical 
support problem determination, and resolution. 

 
6.1.2 HOURS OF OPERATION 

 
Karpel Solutions will provide technical support Monday through Friday between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. through 9:00 p.m. Central time, via a toll-free telephone number provided. After-hours support 
is available as well via the same toll-free number which will reach the on-call support group. 

 
6.1.3 INCLUDED SUPPORT 

 
Support services include the detection and correction of Software errors and the implementation 
of all PbK program changes, updates, and upgrades. Karpel Solutions shall respond to the inquiries 
regarding the use and functionality of the solution as issues are encountered by Authorized Users. 
Support to users will be provided through the remote support tool installed on the end user’s 
computer. This tool was installed at the time of go-live allowing Karpel to provide the needed 
support to meet the service level agreement. If this access is not allowed, support will be delayed 
and the service level agreement (severity levels) will no longer be applicable. 

 
6.1.4 RESPONSE TIMES 

 
Karpel Solutions shall be responsive and timely to technical support calls/inquires made by the 
Client.  The Client will first make support inquires through their qualified system administrators to 
assure the policies and business practices of the Client are enforced prior to contacting Karpel 
Solutions.  The timeliness of the response is dependent upon the severity of the issue/support 
problem, as defined below:      

The severity* of the issue/support problem shall determine the average problem resolution 
response time as follows: 

 
*If the remote support tool is not installed or available, support will not be provided.. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 12 of 33 
 

Severity Level 1 shall be defined as urgent situations, when the Client’s production system is down 
and the Client is unable to use the system, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept 
the Client’s call for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is 
not immediately available, Karpel Solutions shall return the customer’s call within one (1) business 
hour.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 1 problems as quickly as possible, which on 
average should not exceed two (2) business days, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the 
Client.   

Severity Level 2 shall be defined as critical Software system component(s) that has significant 
outages and/or failure precluding its successful operation, and possibly endangering the 
customer’s environment.  Karpel Solution’s may operate but are severely restricted. Karpel 
Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the customer’s call for assistance at the time the 
customer places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel 
Solutions shall return the Client’s call within four (4) business hours.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve 
Severity Level 2 problems as quickly as possible, which on average should not exceed three (3) 
business days, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 

Severity Level 3 shall be defined as a minor problem that exists with Karpel Solution’s but the 
majority of the functions are still usable and some circumvention may be required to provide 
service.  Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call for assistance at the 
time the customer places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel 
Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business day.  Karpel 
Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 3 problems as quickly as possible, which should not exceed 
the next available release of Software, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 

General Assistance:  For general Software support/helpdesk calls not covered by the above 
severity level descriptions, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call 
for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately 
available, Karpel Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business 
day. 

 
6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT 

 
UPTIME: Karpel Solutions is committed to providing the Software, Website and Service in a  
consistent and reliable manner. Karpel Solutions will provide the Software, Website and Service 
to Client with a stated minimum uptime of 99.5% to Client.  

 
SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE: Karpel Solutions periodically performs scheduled maintenance  
Including, but not limited to, outline, preventative or emergency maintenance of the Software, 
Website, and/or Service. Client understands that schedule maintenance may affect availability of 
the Service, Website, and/or Software.  If schedule maintenance is to be performed, Karpel 
Solutions will provide notice to Client three (3) days prior to the scheduled maintenance. Karpel 
Solutions will make every effort to schedule maintenance outside of normal business hours of the 
Client between the hours of ten (10) p.m. and five (5) a.m. Central Standard Time.  
 
DATA RETENTION AND BACKUPS:  As a part of the Service and Website, Karpel Solutions will  
maintain under this Agreement consistent, regular and validated backup both onsite and offsite 
of the Client Content, Confidential Information and Software. Backups occur and will be 



 

Initials _____________   Page 13 of 33 
 

maintained pursuant to Karpel Solutions internal backup policies. Upon written request, Karpel 
Solutions will make available to Client a copy of Karpel Solutions’ current backup policies and 
procedures.  
 
AUDITS AND SECURITY: Karpel Solutions is committed to maintaining the security of Client  
Content, Confidential Information, and Software on Karpel Solutions’ Service and Website. Karpel 
Solutions will maintain the Software, Website and Service in a reasonably secure manner, subject 
to Client’s own obligations to protect and safeguard usernames and passwords on Client’s end. 
Karpel Solutions will perform annual security audits of the Website and Service to ensure the 
integrity and security of the Website and Service. Results of the Audits and Security Policy for 
Karpel Solutions will be made available to Client upon written request.  
 
DATA TRANSMISSION: Karpel Solutions ensures that all data transmitted to and from the Service 
and Website is transmitted at a minimum level of 128-bit SSL encryption using digital    certificates 
issued by an internationally recognized domain registrar and certificate authority.  
 

      DATA LOCATION: Karpel Solutions will maintain the Service, Software, Client Content and  
   Confidential Information of Client in a SAS 70/SSAE 16 certified data facility.  

 
7. OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY  

 
KARPEL SOLUTIONS OWNERSHIP: Karpel Solutions retains all right, title and interest in and to the 
Software, Documentation, Website, Service, and related Intellectual Property.  Any suggestions, solutions, 
improvements, corrections, or other contributions Client provides regarding the Software, 
Documentation, Website or Services will become the property of Karpel Solutions and Client hereby 
assigns all such rights to Karpel Solutions without charge. Client is granted a non-exclusive, non-
transferable license with respect to the Software on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 8 below. 
 
CLIENT OWNERSHIP: Client retains all rights, title, and interest in and to the Client Content. Client hereby 
grants to Karpel Solutions and Karpel Solutions hereby accepts a non-exclusive, non-transferable, 
worldwide, fully paid license to use, copy, and modify the Client Content solely to the extent necessary 
and for the sole purposes of providing access to the Software, Documentation, Website, and Services or 
otherwise complying with its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
8. LICENSE TERMS AND USE 

 
The Software, is a proprietary product of Karpel Solutions.  It is licensed (not sold) and is licensed to Client 
for its use and only in accordance with the terms set forth below. During the term of this Agreement, 
Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to use Karpel 
Solutions solely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Client’s license will terminate 
immediately and automatically upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  Client may not sub-
license any rights under this Agreement to any party without Karpel Solution’s prior written consent. 
Client’s license is subject at all times to Client’s full compliance with this Agreement. 

 
1. Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive and non-transferable sublicense to use any 

associated manuals and/or documentation furnished.  



 

Initials _____________   Page 14 of 33 
 

 
2. Client cannot distribute, rent, sublicense, or lease the Software. A separate license is required for 

each authorized user or employee. Each license may not be shared by more than one full time 
employee or user (defined as working 20 hours or more per week), nor more than two (2) part-
time employees or users (defined as working less than 20 hours per week each and working no 
more than 40 hours per week combined). The Client agrees that Karpel Solutions will suffer 
damages from the Client’s breach of this term and further agrees that in the event of such breach 
by Client, Karpel Solutions shall be entitled to and Client must pay to Karpel Solutions the 
monetary equivalent of the costs that would have been incurred by Client had Client properly 
obtained the license, installation and training associated with each violation, in addition to any 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by Karpel Solutions with respect to the same 

 
3. This license does not transfer any rights to Software source codes, unless Karpel Solutions ceases 

to do business without transferring its obligations under this Agreement to another qualified 
software business.  Karpel Solutions will, at Client’s expense, enter into escrow agreement for the 
storage of the source codes. 

 
4. Karpel Solutions and its Documentation are protected by copyright and trade secret laws. Client 

may not use, copy, modify, or transfer the Software or its Documentation, in whole or in part, 
except as expressly provided herein. Karpel Solutions retains all rights in any copy, derivative or 
modification to the Software or its Documentation no matter by whom made. Karpel Solutions is 
licensed for single installations of one full time employee or two part-time employees as defined 
in Section 8.2 above. A separate license is required for each installation of Karpel Solutions. Client 
shall not provide or disclose or otherwise make available the application or any portion thereof in 
any form to any third party. Client acknowledges that unauthorized copying and distribution will 
cause substantial damage to Karpel Solutions far greater than the value of the copies involved. 

 
5. Karpel Solutions was developed exclusively at private expense and is Karpel Solutions’ trade 

secret. For all purposes of the Freedom of Information Act or any other similar statutory right of 
“open” or public records, the Software shall be considered exempt from disclosure.  Karpel 
Solutions is "commercial computer software" subject to limited utilization "Restricted Rights."  
PbK, including all copies, is and shall remain proprietary to Karpel Solutions or its licensors.  In the 
event that a third party seeks to compel disclosure and/or production of the Software, the 
Documentation, and/or the Website by court order or otherwise, Client shall promptly give notice 
to Karpel Solutions so as to allow Karpel Solutions to take whatever steps it deems necessary to 
prevent such disclosure and/or production, and Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions 
in connection therewith. 

 
6. Public Agency Participation: Other public agencies may utilize the terms and conditions 

established by this Contract. “Public agency”, for purposes of this paragraph, is defined to include 
any city, county, district, public authority, public agency, municipality, and other political 
subdivision. Client is not an agent, partner, or representative of such public agency, and is not 
obligated or liable for any action or debts that may arise out of such independently negotiated 
procurements. These so called “piggy-back” awards shall be made independently by each public 
agency, and that agency shall accept sole responsibility for placing orders with Vendor. Client does 
not accept any responsibility or involvement in the purchase orders or Contracts issued by other 
public agencies. Any such contract by another public agency must be in accordance with the 



 

Initials _____________   Page 15 of 33 
 

statutes, codes, ordinances, charter and/or procurement rules and regulations of such public 
agency. 

 
9. WARRANTY  

 
1. LIMITED WARRANTY: Karpel Solutions warrants it will provide the Services and Website in a 

professional manner by qualified personnel. Karpel Solutions warrants it has the requisite power 
and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. Karpel Solutions 
warrants that the performance by Karpel Solutions of any services described in this Agreement 
shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Karpel Solutions warrants it 
will provide access to and use of the Software, Service and Website in material accordance with 
the Service Level Commitment outlined in this Agreement. No representations or warranties as 
to the use, functionality or operation of the Website, Software, or Service are made by Karpel 
Solutions other than as expressly stated in this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions disclaims all other 
warranties as set forth in Section 9.5 below. 

 
2. INTERNET: Karpel Solutions makes the Website, Software and Services available to Client through 

the internet to the extent commercially reasonable, and subject to outages, communication and 
data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in Internet communications. Client 
recognizes that problems with the Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, 
impairments or congestion, or the configuration of Client’s computer systems, may prevent, 
interrupt or delay Client’s access to the Service, Website or Software. Client agrees that Karpel 
Solutions is not liable for and agreed to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any delays, 
interruptions, suspensions or unavailability of the Website or Software attributable to problems 
with the Internet or the configuration of Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
3. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS: Karpel Solutions provides the Services and Website based upon the 

system requirements as specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions 
is not liable for and agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of the Services, or 
the Software based upon Client’s failure to comply with the system requirements of Karpel 
Solutions. 

  
4. WARRANTY LIMITATION: The warranties set forth in this Agreement do not apply if non-

compliance is caused by, or has resulted from (i) Client’s failure to use any new or corrected 
versions of the Software or Documentation made available by Karpel Solutions, (ii) use of the 
Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client for any purpose other than that 
authorized in this Agreement, (iii) use of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services in 
combination with other software, data or products that are defective, incompatible with, or not 
authorized in writing by Karpel Solutions for use with the Software, Documentation, Website, or 
Services, (iv) misuse of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client, (v) any 
malfunction of Client’s software, hardware, computers, computer-related equipment or network 
connection, (vi) any modification of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services not 
performed by or otherwise authorized by Karpel Solutions in writing, or (vii) an event of Force 
Majeure.  

 
5. DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE MADE IN LIEU OF ALL 

OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED, 



 

Initials _____________   Page 16 of 33 
 

INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NONINFRINGEMENT, TITLE, 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING OUT 
OF A USE IN TRADE OR COURSE OF DEALING OR PERFORMANCE. KARPEL SOLUTIONS DOES NOT 
WARRANT (i) THAT ACCESS TO OR USE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL BE CONTINUOUS, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, (ii) 
THAT THE RESULTS ARISING OUT OF CLIENT’S USE OF THE SOFTWARE, DOCUMENTATION OR 
WEBSITE WILL BE ACCURATE, COMPLETE OR ERROR-FREE, OR (iii) THAT THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL MEET CLIENT’S NEEDS. 

 
6. EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES: If the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services provided under this 

Agreement do not materially comply with the requirements stated in the Limited Warranty 
Section outlined above, Karpel Solutions’ sole obligation shall be to correct or modify the 
Software, Documentation, Website or Services, at no additional charge to Client. If Karpel 
Solutions determines it is unable to correct what is non-conforming, Client’s sole remedy will be 
to receive a refund of the fees paid for the non-conforming Services, even if such remedy fails of 
its essential purpose. In that event, Client may also elect to terminate this Agreement as set forth 
in Section 12 of this Agreement. 

  
10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

 
CLIENT AGREES THAT KARPEL SOLUTIONS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS OF DATA, COST OF 
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF KARPEL 
SOLUTIONS HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND CLIENT WAIVES ANY RIGHTS 
AND AGREES TO HOLD KARPEL SOLUTIONS HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY SUCH DAMAGES OR 
LOSSES. THIS LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY), STATUTE OR OTHERWISE. REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 
THE CLAIM, KARPEL SOLUTIONS’ TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO: (i) THE EXTENT 
AND AMOUNT OF ANY INSURANCE COVERAGE WHICH IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), OR (ii) THE 
AMOUNT OF FEES CLIENT HAS PAID TO KARPEL SOLUTIONS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD PRIOR TO SUCH CLAIM(S) ARISING.  TO THE EXTENT THAT INSURANCE 
COVERAGE IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), CLIENT’S SOLE RECOURSE SHALL BE PAYMENT OF ANY 
AVAILABLE INSURANCE PROCEEDS. 

  
11. INDEMNIFICATION  

 
CLIENT’S INDEMNIFICATION: Client will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Karpel Solutions from and 
against any and all liability, damage, loss or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of 
(i) any claim, demand, action or proceeding, statutory or otherwise,  relating to the use of the Website, 
Software, Documentation or Services in a manner not expressly described or permitted by this 
Agreement, (ii) use of the Website, Software, Documentation or Services in any unlawful manner or for 
any unlawful purpose, (iii) Karpel Solutions’ use of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that 
allegedly infringes upon or violates any third party Intellectual Property rights, or (iv) Karpel Solutions’ use 
of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that allegedly violates privacy rights or other rights with 
respect to Personally Identifiable Information of a third party.  

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 17 of 33 
 

KARPEL SOLULTIONS’ INDEMNIFICATION: Karpel Solutions will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Client from and against any claim or suit brought against Client alleging that the Software directly infringes 
upon or violates any valid U.S. Intellectual Property rights. Karpel Solutions shall have the right to select 
counsel for purposes of its defense obligations hereunder and will at all times have the right to control 
the defense of such claim or suit.  Karpel Solutions will not be liable for any cost or expense incurred by 
Client in connection with any such suit or claim, without Karpel Solutions’ prior and specific authorization 
and consent.  Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions and to provide such assistance as may be 
requested by Karpel Solutions in connection with the defense of such claim or suit.   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Karpel Solutions shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify Client if the 
infringement claim is based solely or in part upon or arises out of: (i) any modification of or alteration to 
the Software not made by Karpel Solutions, (ii) any combination or use of the Software with products, 
hardware or services not supplied by Karpel Solutions or approved in writing by Karpel Solutions in 
advance of such combination, (iii) Client’s continuance of allegedly infringing activity after being notified 
of such activity, or after being informed of modifications that would have avoided the alleged 
infringement, (iv) Client’s failure to use corrections or enhancements made available by Karpel Solutions, 
(v) use of the Software not in accordance with the applicable Documentation or this Agreement, or (vi) 
use of the Software in a manner for which it was neither designed nor contemplated.  
 
In no event shall Karpel Solutions’ total liability and obligation under this Section exceed the total fees 
Client has paid to Karpel Solutions under this Agreement in the twelve (12) month period prior to the 
assertion or filing of such claim against Client. The foregoing remedies constitute Client’s sole and 
exclusive remedies, and Karpel Solutions’ entire liability and obligation with respect to any suit or claim 
for infringement or misappropriation of third-party Intellectual Property rights or with respect to the 
Software.  
 
NOTIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OF INDEMNIFIED PARTIES: The indemnification obligations set forth above 
will apply only if and to the extent (i) the indemnified party gives prompt written notice to the 
indemnifying party of the assertion of any such claims, demands, action or proceeding, (ii) the 
indemnifying party has the right to select counsel and control the defense and all negotiations for 
settlement thereof and (iii) the indemnified party provides all reasonable information, assistance and 
cooperation required to defend such claim, demand, action or proceeding. The indemnifying party shall 
not settle or dispose of any such claim, demand, action or proceeding without written notification to the 
indemnified party in the event that the proposed settlement or disposal would materially adversely 
impact the indemnified party. 

 
12. TERMINATION 

  
TERMINATION: Client may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Karpel Solutions of 
Client’s intent to terminate in the event that Karpel Solutions has failed to perform under or materially 
breaches this Agreement.  Thereafter, Karpel Solutions will have thirty (30) days from the receipt of such 
notice to cure the alleged failure or breach.  If at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Karpel Solutions 
has not cured the alleged failure or breach, then Client may terminate this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions 
may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days’ written notice for any reason. Either party may 
immediately terminate this Agreement in the event the other party (i) files for, or has filed against it, a 
bankruptcy petition, and such petition is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of the filing date, (ii) ceases 
to conduct business in the normal course, (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (iv) is 



 

Initials _____________   Page 18 of 33 
 

liquidated or otherwise dissolved, (v) becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts in the normal course, 
or (vi) has a receiver, trustee or custodian appointed for it.  

 
RIGHTS AFTER EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION: Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Karpel 
Solutions will immediately terminate Client’s access to and use of the Website, Documentation, and 
Services. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, each party shall immediately cease use of any 
Confidential Information received from the other party. Within thirty (30) days of written request 
following termination or expiration of this Agreement, Karpel Solutions shall coordinate with Client with 
respect to the return of Client Content and Confidential Information obtained or shared during the course 
of the Agreement.  Client understands that upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, Client 
must return to Karpel Solutions (or at Karpel Solutions’ election, destroy and certify such destruction in 
writing) any Documentation or other materials provided by Karpel Solutions, whether in written or 
electronic form, regarding the Website, Software or Services provided under this Agreement.  

 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 19 of 33 
 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
NOTICES: Any notices provided under this Agreement will be in writing in the English language and will be 
deemed to have been properly given if delivered personally or if sent by (i) a recognized overnight courier, 
(ii) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (iii) electronic means, 
followed by mailing a copy by regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid. Karpel Solutions’ address for such notices 
is set forth below. Client’s address for such notices will be the address on file with Karpel Solutions as 
provided by Client. Such address or contact information may be revised from time to time by Karpel 
Solutions and/or Client by written notice as described in this Section. All notices sent by mail will be 
deemed received on the tenth (10th) business day after deposit in the mail. All notices sent by overnight 
courier will be deemed given on the next business day after deposit with the overnight courier. All notices 
sent by electronic means will be deemed given on the next business day after successful transmission. 

  
Karpel Solutions 
c/o Jeffery L. Karpel, CEO 
9717 Landmark Parkway, Suite 200 
St. Louis, MO 63127 
(314) 892-6300 
karpel@karpel.com 

 
GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. This Agreement is to be construed and governed by the 
laws of the United States and the State of Missouri, without regard to conflict of law’s provisions. Any 
dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement must be brought exclusively in the appropriate 
court(s) located in St. Louis County, Missouri, and Client expressly waives any and all objections regarding 
jurisdiction, venue, and forum non conviens in such court(s). If either Karpel Solutions or Client employs 
attorneys to enforce any rights arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party will be 
entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-prevailing party.  

 
  

mailto:karpel@karpel.com
mailto:karpel@karpel.com


 

Initials _____________   Page 20 of 33 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date set forth 
below. This Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions attached hereto and incorporated 
herein and all other attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, superseding all 
prior written and oral agreements.  The parties hereto agree that this Agreement may not be modified, 
altered, or changed except by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.  Prior to acceptance of 
this Agreement, Karpel Solutions reserves the right to make modifications to this Agreement. The 
signatories warrant they have the authority to bind their respective party.   

 

Winnebago County, IL    Karpel Solutions 

 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 21 of 33 
 

Mailing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Billing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Billing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 

Tax Exempt?   No □     Yes □ If yes, please attach copy of tax exempt certificate 
 
Agency Project Manager Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Project IT Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 



 

Initials _____________   Page 22 of 33 
 

14. MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

KARPEL COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC. (dba “Karpel Solutions”), 
MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
GENERAL TERMS 

 
1. ACCEPTANCE TERM. The proposal attached to these Master Terms and Conditions is tendered for 

acceptance in its entirety within thirty (30) days from the date of the proposal, after which it is to be 
considered null and void.   

 
2. MODIFICATION AND WAIVER. Any modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

both parties. Neither party will be deemed to have waived any of its rights under the Agreement by 
any statement or representation other than (i) by an Authorized Representative and (ii) in an explicit 
written waiver. No waiver of a breach of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of any prior or 
subsequent breach of this Agreement.  

 
3. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Karpel Solutions, Client, 

and Karpel Solutions’ successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client may not assign or 
otherwise transfer this Agreement or Client’s rights and obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of Karpel Solutions, and any purported assignment or other transfer without 
such consent will be void and of no force or effect. Karpel Solutions may assign and /or transfer this 
Agreement or Karpel Solutions’ rights and obligations under this Agreement at any time and the 
Client’s consent to such assignment or transfer is not needed.  

 
4. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the extent that 

performance of its obligations or attempts to cure any breach thereof are delayed or prevented by 
reason of any act of God, government, fire, natural disaster, accident, terrorism, network or 
telecommunication system failure, sabotage or any other cause beyond the control of such party 
(“Force Majeure”), provided that such party promptly gives the other party written notice of such 
Force Majeure.  

 
5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. The parties will be deemed to have the status of independent 

contractors, and nothing in this Agreement will be deemed to place the parties in the relationship of 
employer-employee, principal-agent, or partners or joint ventures. Neither party has the authority to 
bind, commit or make any representations, claims or warranties on behalf of the other party without 
the other party’s prior written approval. 

 
6. SOFTWARE ANOMALIES. New commercial software releases or upgrades, or any hardware and/or 

software owned by or licensed to Client, used in connection with Karpel Solutions’ Services may have 
anomalies, performance or integration issues unknown to Karpel Solutions which can impact the 
timely, successful implementation of information systems.  Karpel Solutions will inform the Client 
promptly if this occurs and will attempt to analyze, correct and/or work around the anomalies or 
performance issues on a "best efforts" basis.  Karpel Solutions is not responsible for any delay or 
inability to complete its Services if such anomalies or performance issues occur.  Client is responsible 
for payment for all of Karpel Solutions’ Services at the rate stated in the Agreement whether or not a 
successful solution is achieved. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 23 of 33 
 

 
7. SOFTWARE AUDIT. Client agrees to allow Karpel Solutions the right to audit Client’s use and license of 

the software at any time. Client will cooperate with the audit, including providing access to any books, 
computers, records or other information that relate to the use of Karpel Solutions. Such audit will not 
unreasonably interfere with Client’s activities. In the event that an audit reveals unauthorized use, 
reproduction, distribution, or other exploitation of the software, Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions 
for the reasonable cost of the audit, in addition to such other rights and remedies that Karpel Solutions 
may have. Absent extenuating circumstances or circumstances which lead Karpel Solutions to believe 
that there has been unauthorized use, reproduction, distribution or other exploitation of Karpel 
Solutions by Client or Client’s agents, Karpel Solutions will not conduct an audit more than once per 
year.  

 
8. CLIENT ENVIRONMENT. Client is responsible for the application, operation and management of its 

information technology environment, including but not limited to: (a) purchasing, licensing and 
maintaining hardware and software; (b) following appropriate operating procedures; (c) following 
appropriate protective measures to safeguard the software and data from unauthorized duplication, 
modification, destruction or disclosure; (d) following adequate backup contingency plans; and (e) 
employing qualified personnel to obtain the desired results. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for the 
loss of data in the software or security breaches that result in the unauthorized dissemination of data 
contained in Karpel Solutions that is the result of Client not following appropriate operating 
procedures, security and protective measures and/or following adequate backup contingency plans.  

 
9. MATERIALS. Client Agrees to pay Karpel Solutions for materials purchased for the Client’s use.  

Materials may include computer hardware, software, hosting, facility leases, other services, 
telecommunications charges, freight, shipping, mailing, document reproduction and any other such 
costs incurred in performance of services for Client.  Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions for all out 
of town travel expenses, such as automobile/airline travel, hotel, meals, and cab fare provided these 
costs are discussed and approved in advance by Client.  Billing for services rendered on-site on an as 
needed basis will include portal-to-portal (travel) time.  

 
10. COPYRIGHT. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to seek damages if Client is responsible for a violation 

of Karpel Solutions’ copyright, and Client assumes full responsibility for the acts and omissions of its 
agents acting in the course and scope of their duties for Client with respect to the protection of Karpel 
Solutions’ copyright. 

 
10. INTERNET AND NETWORK. Karpel Solutions makes the software available to Client through the 

Internet and/or Client’s own network and systems, to the extent commercially reasonable, and 
subject to outages, communication and data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in the 
Internet and network communications on the Client’s own network and systems. Client recognizes 
that problems with the Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, impairments or 
congestion, or the configuration of Client’s own computer systems and network, may prevent, 
interrupt or delay Client’s access to Karpel Solutions. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable 
for and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any delays, interruptions, suspensions or 
unavailability of Karpel Solutions attributable to problems with the Internet or the configuration of 
Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
11. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to Karpel Solutions is password-protected. Karpel Solutions provides 

multiple authentication alternatives for access to Karpel Solutions. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY 



 

Initials _____________   Page 24 of 33 
 

ENCOURAGES THE USE OF STRONG PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible 
for Client’s use of Karpel Solutions. Only the number of authorized users may access the Service and 
Website. Client must inform their users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of the 
terms of this Agreement. Client is fully responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and agents 
who access Karpel Solutions. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client agrees to 
hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any unauthorized access to Karpel Solutions and data or 
information contained therein, including without limitation, access caused by Client’s failure to 
protect the login and password information of users.  

 
12. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS. Karpel Solutions provides Karpel Solutions based upon the system 

requirements as specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not 
liable for and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of Karpel Solutions 
based upon Client’s failure to comply with the system requirements of Karpel Solutions.   

 
13. THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to any third 

party software or as to Karpel Solutions’ ability to support such software on an on-going basis.    
 
14. LIMITED ENGAGEMENT. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to the quality 

of, or the ability of software developed by Karpel Solutions to operate with, any hardware, network, 
software, systems and/or external data flows already in place at Client's facilities or as may be added 
by the Client.   

 
NON-SOLICITATION OF KARPEL SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEES 

 
Karpel Solutions has invested substantial sums of money and large amounts of time in recruiting, 
supervising and training Karpel Solutions’ employees.  Client acknowledges that it has a unique 
opportunity to evaluate Karpel Solutions employees’ performance, and has the potential to hire Karpel 
Solutions employees.  Client further acknowledges that such hiring away would substantially disrupt 
Karpel Solutions’ business and ability to provide its services for others.  Client understands that Karpel 
Solutions’ employees are subject to non-competition agreements; therefore, Client agrees during the 
term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter, Client will not in any manner, directly 
or indirectly, solicit, recruit or hire, or attempt to solicit, recruit or hire, or otherwise interfere with the 
employment or engagement of any other employees of Karpel Solutions who are employed or engaged 
by the Company at the time of the solicitation, attempted solicitation, and/or hire. 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

1. CONFIDENTIALITY. Neither party shall disclose or use any confidential or proprietary information of 
the other party.  The foregoing obligations shall not apply to information which the party receiving 
the information can demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of 
confidentiality prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through 
no act or fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the 
receiving party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently 
developed by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION. The parties recognize that certain data Client or Karpel 

Solutions may use in conjunction with PbK may be confidential Personally Identifiable Information of 
third parties. Karpel Solutions shall use all best efforts to protect the confidentiality of Personally 



 

Initials _____________   Page 25 of 33 
 

Identifiable Information of third parties. Client Agreements that Karpel Solutions is not liable and 
Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any claims arising out of disclosure of Personally 
Identifiable Information caused by Client’s own negligence or misconduct. 

 
3. DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY LAW. In the event that any Confidential Information is required to be 

disclosed pursuant to any law, code, regulation or court order from a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the receiving party shall give the disclosing party immediate written notice of such requirement and 
shall use its best efforts to seek or to cooperate with the disclosing party in seeking a protective order 
with respect to the Confidential Information requested. 

 
4. SIMILAR PROGRAMS AND MATERIALS. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions 

of this Agreement regarding confidentiality, the Agreement shall not preclude Karpel Solutions from 
developing for itself, or for others, programs or materials which are similar to those produced as a 
result of Services provided to Client. 
 

5. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The parties acknowledge that any breach of the confidentiality provisions of this 
Section will cause irreparable harm to the other party. Accordingly, the parties agree that the non-
breaching party may enforce the provisions of this Agreement by seeking an injunction, specific 
performance, criminal prosecution or other equitable relief without prejudice to any other rights and 
remedies the non-breaching party may have available to it. 

 
MARKETING 

 
1. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions may identify Client as a customer of Karpel Solutions in Karpel 

Solutions’ written promotional and marketing materials, as well as in any oral or visual presentations 
regarding the business of Karpel Solutions.   
 

2. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions of this Agreement regarding 
confidentiality, Karpel Solutions shall have the right to demonstrate for other prospective clients any 
application developed by Karpel Solutions under this Agreement and shall have the right to include 
information about any such application in marketing materials and presentations.   

 
MISCELLANEOUS  

 
1. ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS. To the extent possible, and under the terms required by Client, Client and 

Karpel Solutions may communicate by electronic means, including but not limited to, facsimile 
documents and email.  Both parties agree that:  a signature or an identification code ("USERID") 
contained in an electronic document is legally sufficient to verify the sender's identity and the 
document's authenticity; an electronic document that contains a signature or USERID is a signed 
writing; and that an electronic document, or any computer printout of it, is an original when 
maintained in the normal course of business. 

 
2. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, 

in whole or in part, the remaining portions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 26 of 33 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 

BETWEEN WINNEBAGO COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY AND KARPEL SOLUTIONS 
FOR PARTICIPATION IN STATEWIDE DATA SHARING 

FOR PROSECUTORBYKARPEL® 
 

Parties: 
 

1. The parties to this MOU are Karpel Solutions and Prosecution Offices that are willing to 
contribute potentially Confidential, Personally Identifiable, Criminal Justice Information 
to a Statewide Search system for purposes of information sharing with other Prosecution 
Offices. 
 

2. The parties agree that maximum participation by all Prosecution Offices will 
strengthen the purposes of this MOU. Accordingly, the parties anticipate and desire 
that other eligible offices will join this MOU from time to time in the future. A 
joining agency shall also be considered a party and shall have the same rights, 
privileges, obligations, and responsibilities as the original parties. 

 
Authority 

 

Each participating Office warrants that it has the legal authority to enter into this MOU and 
share Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information and Criminal Justice 
Information with each other and with Karpel Solutions for the sole purpose under this MOU 
for the delivery of a Statewide Search function. 

Definitions 
 
Confidential Information - Means information of either Karpel Solutions or Contributing Party 
which is disclosed under this MOU in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, electronic, 
sample or any other form by one office to the other, and which is considered to be proprietary, 
sensitive, or trade secret by the disclosing party. Confidential Information of Karpel Solutions 
expressly includes HOSTEDbyKarpel, PROSECUTORbyKarpel, and Statewide Search. The 
Confidential Information of Contributing Party includes, subject to the limitation below, 
Personally Identifiable Information and Criminal Justice Information. Confidential Information 
for purposes of this MOU does not include information with access restricted to certain users or 
teams within PROSECUTORbyKarpel by the Contributing Party. 

Contributing Party - A Prosecuting Attorney's Office that is a party to this MOU. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 27 of 33 
 

Criminal Justice Information - Any information collected and retained by each Contributing Party 
within PROSECUTORbyKarpel pel and securely cached on HOSTEDbyKarpel for use by Statewide 
Search. Criminal Justice Information shall be considered Confidential Information. Criminal 
Justice Information includes limited information regarding defendants, co-defendants, court 
dates, charges, cases, and law enforcement referrals. 

HOSTEDbyKarpel - Application and database delivery platform and website used by 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel to securely cache Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable 
Information, and Criminal Justice Information delivered through the Statewide Search function. 

Information - Includes Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information and 
Criminal Justice Information. 

Personally Identifiable Information - Means any information that may be used to identify specific 
persons or individuals, which is collected by each Contributing Party for use in conjunction with 
the use of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and Statewide Search on HOSTEDbyKarpel.  Personally Identifiable 
Information shall be considered Confidential Information. Personally Identifiable Information 
includes pedigree information used to identify specific persons or individuals and may include, 
but is not limited to, date of birth, social security numbers, addresses, and alias names. 

PROSECUTORbyKarpel - Means the PROSECUTORbyKarpel criminal case management system and 
specifically each Contributing Party's licensed copy of PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

Statewide Search - Functionality contained in PROSECUTORbyKarpel that allows each Contributing 
Party to query or search defendant information, co-defendant information, court dates charge 
and case information of other Contributing Parties. 

Purpose 
 

The Contributing Parties and Karpel Solutions agree that criminal history and case information 
currently available through other law enforcement and public portals is inadequate and 
sometimes incomplete. 

The Contributing Parties and Karpel Solutions agree that the sharing of information between each 
Contributing Party will benefit criminal justice statewide as it will allow for better charging, filing 
and case disposition decisions. 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to establish permissions and 
guidelines for the use of Personally Identifiable Information, Confidential Information, and 
Criminal Justice. 

Information data the parties agree to share between each other and Karpel Solutions in 
connection with the Statewide Search function inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel that is housed in a 
secure database on HOSTEDbyKarpel. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 28 of 33 
 

In addition to the permissions and guidelines the purpose of the Statewide Search function is 
multifold: 

 

1. Defendant information - Provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to search 
and view basic defendant pedigree information that is contained in each Contributing 
Party's installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure database on 
HOSTEDbyKarpel accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

2. Charge and Case information - Provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to 
search and view defendant charge, referral and basic case information contained in each 
Contributing Party's installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure 
database on HOSTEDbyKarpel that is accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 

3. Co-Defendant information - Provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to search and 
view co-defendant information and associations that are contained in each Contributing 
Party's installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure database on 
HOSTEDbyKarpel that is accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 
4. Court Dates - provide a mechanism for each Contributing Party to search and view court 

date information for cases that are contained in each Contributing Party's installation of 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel and that is cached in a secure database on HOSTEDbyKarpel that is 
accessible only from inside PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 

 
Ownership, Entry and Maintenance of Information 

 

1. Each Contributing Party retains sole ownership of, exclusive control over, and sole 
responsibility over all the information it contributes through Statewide Search including 
Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information and Criminal Justice 
Information, and may at any time update, correct or delete any information contained in 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel. Any changes made to Information in PROSECUTORbyKarpel by the 
Contributing Party will be reflected in the Information shared through Statewide Search. 
Information shared through Statewide Search cannot be altered by the Contributing Party 
independent of PROSECUTORbyKarpel. All entries into Statewide Search are clearly 
delineated to identify the jurisdiction or Contributing Party. 
 

2. Each Contributing Party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring the 
information it enters into PROSECUTORbyKarpel and subsequently shared through 
Statewide Search was not obtained in violation of any federal, state, local or tribal law 
applicable to the Contributing Party. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 29 of 33 
 

 
3. Each Contributing Party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring 

compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, policies and procedures applicable to the 
party's entry of information in PROSECUTORbyKarpel that is subsequently shared through 
Statewide Search and cached by Karpel Solutions on HOSTEDbyKarpel. 
 

4. As information entered into PROSECUTORbyKarpel and subsequently shared through 
Statewide Search is separately maintained by each Contributing Party in their separate 
installation of PROSECUTORbyKarpel, and for which each Contributing Party is solely 
responsible and accountable, information is not alterable or changeable in the Statewide 
Search database in any way by any other Contributing Party. 
 

5. Statewide Search is only populated with loaned information derived from each 
Contributing Party and is not intended to be an official repository of original records, or to 
be used as a substitute for one, nor is the information contained in Statewide Search 
accorded any independent record status. Statewide Search is merely an application to 
facilitate the sharing of copies of the information outlined above that is contributed from 
already existing records contained in each Contributing Party's installation of 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

6. Each Contributing Party agrees to treat information shared through Statewide Search, 
including Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable Information, and Criminal 
Justice Information as confidential to the extent authorized by law, including the Freedom 
of Information Act, 5.U.S.C. § 552, the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a, and STATE SUNSHINE 
LAWS. 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 30 of 33 
 

Access to and Use of Information 
 

1. Each Contributing Party will contribute Confidential Information, Personally Identifiable 
Information, and Criminal Justice Information automatically through 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel. Each Contributing party agrees and permits other Contributing 
Parties to access and use through the Statewide Search function such Confidential 
Information, Personally Identifiable Information, and Criminal Justice Information. 
 

2. Each Contributing Party will have access via PROSECUTORbyKarpel through the Statewide 
Search function to Information securely cached on HOSTEDbyKarpel for use by Statewide 
Search. 
 

3. Each Contributing Party agrees and understands that cases, persons, and other 
Information that is given an authorization level by each Contributing Party within 
PROSECUTORbyKarpel is not subject to dissemination to other Contributing Parties 
through Statewide Search. Such cases, persons and Information that are assigned specific 
users or teams (authorizations) through PROSECUTORbyKarpel authorization levels are 
excluded in Statewide Search results. 
 

4. Prosecution Offices that are not Contributing Parties are not eligible to use Statewide 
Search function through PROSECUTORbyKarpel and will not have direct access to 
Statewide Search within PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

5. Each Contributing Party is responsible for providing its own Internet connectivity to use 
Statewide Search. 
 

6. Karpel Solutions is responsible for securely caching Information for use by the Statewide 
Search function. Karpel Solutions houses Information within a secured datacenter that is 
CJIS compliant and SAS70 audited. Multiple levels of security are in place to access the 
physical systems along with multiple levels of authentication. All systems are backed up 
and a copy of those backups is kept in two different locations. Additionally, an outside 
third-party security audit is performed annually, testing both the network and 
application layers. 
 

7. Karpel Solutions is responsible for providing a secure method of delivery of the 
Information that is requested through Statewide Search. Karpel Solutions accomplishes 
this by providing the information in an encrypted stream through SSL (Secure Sockets 
Layer) that is only accessible by Contributing Parties with the necessary GUID (Globally 
Unique Identifier) to access such Information. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 31 of 33 
 

8. Each Contributing Party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring that 
the use of the Statewide Search function conforms with laws, regulations, policies 
and procedures applicable to the Contributing Party. 
 

9. All Contributing Parties agree that any information that is accessed through Statewide 
Search may only be disseminated in the furtherance of a legitimate law enforcement 
investigation or criminal prosecution. 
 

10. All Contributing Parties agree that Karpel Solutions is allowed to use Statewide Search for 
demonstration purposes showing only fictitious Information.  
 

Effective Date, Duration, Modification and Termination 
  

1. As among the Contributing Parties and Karpel Solutions, this MOU shall become effective as to 
each such party when an authorized representative of the party signs it.  
 

2. This MOU shall remain in full force and effect for each Contributing Party as long as they 
continue to use PROSECUTORbyKarpel. 
 

3. This MOU may be modified or altered upon the mutual written consent of the duly authorized 
representatives of each Contributing Party and Karpel Solutions. However, Karpel Solutions 
and the Contributing Parties may modify, address, and resolve technical and operational 
details with regards to the functionality of Statewide Search and PROSECUTORbyKarpel that 
relate to this MOU without obtaining the consent of all Contributing Parties provided that 
such does not conflict with this MOU. 
 

4. This MOU may be terminated at any time by the mutual written agreement of the 
authorized representatives of all the parties. A duly authorized representative of a 
Contributing Party may also terminate participation in the MOU upon thirty (30) day 
written notice to all other parties. Karpel Solutions may terminate the provision of 
Statewide Search to the Contributing Parties upon thirty (30) day written notice to all the 
Contributing Parties. A Contributing Party's participation may also be terminated 
involuntarily if the Contributing Party is not in compliance with the terms of this MOU. 
 

5. Upon termination of this MOU, Karpel Solutions agrees to return or destroy all data that 
is cached on HOSTEDbyKarpel for use by the Statewide Search function. 

 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 32 of 33 
 

SO AGREED, the parties below have executed this MOU by the signatures of the authorized 
representative of the Contributing Party on the dates indicated below. 

 

Winnebago County, IL      Karpel Solutions 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 33 of 33 
 

Statewide Data Sharing Portal Details 
 

When PROSECUTORbyKarpel recognizes identical Persons in the Statewide Data Sharing Portal, the 
Statewide button will automatically turn blue. Selecting the Statewide button will show the data in the 
portal as seen below.  

 

 
 

 
 



 
9717 Landmark Parkway | St. Louis, MO 63127 | (314) 892-6300 

 

 
 
 
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, IL 

 
CONTRACT FOR 

 
 

 
 

 
 

DEFENDERbyKarpel® & HOSTEDbyKarpel® 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 2 of 24 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

1.DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 3 

2.SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................................... 4 

3.OTHER INFORMATION .................................................................................................. 5 

4.GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS ................................................... 5 

5.INVESTMENT SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 7 

 5.1 Payment Terms ..................................................................................................... 10 

6.ANNUAL SUPPORT ...................................................................................................... 10 

 6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES ................................................................................... 10 
 6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT ............................................................................. 12 

7.OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ................................................................. 13 

8.LICENSE TERMS AND USE ............................................................................................ 13 

9.WARRANTY ................................................................................................................. 14 

10.LIMITATION OF LIABILITY .......................................................................................... 16 

11.INDEMNIFICATION .................................................................................................... 16 

12.TERMINATION ........................................................................................................... 17 

13.GENERAL PROVISIONS .............................................................................................. 18 

14.MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS ........................................................................... 21 

 

 

  



 

Initials _____________   Page 3 of 24 
 

This agreement between Karpel Computer Systems Inc., a Missouri corporation, doing business as Karpel 
Solutions (hereinafter referred to as “Karpel Solutions”) and Winnebago County a political subdivision of 
the State of Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “Client”) is for the purposes of reviewing this proposal and 
to enter into this Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions  expressly incorporated 
herein, with respect to the license of Karpel Solutions’ copyrighted software program known as 
DEFENDERbyKarpel® (hereinafter referred to as “DbK”).  
 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
1. “Confidential Information” means information of either Karpel Solutions or Client which is 

disclosed under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, electronic, sample 
or any other form by one of us to the other, and which is considered to be proprietary or trade 
secret by the disclosing party. Confidential Information of Karpel Solutions expressly includes, 
without limitation, the Software and Documentation. The Confidential Information of Client 
includes, without limitation, Personally Identifiable Information and Client Content. Confidential 
Information shall not include information which the party receiving the information can 
demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of confidentiality 
prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through no act or 
fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the receiving 
party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently developed 
by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. “Client Content” means all data, information, documents, and files Client uploads or inputs into 

DbK on the Service through the website, including, without limitation, Personally Identifiable 
Information.  

 
3. “Enhancements” means any specific configurations or customizations to the Software, which 

Client may request, and Karpel Solutions agrees in writing to provide.  
 
4. “Documentation” means any operating instructions, specifications and other documentation 

related to the operation, description and function of DbK, the Service or Website provided by 
Karpel Solutions whether supplied in paper or electronic form.  

 
5. “Intellectual Property” (IP) means any patents, patent applications, copyrights, mask works, 

trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names, inventions, improvements (whether 
patentable or not), trade secrets, Confidential Information, moral rights, and any other 
intellectual property rights provided by applicable law.  

 
6. “Hosted” or “Hosting” means the act of providing service and access to Client Content by the 

Internet.  
 
7. “Personally Identifiable Information” (PII) means any information that may be used to identify 

specific persons or individuals, which is collected by either Karpel Solutions or Client for use in 
conjunction with the use of DbK on HOSTEDbyKarpel. Personally Identifiable Information shall be 
considered Confidential Information.  

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 4 of 24 
 

8. “DbK” mean the DEFENDERbyKarpel® case management system and specifically the Client’s 
licensed copy of DbK. 

 
9. “Service” means the HOSTEDbyKarpel hosting platform provided by Karpel Solutions which allows 

internet-based hosting of the Client’s licensed copy of DbK through the Website.  
 
10. “Service Level Requirements” means the technical service levels Karpel Solutions shall meet for 

Services as set forth below in the Service Level Commitments for the delivery of the Services. 
 
11. “Software” means the Client’s licensed copy of the DbK application, and includes any and all 

updates, enhancements, underlying technology or content, law enforcement transfer interfaces, 
other Enhancements and any Documentation as may be provided the Client by Karpel Solutions.   

 
12. “Website” means the content and functionality currently located at the domain 

www.hostedbykarpel.com on the internet, or any successor or related domain that provides 
access to the Software and Service. 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Karpel Solutions will perform all work in accordance with the descriptions, scopes and specifications 
hereafter described. 
 

Deadline  

Minimum 
Number of 
Days Out 

June 24, 2019 Final Contract & Implementation Agreement signed. Project Pre-Implementation 
Meeting scheduled.  Minimum Workstation requirements are explained to agency 
project manager. 

90 

July 4, 2019 Workstation assessment completed and any necessary hardware or software ordered 
to meet PbK Installation Prerequisites. 

80 

July 24, 2019 4-hour remote pre-implementation meeting with project manager and System 
Administrator(s). PbK Overview. Project Team is selected including Karpel Staff and 
Customer System Administrator(s). (One Customer System Administrator must be a 
Policy Setting Attorney). This meeting will begin with application overview and 
enhancement definitions. PbK Pre-load configuration is explained and initial 
Document Templates are received.  Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. 

60 

August 3, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress on hardware/software assessments, finalize pre-implementation 
meeting timeline agreement. 

50 

August 8, 
2019 

Agency Document Templates are received. System Administrator training begins. 
Workflow pre-configuration is conducted. System enhancements are completed and 
demonstrated. 

45 

August 13, 
2019 

Teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager will occur to 
review progress and answer additional questions regarding pre-load spreadsheet. 

40 



 

Initials _____________   Page 5 of 24 
 

August 18, 
2019 

Karpel Support installation and application testing on each workstation should begin 
at this time. Karpel Solutions or local IT support will schedule workstation application 
testing and follow Karpel testing procedures to thoroughly test browser functionality, 
document generation, Outlook Calendaring and email on each workstation. 

35 

August 18, 
2019 

The agency project manager will provide Karpel with any additional legacy 
documents.  

35 

August 18, 
2019 

Training Schedule is completed with assignment of all office staff to specific training 
sessions. The Policy Setting Attorney must attend the initial Configuration, Case 
Initiation and Event Entry sessions at a minimum. 

35 

August 23, 
2019 

Karpel will install the preliminary document templates and Event Entry Configuration. 
Application testing will begin. Agency project manager will report all inaccuracies to 
Karpel. All Custom Enhancements are tested and verified.  Begin testing of all 
application interfaces. 

30 

September 8, 
2019 

Complete installation and testing of all workstations by Karpel Solutions or local IT 
support. 

14 

September 15, 
2019 

Final teleconference status meeting with Karpel and agency project manager to verify 
final data accuracy. 

7 

TBD Final configuration of PbK is performed with all System Administrators.  User training 
begins. Customer begins using PbK in a live state. 

Go Live 

 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Project Timeline”). 
 
The above Go Live date will no longer be valid if Client fails to sign this contract within 30 days of receipt. 
Furthermore, the Project Timeline may be modified as mutually agreed upon by Client and Karpel 
Solutions. 
 
Karpel Solutions will use its best efforts to convert existing Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and Corel 
WordPerfect® documents provided by Client up to the time of training as outlined in the Project Timeline 
listed above into a format that can be utilized by DbK.  However, Karpel Solutions does not support, nor 
will Karpel Solutions convert customized macros, auto-text files or other custom programming items not 
a part of the ordinary functionality of Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Works® and/or Corel WordPerfect® 
 

3. OTHER WORK 
 
Any additional work requirements outside the scope of this Agreement must be presented in the form of 
a written change order and must be approved by Client prior to start of such work. No additional charges 
will be incurred without prior written approval from Client.  
 

4. GENERAL CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES & OBLIGATIONS 
 
In order for the project to be completed on time and on budget, Client shall provide at a minimum:   
 

1. Access to Client facilities while onsite, as deemed necessary by the Karpel Solutions project 
manager. 

  
2. Access to systems and equipment as required by Karpel Solutions including: 



 

Initials _____________   Page 6 of 24 
 

a. DbK application access using Karpel Solutions laptops and Client’s network for training 
and application testing. 
 

b. Installation of the Karpel Solutions remote support tool on all desktops accessing the DbK 
application. Failure of Client to provide access to enable support tool will render the 
Karpel Solutions support null and void. 

 
3. Access to Client data and document templates (if applicable) that will be provided by Client if such 

data is to be converted and populated by Karpel Solutions into DbK.  
a. Legacy data (i.e., any data from Client’s current system which is being replaced under this 

Agreement) must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but not later than 
120 days from the above go live date. Data provided after this date will not be converted 
unless mutually agreed otherwise. 
 

b. Document templates must be provided to Karpel Solutions as soon as possible but no 
later than 90 days from the above go live date. Document templates provided after this 
date will not be converted unless mutually agreed otherwise.  

 
4. An authorized contact person with decision making authority to assist in the definition of any 

project unknowns. 
a. Appointed decision maker must be present during the following activities: 

i. Project kickoff 
ii. Establishment of timeline 

iii. Interface definition meetings 
iv. Document review signoff 
v. Data conversion signoff 

 
5. Sufficient time, if applicable, for all data reviews which will include a minimum of: 

a. Verification and review of ten (10) cases per year of any legacy system(s) data during each 
review. 
 

b. Client is responsible for validating their data during the project (if applicable). Validating data 
is key to a successful implementation. If issues arise with converted data after go-live, Karpel 
Solutions will determine if a fix is possible and an additional fee for this work may be required 
for the work required to fix the issue. 
 

6. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to the Software through the Service and Website is password-
protected. Karpel Solutions provides multiple authentication alternatives for access to the 
Website and Software. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY ENCOURAGES THE USE OF STRONG 
PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for Client’s use of the Service, 
Website or Software. Only the number of users set forth in the Cost Sheet may access the Service 
and Website. Client must inform their users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of 
the terms of this Agreement. Client is fully responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and 
agents who access the Service and Website. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for 
and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless for any unauthorized access to the Service 
and Website, including without limitation access caused by failure to protect the login and 
password information of users. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 7 of 24 
 

7. RESTRICTIONS ON USE. Client agrees to conduct all activities on the Service and Website in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Access to the Service, Website, Software and 
Documentation must be solely for Client’s own internal use. Client may not (and may not allow 
any third party to) (i) alter, modify, decompile, mirror, translate, disassemble or otherwise reverse 
engineer any part of the Software, source code, algorithms, or underlying ideas of the Software; 
(ii) provide, lease, lend, subcontract, sublicense, or re-publish for,, service bureau or hosting 
purposes any or all of the Software or Documentation; (iii) reproduce, modify, copy, distribute, 
publish, display or create derivative works of any or all of the Software or Documentation or (iv) 
alter, remove, or obscure any copyright, trademark or other proprietary notices or confidentiality 
legends on or in the Software or Documentation.  
 

8. SUSPENSION. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to immediately suspend access to Software 
and/or Website without notice and at any time if Karpel Solutions suspects or has reason to 
suspect a security or data breach, if suspension is necessary to protect Karpel Solutions’ rights, 
Client’s rights or the rights of a third party, if Client misuses the Software and/or Website, and/or 
if Client otherwise violates this Agreement. Karpel Solutions will provide note to client upon 
suspension of the Service and Website.  

 

5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY 
 
Karpel Solutions will perform its Services as set forth in this Agreement in exchange for payment as set 
forth below.  
 

Software Products/Licensing Qty. Price   Total 
DEFENDERbyKarpel 45 $1,500  $67,500 

Total Software       $67,500 

 
Installation Services Qty. Price   Total 
DEFENDERbyKarpel Installation and Configuration 1 $1,000  $1,000 
Data Preload 1 $5,000  $5,000 
Client Support Tool, Scanning Tool and System 
Compatibility Check (per computer) 45 $50  $2,250 

Total Installation Services       $8,250 

     
Professional Services Qty. Price   Total 
Project Management No Additional Cost 
Pre-Implementation Services (hours, remote) 12 $150 1 resource $1,800 
Data Conversion: FullCase 1 $25,000  $25,000 
Mock Go-Live and System Administrator Training (30 
days prior to go-live, hours, remote) 8 $300 2 resources $2,400 
Document Template Setup, Training and Conversion of 
Up To 100 Document  Templates 1 $2,500  $2,500 

Total Professional Services       $31,700 

     



 

Initials _____________   Page 8 of 24 
 

Training Services Qty. Price   Total 
Onsite Training (days) 5 $2,400 2 resources $12,000 
Post Go-Live Support and Training (remote days) 1 $1,200 1 resource $1,200 

Total Onsite Training Services       $12,000 
    
Customization Services Qty. Price   Total 
Interface: None 0   $0 

Total Customization Services       $0 

     
Estimated Travel Expenses    $5,400 

     
Total One-Time Costs       $124,850 

     
Annual Support Services Qty. Price   Total 
DEFENDERbyKarpel 45 $450  $20,250 
Unlimited eDiscovery 1 $5,625  $5,625 
Hosted Services (per user/year) 45 $100  $4,500 

Total Annual Support Services       $30,375 
 

Optional Items   Price 
JasperSoft Reporting Module  $1,000 

JasperSoft Reporting Module Annual Support  $5,000 
JasperSoft Reporting Module Training (minimum)  $600 

Custom Reports (per report)  $1,000 
Document Template Conversion After 100 Documents (per document)  

Criminal document templates  $25 
Civil document templates  $50 

Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per terabyte, per year)  $1,000 
Additional Storage After Included 2TB (per 100 terabytes, per year)  $32,000 

 
This pricing is based upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. Interfaces must conform to the appropriate DEFENDERbyKarpel® Information Exchange Package 
Documentation (IEPD) for that interface. Interfaces that do not conform to the appropriate 
DEFENDERbyKarpel IEPD (i.e., require a new schema to be designed or database modification), 
will require Karpel Solutions and Client review before approval of both design and potential 
additional development and maintenance costs.  
 

2. All phase one (1) interfaces must have an IRF (Interface Request Form) completed and signed off 
by all parties within 30 days of the project kick-off meeting. If not completed within this time 
frame, the interfaces will be automatically moved into phase 2. 
 



 

Initials _____________   Page 9 of 24 
 

PLEASE NOTE: THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL COSTS FROM THE OTHER VENDOR(S), WHICH IS NOT 
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ABOVE PRICING FOR THIS CONTRACT, AND WHICH WILL BE BILLED 
SEPARATELY.  CLIENT SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THESE SEPARATE COSTS.  
 

3. Interfaces not currently in production will be considered as “Phase 2” and implemented post-go 
live. 

 
4. The above costs do not include additional hardware, Microsoft licenses, or networking services 

which may be necessary to properly and legally operate DbK.  Such expenses are solely the Client’s 
responsibility. 
 

5. Changes to the Project Timeline or project scope will impact other work of Karpel Solutions and 
will result in an increased financial burden to Karpel Solutions.  As such, if a scheduled go-live date 
is rescheduled due to delays by the client or a client’s 3rd party vendor, a penalty of 10% of the 
total first year costs may be assessed by Karpel Solutions as compensation to Karpel Solutions for 
costs incurred and lost time, including, but not limited to, costs associated with booked travel and 
accommodations and time that will be lost on  other client start dates as a result of Client’s change 
to the Project Timeline. 
 

6. Karpel Solutions will honor pricing proposals for Optional Services for up to 90 days of execution 
of this Agreement.   Upon the request of Client to provide an Optional Service, an official notice 
to begin the service must be received from Client before the Optional Services will be provided 
by Karpel Solutions.  This is to ensure there are no misunderstandings between Client and Karpel 
Solutions as to the provision of Optional Services. 
 

7. The aggregate document / file storage space included with the stated hosted service fee is two 
terabytes (2TB) of storage per instance of DbK. If the Client’s storage exceeds 2TB in any instance, 
any additional storage above 2TB will automatically be added to the Client’s bill at a flat rate of 
$1,000 per 1TB, per year.  Client hereby consents to this additional charge in advance and waives 
any requirement for additional notice regarding the same.   
 

8. Hosted eDiscovery services will be invoiced monthly at the rate of $1 per submission to the hosted 
eDiscovery site if Client does not elect the unlimited annual fee option. 
 

9. All travel costs are estimates and the Client is responsible for all the project’s actual travel 
expenses to include airfare, lodging, ground transportation, meals, and incidental expenses.  
 

10. As with any project, all prices herein are subject to change as new information arises that will alter 
or impact the project or as workload for the project increases. Karpel Solutions will seek approval 
from Client if additional work becomes necessary to make requested changes during the project.  
 

11. In the event Client or Karpel terminates this Agreement, Client understands and agrees to pay 
$1,000 to Karpel Solutions as compensation for work to be performed by Karpel Solutions in 
connection with the return of Client Content and Confidential Information.   
 
 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 10 of 24 
 

5.1 Payment Terms 
 

50% of Software User Licenses is due and must be paid upon execution of this Agreement by Client, 
with the remaining amount, including first year annual fees, due and payable within thirty (30) days 
of completion of implementation of the Service and initial training provided to Client by Karpel 
Solutions. 

 
TERM. Annual Fees in the Agreement will begin upon Client’s go live month and will be due each year 
thereafter, unless Karpel Solutions or Client terminates this Agreement before the renewal date.  This 
Agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year and shall automatically renew for subsequent one-year 
terms, unless either Karpel Solutions or Client gives notice to the other party at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current term of Karpel Solutions or Client’s intent not to renew. 
Prior to the expiration of the term, Karpel Solutions will send Client a renewal invoice, which must be 
paid in full within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. Pricing for subsequent annual terms is 
subject to change at the sole discretion of Karpel Solutions.  Karpel Solutions will provide Client with 
at least ninety (90) days’ notice of any pricing change prior to the renewal date.  

 
INTEREST AND LATE FEES. Past due accounts will be charged interest on a monthly basis, calculated  
at one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of the unpaid balance or the maximum rate allowable 
by law.  

 
6. ANNUAL SUPPORT 

 
6.1 TECHNICAL SUPPORT FEES 
 
Client understands that technical support fees will be required annually, in order to receive software 
updates and technical support.  The support period shall begin from the date of go-live as part of the 
initial first year costs.  The Client may elect to purchase subsequent annual support, on a yearly basis 
at a fixed cost, and billed annually, separate and apart from any license fees required by this 
Agreement.  The option to purchase annual support is solely at the Client’s discretion. The Client’s 
license to use DbK is not dependent upon the Client purchasing annual support; however, if Client 
discontinues annual support, Client will not be provided with updated versions of the software, unless 
it is purchased. Provided Client’s computers, network and systems meet recommended specifications 
set by Karpel Solutions and the Client has purchased and is current with annual support payments, 
Karpel Solutions will provide updated versions of the System and/or Software as they become 
available during the terms of the contract.  If Client elects to renew the annual support service, Karpel 
Solutions has the right to increase current pricing for annual support at the time of renewal, provided 
that notice of the increased pricing is provided to Client prior to the effective date of the renewal of 
the annual support service.   
  

6.1.1 SUPPORT PROVIDED 
 

Karpel Solutions will provide support (e.g. software updates, general program enhancements and 
technical support) for all Software provided, including ongoing unlimited telephone technical 
support problem determination, and resolution. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 11 of 24 
 

6.1.2 HOURS OF OPERATION 
 

Karpel Solutions will provide technical support Monday through Friday, at a minimum of eight (8) 
hours a day.  Technical support services shall be available between the hours of 7:00 a.m. through 
9:00 p.m. Central time, via a toll-free telephone number provided. After-hours support is available 
as well via the same toll-free number which will reach the on-call support group. 

 
6.1.3 INCLUDED SUPPORT 

 
Support services include the detection and correction of Software errors and the implementation 
of all DbK program changes, updates, and upgrades. Karpel Solutions shall respond to the inquiries 
regarding the use and functionality of the solution as issues are encountered by Authorized Users. 
Support to users will be provided through the remote support tool installed on the end user’s 
computer. This tool was installed at the time of go-live allowing Karpel to provide the needed 
support to meet the service level agreement. If this access is not allowed, support will be delayed 
and the service level agreement (severity levels) will no longer be applicable. 

 
6.1.4 RESPONSE TIMES 

 
Karpel Solutions shall be responsive and timely to technical support calls/inquires made by the 
Client.  The Client will first make support inquires through their qualified system administrators to 
assure the policies and business practices of the Client are enforced prior to contacting Karpel 
Solutions.  The timeliness of the response is dependent upon the severity of the issue/support 
problem, as defined below:      

The severity* of the issue/support problem shall determine the average problem resolution 
response time as follows: 

 
*If the remote support tool is not installed or available, all issues will fall into the general assistance and the severity 
levels are no longer applicable. 

Severity Level 1 shall be defined as urgent situations, when the Client’s production system is down 
and the Client is unable to use DbK, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the 
Client’s call for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is not 
immediately available, Karpel Solutions shall return the customer’s call within one (1) business 
hour.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 1 problems as quickly as possible, which on 
average should not exceed two (2) business days, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the 
Client.   

Severity Level 2 shall be defined as critical Software system component(s) that has significant 
outages and/or failure precluding its successful operation, and possibly endangering the 
customer’s environment.  DbK may operate but are severely restricted. Karpel Solutions’ technical 
support staff shall accept the customer’s call for assistance at the time the customer places the 
initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel Solutions shall return the 
Client’s call within four (4) business hours.  Karpel Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 2 problems 
as quickly as possible, which on average should not exceed three (3) business days, unless 
otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 12 of 24 
 

Severity Level 3 shall be defined as a minor problem that exists with DbK but the majority of the 
functions are still usable and some circumvention may be required to provide service.  Karpel 
Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call for assistance at the time the 
customer places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately available, Karpel 
Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business day.  Karpel 
Solutions shall resolve Severity Level 3 problems as quickly as possible, which should not exceed 
the next available release of Software, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Client. 

General Assistance:  For general Software support/helpdesk calls not covered by the above 
severity level descriptions, Karpel Solutions’ technical support staff shall accept the Client’s call 
for assistance at the time the Client places the initial call; however, if such staff is not immediately 
available, Karpel Solutions shall return the Client’s call on average no later than the next business 
day. 

 
6.2 SERVICE LEVEL COMMITMENT 

 
UPTIME: Karpel Solutions is committed to providing the Software, Website and Service in a  
consistent and reliable manner. Karpel Solutions will provide the Software, Website and Service 
to Client with a stated minimum uptime of 99.5% to Client.  

 
SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE: Karpel Solutions periodically performs scheduled maintenance  
Including, but not limited to, outline, preventative or emergency maintenance of the Software, 
Website, and/or Service. Client understands that schedule maintenance may affect availability of 
the Service, Website, and/or Software.  If schedule maintenance is to be performed, Karpel 
Solutions will provide notice to Client three (3) days prior to the scheduled maintenance. Karpel 
Solutions will make every effort to schedule maintenance outside of normal business hours of the 
Client between the hours of ten (10) p.m. and five (5) a.m. Central Standard Time.  
 
DATA RETENTION AND BACKUPS:  As a part of the Service and Website, Karpel Solutions will  
maintain under this Agreement consistent, regular and validated backup both onsite and offsite 
of the Client Content, Confidential Information and Software. Backups occur and will be 
maintained pursuant to Karpel Solutions internal backup policies. Upon written request, Karpel 
Solutions will make available to Client a copy of Karpel Solutions’ current backup policies and 
procedures.  
 
AUDITS AND SECURITY: Karpel Solutions is committed to maintaining the security of Client  
Content, Confidential Information, and Software on Karpel Solutions’ Service and Website. Karpel 
Solutions will maintain the Software, Website and Service in a reasonably secure manner, subject 
to Client’s own obligations to protect and safeguard usernames and passwords on Client’s end. 
Karpel Solutions will perform annual security audits of the Website and Service to ensure the 
integrity and security of the Website and Service. Results of the Audits and Security Policy for 
Karpel Solutions will be made available to Client upon written request.  
 
DATA TRANSMISSION: Karpel Solutions ensures that all data transmitted to and from the Service 
and Website is transmitted at a minimum level of 128-bit SSL encryption using digital    certificates 
issued by an internationally recognized domain registrar and certificate authority.  
 

      DATA LOCATION: Karpel Solutions will maintain the Service, Software, Client Content and  



 

Initials _____________   Page 13 of 24 
 

   Confidential Information of Client in a SAS 70/SSAE 16 certified data facility.  
 

7. OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY  
 
KARPEL SOLUTIONS OWNERSHIP: Karpel Solutions retains all right, title and interest in and to 
the Software, Documentation, Website, Service, and related Intellectual Property.  Any suggestions, 
solutions, improvements, corrections, or other contributions Client provides regarding the Software, 
Documentation, Website or Services will become the property of Karpel Solutions and Client hereby 
assigns all such rights to Karpel Solutions without charge. Client is granted a non-exclusive, non-
transferable license with respect to the Software on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 8 below. 
 
CLIENT OWNERSHIP: Client retains all rights, title, and interest in and to the Client Content. Client hereby 
grants to Karpel Solutions and Karpel Solutions hereby accepts a non-exclusive, non-transferable, 
worldwide, fully paid license to use, copy, and modify the Client Content solely to the extent necessary 
and for the sole purposes of providing access to the Software, Documentation, Website, and Services or 
otherwise complying with its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
8. LICENSE TERMS AND USE 

 
The Software, DbK, is a proprietary product of Karpel Solutions.  It is licensed (not sold) and is licensed to 
Client for its use and only in accordance with the terms set forth below. During the term of this Agreement, 
Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to use DbK solely 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Client’s license will terminate immediately and 
automatically upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  Client may not sub-license any rights 
under this Agreement to any party without Karpel Solution’s prior written consent. Client’s license is 
subject at all times to Client’s full compliance with this Agreement. 

 
1. Karpel Solutions hereby grants Client a non-exclusive and non-transferable sublicense to use any 

associated manuals and/or documentation furnished.  
 
2. Client cannot distribute, rent, sublicense, or lease the Software. A separate license of DbK is 

required for each authorized user or employee. Each license of DbK may not be shared by more 
than one full time employee or user (defined as working 20 hours or more per week), nor more 
than two (2) part-time employees or users (defined as working less than 20 hours per week each 
and working no more than 40 hours per week combined). The Client agrees that Karpel Solutions 
will suffer damages from the Client’s breach of this term and further agrees that in the event of 
such breach by Client, Karpel Solutions shall be entitled to and Client must pay to Karpel Solutions 
the monetary equivalent of the costs that would have been incurred by Client had Client properly 
obtained the license, installation and training associated with each violation, in addition to any 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by Karpel Solutions with respect to the same 

 
3. This license does not transfer any rights to Software source codes, unless Karpel Solutions ceases 

to do business without transferring its obligations under this Agreement to another qualified 
software business.  Karpel Solutions will, at Client’s expense, enter into escrow agreement for the 
storage of the source codes. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 14 of 24 
 

 
4. DbK and its Documentation are protected by copyright and trade secret laws. Client may not use, 

copy, modify, or transfer the Software or its Documentation, in whole or in part, except as 
expressly provided herein. Karpel Solutions retains all rights in any copy, derivative or 
modification to the Software or its Documentation no matter by whom made. DbK is licensed for 
single installations of one full time employee or two part-time employees as defined in Section 
8.2 above. A separate license is required for each installation of DbK. Client shall not provide or 
disclose or otherwise make available DbK or any portion thereof in any form to any third party. 
Client acknowledges that unauthorized copying and distribution will cause substantial damage to 
Karpel Solutions far greater than the value of the copies involved. 

 
5. DbK was developed exclusively at private expense and is Karpel Solutions’ trade secret. For all 

purposes of the Freedom of Information Act or any other similar statutory right of “open” or 
public records, the Software shall be considered exempt from disclosure.  DbK is "commercial 
computer software" subject to limited utilization "Restricted Rights."  DbK, including all copies, is 
and shall remain proprietary to Karpel Solutions or its licensors.  In the event that a third party 
seeks to compel disclosure and/or production of the Software, the Documentation, and/or the 
Website by court order or otherwise, Client shall promptly give notice to Karpel Solutions so as to 
allow Karpel Solutions to take whatever steps it deems necessary to prevent such disclosure 
and/or production, and Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions in connection therewith. 

 
6. Public Agency Participation: Other public agencies may utilize the terms and conditions 

established by this Contract. “Public agency”, for purposes of this paragraph, is defined to include 
any city, county, district, public authority, public agency, municipality, and other political 
subdivision. Client is not an agent, partner, or representative of such public agency, and is not 
obligated or liable for any action or debts that may arise out of such independently negotiated 
procurements. These so called “piggy-back” awards shall be made independently by each public 
agency, and that agency shall accept sole responsibility for placing orders with Vendor. Client does 
not accept any responsibility or involvement in the purchase orders or Contracts issued by other 
public agencies. Any such contract by another public agency must be in accordance with the 
statutes, codes, ordinances, charter and/or procurement rules and regulations of such public 
agency. 

 
9. WARRANTY  

 
1. LIMITED WARRANTY: Karpel Solutions warrants it will provide the Services and Website in a 

professional manner by qualified personnel. Karpel Solutions warrants it has the requisite power 
and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. Karpel Solutions 
warrants that the performance by Karpel Solutions of any services described in this Agreement 
shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Karpel Solutions warrants it 
will provide access to and use of the Software, Service and Website in material accordance with 
the Service Level Commitment outlined in this Agreement. No representations or warranties as 
to the use, functionality or operation of the Website, Software, or Service are made by Karpel 
Solutions other than as expressly stated in this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions disclaims all other 
warranties as set forth in Section 9.5 below. 

 



 

Initials _____________   Page 15 of 24 
 

2. INTERNET: Karpel Solutions makes the Website, Software and Services available to Client through 
the internet to the extent commercially reasonable, and subject to outages, communication and 
data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in Internet communications. Client 
recognizes that problems with the Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, 
impairments or congestion, or the configuration of Client’s computer systems, may prevent, 
interrupt or delay Client’s access to the Service, Website or Software. Client agrees that Karpel 
Solutions is not liable for and agreed to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any delays, 
interruptions, suspensions or unavailability of the Website or Software attributable to problems 
with the Internet or the configuration of Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
3. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS: Karpel Solutions provides the Services and Website based upon the 

system requirements as specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions 
is not liable for and agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of the Services, or 
the Software based upon Client’s failure to comply with the system requirements of Karpel 
Solutions. 

  
4. WARRANTY LIMITATION: The warranties set forth in this Agreement do not apply if non-

compliance is caused by, or has resulted from (i) Client’s failure to use any new or corrected 
versions of the Software or Documentation made available by Karpel Solutions, (ii) use of the 
Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client for any purpose other than that 
authorized in this Agreement, (iii) use of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services in 
combination with other software, data or products that are defective, incompatible with, or not 
authorized in writing by Karpel Solutions for use with the Software, Documentation, Website, or 
Services, (iv) misuse of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services by Client, (v) any 
malfunction of Client’s software, hardware, computers, computer-related equipment or network 
connection, (vi) any modification of the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services not 
performed by or otherwise authorized by Karpel Solutions in writing, or (vii) an event of Force 
Majeure.  

 
5. DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE MADE IN LIEU OF ALL 

OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NONINFRINGEMENT, TITLE, 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING OUT 
OF A USE IN TRADE OR COURSE OF DEALING OR PERFORMANCE. KARPEL SOLUTIONS DOES NOT 
WARRANT (i) THAT ACCESS TO OR USE OF ALL OR ANY PART OF THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL BE CONTINUOUS, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, (ii) 
THAT THE RESULTS ARISING OUT OF CLIENT’S USE OF THE SOFTWARE, DOCUMENTATION OR 
WEBSITE WILL BE ACCURATE, COMPLETE OR ERROR-FREE, OR (iii) THAT THE SERVICE, SOFTWARE, 
DOCUMENTATION OR WEBSITE WILL MEET CLIENT’S NEEDS. 

 
6. EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES: If the Software, Documentation, Website, or Services provided under this 

Agreement do not materially comply with the requirements stated in the Limited Warranty 
Section outlined above, Karpel Solutions’ sole obligation shall be to correct or modify the 
Software, Documentation, Website or Services, at no additional charge to Client. If Karpel 
Solutions determines it is unable to correct what is non-conforming, Client’s sole remedy will be 
to receive a refund of the fees paid for the non-conforming Services, even if such remedy fails of 
its essential purpose. In that event, Client may also elect to terminate this Agreement as set forth 
in Section 12 of this Agreement. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 16 of 24 
 

  
10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

 
CLIENT AGREES THAT KARPEL SOLUTIONS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS OF DATA, COST OF 
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF KARPEL 
SOLUTIONS HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND CLIENT WAIVES ANY RIGHTS 
AND AGREES TO HOLD KARPEL SOLUTIONS HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY SUCH DAMAGES OR 
LOSSES. THIS LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY), STATUTE OR OTHERWISE. REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 
THE CLAIM, KARPEL SOLUTIONS’ TOTAL LIABILITY TO THE CLIENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO: (i) THE EXTENT 
AND AMOUNT OF ANY INSURANCE COVERAGE WHICH IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), OR (ii) THE 
AMOUNT OF FEES CLIENT HAS PAID TO KARPEL SOLUTIONS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 
TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD PRIOR TO SUCH CLAIM(S) ARISING.  TO THE EXTENT THAT INSURANCE 
COVERAGE IS AVAILABLE FOR SUCH CLAIM(S), CLIENT’S SOLE RECOURSE SHALL BE PAYMENT OF ANY 
AVAILABLE INSURANCE PROCEEDS. 

  
11. INDEMNIFICATION  

 
CLIENT’S INDEMNIFICATION: Client will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Karpel Solutions from and 
against any and all liability, damage, loss or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of 
(i) any claim, demand, action or proceeding, statutory or otherwise,  relating to the use of the Website, 
Software, Documentation or Services in a manner not expressly described or permitted by this 
Agreement, (ii) use of the Website, Software, Documentation or Services in any unlawful manner or for 
any unlawful purpose, (iii) Karpel Solutions’ use of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that 
allegedly infringes upon or violates any third party Intellectual Property rights, or (iv) Karpel Solutions’ use 
of Client Content as permitted by this Agreement that allegedly violates privacy rights or other rights with 
respect to Personally Identifiable Information of a third party.  

 
KARPEL SOLULTIONS’ INDEMNIFICATION: Karpel Solutions will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Client from and against any claim or suit brought against Client alleging that the Software directly infringes 
upon or violates any valid U.S. Intellectual Property rights. Karpel Solutions shall have the right to select 
counsel for purposes of its defense obligations hereunder and will at all times have the right to control 
the defense of such claim or suit.  Karpel Solutions will not be liable for any cost or expense incurred by 
Client in connection with any such suit or claim, without Karpel Solutions’ prior and specific authorization 
and consent.  Client agrees to cooperate with Karpel Solutions and to provide such assistance as may be 
requested by Karpel Solutions in connection with the defense of such claim or suit.   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Karpel Solutions shall not be obligated to defend or indemnify Client if the 
infringement claim is based solely or in part upon or arises out of: (i) any modification of or alteration to 
the Software not made by Karpel Solutions, (ii) any combination or use of the Software with products, 
hardware or services not supplied by Karpel Solutions or approved in writing by Karpel Solutions in 
advance of such combination, (iii) Client’s continuance of allegedly infringing activity after being notified 
of such activity, or after being informed of modifications that would have avoided the alleged 
infringement, (iv) Client’s failure to use corrections or enhancements made available by Karpel Solutions, 
(v) use of the Software not in accordance with the applicable Documentation or this Agreement, or (vi) 
use of the Software in a manner for which it was neither designed nor contemplated.  



 

Initials _____________   Page 17 of 24 
 

 
In no event shall Karpel Solutions’ total liability and obligation under this Section exceed the total fees 
Client has paid to Karpel Solutions under this Agreement in the twelve (12) month period prior to the 
assertion or filing of such claim against Client. The foregoing remedies constitute Client’s sole and 
exclusive remedies, and Karpel Solutions’ entire liability and obligation with respect to any suit or claim 
for infringement or misappropriation of third-party Intellectual Property rights or with respect to the 
Software.  
 
NOTIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OF INDEMNIFIED PARTIES: The indemnification obligations set forth above 
will apply only if and to the extent (i) the indemnified party gives prompt written notice to the 
indemnifying party of the assertion of any such claims, demands, action or proceeding, (ii) the 
indemnifying party has the right to select counsel and control the defense and all negotiations for 
settlement thereof and (iii) the indemnified party provides all reasonable information, assistance and 
cooperation required to defend such claim, demand, action or proceeding. The indemnifying party shall 
not settle or dispose of any such claim, demand, action or proceeding without written notification to the 
indemnified party in the event that the proposed settlement or disposal would materially adversely 
impact the indemnified party. 

 
12. TERMINATION 

  
TERMINATION: Client may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Karpel Solutions of 
Client’s intent to terminate in the event that Karpel Solutions has failed to perform under or materially 
breaches this Agreement.  Thereafter, Karpel Solutions will have thirty (30) days from the receipt of such 
notice to cure the alleged failure or breach.  If at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Karpel Solutions 
has not cured the alleged failure or breach, then Client may terminate this Agreement.  Karpel Solutions 
may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days’ written notice for any reason. Either party may 
immediately terminate this Agreement in the event the other party (i) files for, or has filed against it, a 
bankruptcy petition, and such petition is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of the filing date, (ii) ceases 
to conduct business in the normal course, (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (iv) is 
liquidated or otherwise dissolved, (v) becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts in the normal course, 
or (vi) has a receiver, trustee or custodian appointed for it.  

 
RIGHTS AFTER EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION: Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Karpel 
Solutions will immediately terminate Client’s access to and use of the Website, Documentation, and 
Services. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, each party shall immediately cease use of any 
Confidential Information received from the other party. Within thirty (30) days of written request 
following termination or expiration of this Agreement, Karpel Solutions shall coordinate with Client with 
respect to the return of Client Content and Confidential Information obtained or shared during the course 
of the Agreement.  Client understands that upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, Client 
must return to Karpel Solutions (or at Karpel Solutions’ election, destroy and certify such destruction in 
writing) any Documentation or other materials provided by Karpel Solutions, whether in written or 
electronic form, regarding the Website, Software or Services provided under this Agreement.  

 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 18 of 24 
 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
NOTICES: Any notices provided under this Agreement will be in writing in the English language and will be 
deemed to have been properly given if delivered personally or if sent by (i) a recognized overnight courier, 
(ii) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (iii) electronic means, 
followed by mailing a copy by regular U.S. mail, postage prepaid. Karpel Solutions’ address for such notices 
is set forth below. Client’s address for such notices will be the address on file with Karpel Solutions as 
provided by Client. Such address or contact information may be revised from time to time by Karpel 
Solutions and/or Client by written notice as described in this Section. All notices sent by mail will be 
deemed received on the tenth (10th) business day after deposit in the mail. All notices sent by overnight 
courier will be deemed given on the next business day after deposit with the overnight courier. All notices 
sent by electronic means will be deemed given on the next business day after successful transmission. 

  
Karpel Solutions 
c/o Jeffery L. Karpel, CEO 
9717 Landmark Parkway, Suite 200 
St. Louis, MO 63127 
(314) 892-6300 
karpel@karpel.com 

 
GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION. This Agreement is to be construed and governed by the 
laws of the United States and the State of Missouri, without regard to conflict of law’s provisions. Any 
dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement must be brought exclusively in the appropriate 
court(s) located in St. Louis County, Missouri, and Client expressly waives any and all objections regarding 
jurisdiction, venue, and forum non conviens in such court(s). If either Karpel Solutions or Client employs 
attorneys to enforce any rights arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party will be 
entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs from the non-prevailing party.  

 
  

mailto:mziemianski@karpel.com
mailto:mziemianski@karpel.com


 

Initials _____________   Page 19 of 24 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date set forth 
below. This Agreement, together with the Master Terms and Conditions attached hereto and incorporated 
herein and all other attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, superseding all 
prior written and oral agreements.  The parties hereto agree that this Agreement may not be modified, 
altered, or changed except by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.  Prior to acceptance of 
this Agreement, Karpel Solutions reserves the right to make modifications to this Agreement. The 
signatories warrant they have the authority to bind their respective party.   

 

  Winnebago County, IL      Karpel Solutions 

 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Initials _____________   Page 20 of 24 
 

Mailing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Billing Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Billing Address: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________ 
 

Tax Exempt?   No □     Yes □ If yes, please attach copy of tax exempt certificate 
 
Agency Project Manager Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 
 
Project IT Contact: 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
Phone Number: __________________________ 
 
Email Address: ___________________________ 



 

Initials _____________   Page 21 of 24 
 

14. MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

KARPEL COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC. (dba “Karpel Solutions”), 
MASTER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
GENERAL TERMS 

 
1. ACCEPTANCE TERM. The proposal attached to these Master Terms and Conditions is tendered for 

acceptance in its entirety within thirty (30) days from the date of the proposal, after which it is to be 
considered null and void.   

 
2. MODIFICATION AND WAIVER. Any modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 

both parties. Neither party will be deemed to have waived any of its rights under the Agreement by 
any statement or representation other than (i) by an Authorized Representative and (ii) in an explicit 
written waiver. No waiver of a breach of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of any prior or 
subsequent breach of this Agreement.  

 
3. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Karpel Solutions, Client, 

and Karpel Solutions’ successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client may not assign or 
otherwise transfer this Agreement or Client’s rights and obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of Karpel Solutions, and any purported assignment or other transfer without 
such consent will be void and of no force or effect. Karpel Solutions may assign and /or transfer this 
Agreement or Karpel Solutions’ rights and obligations under this Agreement at any time and the 
Client’s consent to such assignment or transfer is not needed.  

 
4. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the extent that 

performance of its obligations or attempts to cure any breach thereof are delayed or prevented by 
reason of any act of God, government, fire, natural disaster, accident, terrorism, network or 
telecommunication system failure, sabotage or any other cause beyond the control of such party 
(“Force Majeure”), provided that such party promptly gives the other party written notice of such 
Force Majeure.  

 
5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. The parties will be deemed to have the status of independent 

contractors, and nothing in this Agreement will be deemed to place the parties in the relationship of 
employer-employee, principal-agent, or partners or joint ventures. Neither party has the authority to 
bind, commit or make any representations, claims or warranties on behalf of the other party without 
the other party’s prior written approval. 

 
6. SOFTWARE ANOMALIES. New commercial software releases or upgrades, or any hardware and/or 

software owned by or licensed to Client, used in connection with Karpel Solutions’ Services may have 
anomalies, performance or integration issues unknown to Karpel Solutions which can impact the 
timely, successful implementation of information systems.  Karpel Solutions will inform the Client 
promptly if this occurs and will attempt to analyze, correct and/or work around the anomalies or 
performance issues on a "best efforts" basis.  Karpel Solutions is not responsible for any delay or 
inability to complete its Services if such anomalies or performance issues occur.  Client is responsible 
for payment for all of Karpel Solutions’ Services at the rate stated in the Agreement whether or not a 
successful solution is achieved. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 22 of 24 
 

 
7. SOFTWARE AUDIT. Client agrees to allow Karpel Solutions the right to audit Client’s use of DbK and 

license of DbK at any time. Client will cooperate with the audit, including providing access to any 
books, computers, records or other information that relate to the use of DbK. Such audit will not 
unreasonably interfere with Client’s activities. In the event that an audit reveals unauthorized use, 
reproduction, distribution, or other exploitation of DbK, Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions for the 
reasonable cost of the audit, in addition to such other rights and remedies that Karpel Solutions may 
have. Absent extenuating circumstances or circumstances which lead Karpel Solutions to believe that 
there has been unauthorized use, reproduction, distribution or other exploitation of DbK by Client or 
Client’s agents, Karpel Solutions will not conduct an audit more than once per year.  

 
8. CLIENT ENVIRONMENT. Client is responsible for the application, operation and management of its 

information technology environment, including but not limited to: (a) purchasing, licensing and 
maintaining hardware and software; (b) following appropriate operating procedures; (c) following 
appropriate protective measures to safeguard the software and data from unauthorized duplication, 
modification, destruction or disclosure; (d) following adequate backup contingency plans; and (e) 
employing qualified personnel to obtain the desired results. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for the 
loss of data in DbK or security breaches that result in the unauthorized dissemination of data 
contained in DbK that is the result of Client not following appropriate operating procedures, security 
and protective measures and/or following adequate backup contingency plans.  

 
9. MATERIALS. Client Agrees to pay Karpel Solutions for materials purchased for the Client’s use.  

Materials may include computer hardware, software, hosting, facility leases, other services, 
telecommunications charges, freight, shipping, mailing, document reproduction and any other such 
costs incurred in performance of services for Client.  Client will reimburse Karpel Solutions for all out 
of town travel expenses, such as automobile/airline travel, hotel, meals, and cab fare provided these 
costs are discussed and approved in advance by Client.  Billing for services rendered on-site on an as 
needed basis will include portal-to-portal time.  

 
10. COPYRIGHT. Karpel Solutions reserves the right to seek damages if Client is responsible for a violation 

of Karpel Solutions’ copyright, and Client assumes full responsibility for the acts and omissions of its 
agents acting in the course and scope of their duties for Client with respect to the protection of Karpel 
Solutions’ copyright. 

 
10. INTERNET AND NETWORK. Karpel Solutions makes DbK available to Client through the Internet and/or 

Client’s own network and systems, to the extent commercially reasonable, and subject to outages, 
communication and data flow failures, interruptions and delays inherent in the Internet and network 
communications on the Client’s own network and systems. Client recognizes that problems with the 
Internet, including equipment, software and network failures, impairments or congestion, or the 
configuration of Client’s own computer systems and network, may prevent, interrupt or delay Client’s 
access to DbK. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client agrees to hold Karpel 
Solutions harmless from any delays, interruptions, suspensions or unavailability of DbK attributable 
to problems with the Internet or the configuration of Client’s computer systems or network. 

 
11. PASSWORD PROTECTION. Access to DbK is password-protected. Karpel Solutions provides multiple 

authentication alternatives for access to DbK. KARPEL SOLUTIONS STRONGLY ENCOURAGES THE USE 
OF STRONG PASSWORD AUTHENTICATION. Karpel Solutions is not responsible for Client’s use of DbK. 
Only the number of authorized users may access the Service and Website. Client must inform their 



 

Initials _____________   Page 23 of 24 
 

users that they are subject to, and must comply with, all of the terms of this Agreement. Client is fully 
responsible for the activities of Client’s employees and agents who access DbK. Client agrees that 
Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any 
unauthorized access to DbK and data or information contained therein, including without limitation, 
access caused by Client’s failure to protect the login and password information of users.  

 
12. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS. Karpel Solutions provides DbK based upon the system requirements as 

specified by Karpel Solutions for Client. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions is not liable for and Client 
agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any failure of DbK based upon Client’s failure to comply 
with the system requirements of Karpel Solutions.   

 
13. THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to any third 

party software or as to Karpel Solutions’ ability to support such software on an on-going basis.    
 
14. LIMITED ENGAGEMENT. Karpel Solutions makes no warranties, express or implied, as to the quality 

of, or the ability of software developed by Karpel Solutions to operate with, any hardware, network, 
software, systems and/or external data flows already in place at Client's facilities or as may be added 
by the Client.   

 
NON-SOLICITATION OF KARPEL SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEES 

 
Karpel Solutions has invested substantial sums of money and large amounts of time in recruiting, 
supervising and training Karpel Solutions’ employees.  Client acknowledges that it has a unique 
opportunity to evaluate Karpel Solutions employees’ performance, and has the potential to hire Karpel 
Solutions employees.  Client further acknowledges that such hiring away would substantially disrupt 
Karpel Solutions’ business and ability to provide its services for others.  Client understands that Karpel 
Solutions’ employees are subject to non-competition agreements; therefore, Client agrees during the 
term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter, Client will not in any manner, directly 
or indirectly, solicit, recruit or hire, or attempt to solicit, recruit or hire, or otherwise interfere with the 
employment or engagement of any other employees of Karpel Solutions who are employed or engaged 
by the Company at the time of the solicitation, attempted solicitation, and/or hire. 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

1. CONFIDENTIALITY. Neither party shall disclose or use any confidential or proprietary information of 
the other party.  The foregoing obligations shall not apply to information which the party receiving 
the information can demonstrate: (i) was in the possession of or known by it without an obligation of 
confidentiality prior to receipt of the information, (ii) is or becomes general public knowledge through 
no act or fault of the party receiving the information, (iii) is or becomes lawfully available to the 
receiving party from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality, or (iv) is independently 
developed by the receiving party without the use of any Confidential Information.  

 
2. PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION. The parties recognize that certain data Client or Karpel 

Solutions may use in conjunction with DbK may be confidential Personally Identifiable Information of 
third parties. Karpel Solutions shall use all best efforts to protect the confidentiality of Personally 
Identifiable Information of third parties. Client Agreements that Karpel Solutions is not liable and 
Client agrees to hold Karpel Solutions harmless from any claims arising out of disclosure of Personally 
Identifiable Information caused by Client’s own negligence or misconduct. 



 

Initials _____________   Page 24 of 24 
 

 
3. DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY LAW. In the event that any Confidential Information is required to be 

disclosed pursuant to any law, code, regulation or court order from a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the receiving party shall give the disclosing party immediate written notice of such requirement and 
shall use its best efforts to seek or to cooperate with the disclosing party in seeking a protective order 
with respect to the Confidential Information requested. 

 
4. SIMILAR PROGRAMS AND MATERIALS. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions 

of this Agreement regarding confidentiality, the Agreement shall not preclude Karpel Solutions from 
developing for itself, or for others, programs or materials which are similar to those produced as a 
result of Services provided to Client. 
 

5. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The parties acknowledge that any breach of the confidentiality provisions of this 
Section will cause irreparable harm to the other party. Accordingly, the parties agree that the non-
breaching party may enforce the provisions of this Agreement by seeking an injunction, specific 
performance, criminal prosecution or other equitable relief without prejudice to any other rights and 
remedies the non-breaching party may have available to it. 

 
MARKETING 

 
1. Client agrees that Karpel Solutions may identify Client as a customer of Karpel Solutions in Karpel 

Solutions’ written promotional and marketing materials, as well as in any oral or visual presentations 
regarding the business of Karpel Solutions.   
 

2. Provided Karpel Solutions is not in violation of the provisions of this Agreement regarding 
confidentiality, Karpel Solutions shall have the right to demonstrate for other prospective clients any 
application developed by Karpel Solutions under this Agreement and shall have the right to include 
information about any such application in marketing materials and presentations.   

 
MISCELLANEOUS  

 
1. ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS. To the extent possible, and under the terms required by Client, Client and 

Karpel Solutions may communicate by electronic means, including but not limited to, facsimile 
documents and email.  Both parties agree that:  a signature or an identification code ("USERID") 
contained in an electronic document is legally sufficient to verify the sender's identity and the 
document's authenticity; an electronic document that contains a signature or USERID is a signed 
writing; and that an electronic document, or any computer printout of it, is an original when 
maintained in the normal course of business. 

 
2. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, 

in whole or in part, the remaining portions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

 
 
 

 













 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: April 13, 2023 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Federal Register/Vol. 88, No. 54/Tuesday, March 21, 2023/Notices 

 
b. Byron Station – Security Baseline Inspection Report 05000454/2023401 and  

05000455/2023401 
 

c. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert Cliffs 
Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit No. 1:Dresden 
Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3; James A. FitzPatrick Nuclear Power Plant; 
LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2; Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; 
Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, Units 1 and 2; Peach Bottom Atomic Power 
Station, Units 2 and 3; Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2; and R.E. 
Ginna Nuclear Power Plant 
 

d. Federal Register/Vol. 88, No. 65/Wednesday, April 5, 2023/Notices 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications the Quarterly 
Franchise Fee Pament for the Village of Rockton.  

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 

County Treasurer the following: 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

a. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances – February 2, 2022 
b. Collateralization Report – February  28, 2023 
c. Investment Report -  as of March 1, 2023 

 
4. County Clerk Gummow received from the State of Illinois Department of Natural Resources 

a Surety Bond Release.   

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Adopting Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Policy
	Ordinance for Budget Amendment for Buyer Position
	Resolution Authorizing Salary Adjustment for Winn. Cty. Supervisor of Assessments
	Resolution to Approve Payment of Stipends to Regional Superintendent & Asst. Regional Superintendent of Schools
	Ordinance for Budget Amendment for Procurement of Karpel Solutions Case Management System
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Reimbursable Technology Expenditures
	Resolution Approving Agreement between Cty. of Winn. & Winn. Homes Association 
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Contracts to Temporarily Extend Current Cable Television Franchise Agreements
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to Economic Development Agreement
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution to Approve Execution of Renewal Agreement with Vision Service Plan
	Resolution for Replacement of State's Attorney & Public Defender Case Management System
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



